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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHME

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
RESULTS E 3
Revenue WA 1,554,364 1,852,329
Profit attributable to owners of the Company  ANR A EzE B A B F 88,705 113,556
EBITDA RETFIE B MER
BEE AT & 201,650 221,115
PER SHARE DATA BlR&EH
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREXRER CEM) 9.92 12.71
Total dividends per share (HK cents) BRRARE GE) 2.0 3.5
— Interim dividend paid per share — B &R RS CEL)
(HK cent(s)) - -
— Proposed final dividend per share — BB ERARERE CEML)
(HK cents) 2.0 3.5
Dividend payout ratio kB = 20.2% 27.5%
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue percentage by business segments
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Ka
Shui”), | am pleased to present the directors’ report of the
Company and the audited annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

For the Year, the Group recorded a 16.1% year-on-year
decrease in revenue to HK$1,554,364,000 (2018:
HK$1,852,329,000). Profit attributable to owners of the
Company dropped by 21.9% vyear-on-year to
HK$88,705,000 (2018: HK$113,556,000). The decrease
was mainly attributable to () a decline in revenue of the
Group as a result of prolonged US-China trade dispute
that has dampened consumer sentiment and hence
demand for the products of the Group’s customers; and (ii)
while a drop in the general and administration expenses
was recorded when compared with the same period last
year, such rate of decrease was lower than that of
revenue primarily due to, among other factors, expenses
relating to the continuing integration of the Group’s
production facilities.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

BEMRR :
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FRHEE(R)

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK$2.0 cents (2018: HK$3.5 cents) per
share for the Year after due consideration of the future
business development as well as financial position of the
Group. The dividend payout ratio for the Year would be
20.2% (2018: 27.5%).

2019 was nothing short of challenges for the Group, as
political tension and trade disputes between the United
States and China persisted. The tariff imposed on
manufacturing exports from China had certain impact on
our business and the affected customers in the United
States placed pressure on our selling prices. Overall
market demand was weakened as consumer sentiment
was clouded by the uncertain global economic outlook.
The combined effect from unfavorable market conditions
has slowed down the growth of the Group.

In response to the difficult operating environment, the
Group remained committed to strict financial discipline
along with prudent investment decisions to achieve efficient
operation. We also placed continuous continue with our
focus on innovations of technology and material to stay at
the forefront of the market and we never stopped
developing new business areas to expand beyond our
current business portfolio and seize growing market
opportunities.

For four decades, the Group has been well recognized by
the market for its expertise in providing professional
solutions including alloy die casting and plastic injection
moulding. The Group’s capability has given it a broad
range of business portfolios ranging from communication
devices and accessories, personal care, automotive parts
to housewares. In particular, our expertise in light alloy and
the application of die casting technologies has helped us
to secure businesses with major brand names in the
personal computer and automobile industry; our high-
precision plastic injection solution has strengthened our
collaborations with customers in mobile devices
accessories and personal care sectors. In 2019, the rapid
development of 5th generation mobile communication
technology (“5G”) presented a new business opportunities
for Ka Shui. In view of the development of 5G
communication technology, the demand for large complex
die casted parts for 5G communication base stations with
light weight and good heat dissipation is expected to
increase significantly. Light alloy with high heat dissipation

A

EHMEBANER 2 RRERER KT BN -
BEECEFRBEATE 2 RPRETR2.051
(ZZ—)\F : FRI5HEN) - REEFZRELL R
520.2% (ZF— \F : 27.5%) °

RAREXBEEPEHANBARRBEME Sl
$E o T NFUAKEME RAKBIEN -
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MBS - HR T REMNEREENSEEHE
5K REBREMISH IR - THOTHIR
BERNGEEFEEARBNERME -

REHBHANKERE  AEBEBEETHRE
MPBETRARBENRERR  UERSHL
& WM ERBERMAMEAIF - AGRT
BRI - AR ILFEH X EEIAE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

efficiency, which was developed by the Group, and large
scale die casting facilities are well-suited to cater for this
newly developed market demand. In addition, light-weight
materials coupled with squeeze die casting technology can
be applied to produce high strength alloy auto
components in order to enhance energy efficiency of
automobiles. Leveraging on our strong experience in light
alloy applications, these new product extensions have
opened up a new market for the Group with a view to
solidifying our leading position in the industry. Furthermore,
due to the outbreak of novel coronavirus and its global
and far-reaching effect, the Group is actively exploring the
application of biocide-free germ-repellent plastic to various
fields such as medical and health care. The Group will
continue to accelerate the commercialization of its results
in research and development so as to create new income
stream.

Apart from material innovation, the Group continues to
focus on advances in technology. Advanced Out Mold
Release (“AOMR”) is an environmentally-friendly surface
finishing technology to replace passivation and spray
painting, which can reduce toxic waste water discharge
and Volatile Organic Compounds (“VOCs”) emission. To
keep itself abreast of the latest market trends, the Group
will continue to pursue technological advancements with its
over 40 years of accumulated expertise in the industry,
and offer customers innovative and cost-effective services
solutions.

Our persistent pursuit for technological advancement and
innovative solutions has been the foundation of Ka Shui. At
the same time, we have been committed to the research
and development in new material applications used in large
metal parts for automotive and electronic communication
industries. In 2019, the Group’s subsidiaries, namely Ka
Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited and Ka Fung
Industrial (Huizhou) Company Limited, were awarded
“China Nonferrous Metals Industry Science and Technology
Award (First Prize)” and “Guangdong Scientific and
Technological Progress Award (Second Prize)” for its key
technology and applications in product shape and
mechanical performance control for die casting large
complex thin-wall magnesium structural parts, including
magnesium alloy composition optimization, vacuum die
casting for complex thin-wall structural parts, surface
finishing treatment of low cost, high efficiency and

FRHEE(E)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFFEHRE (R)

environment-friendly magnesium alloy and computer-aided REBHIEAERRKAOIE - BIETERB
engineering analysis for die casting. In addition, these two e B BB WIBRH B AEENT
subsidiaries were also accredited as “New & High BERFE S o

Technology Enterprise” by the government of Guangdong
Province in August 2019, which will be valid until
November 2021. The title not only signifies the recognition
and support from the local government on the Group’s
research capabilities and achievements, but also represents
future support from relevant departments including possible
tax deductions and financial incentives, which is anticipated
to be a competitive advantage of the Group.

&t

Gl

LR IR el B CEHPET
J& -
iE % it % FEENEES R FEENE®S R
ALETETLERLERTALER ALEPRE LA AR iE =ﬁ iE :F
AAE, HELERE, EAE, waLsas, S
ST P bl L e L] AAE 2008 Ak v 10 881 £.5 Mil,
Hopn AL LN L, BOREEE. WA BFREAE. SN,
L LT | LT T T yuvmepem———" WO A R S R
B K o AL Es e LR LR ST TE Ry TR L T i b RN
(h (AL CEym PR T ]
@ @ R el
R AR e - EE, R - Pereetopalifnpd ET Tt
P

- -
T [ TE A e L T
T e B el -l
AP %
el * . . . i =
- —- [ - ("
% =] 1= Ml S 8T I Rk
oA 3 \
= - = o, - ]
2 w B ; 2 w5 >
Y. SRRR A TR b 5 q
o s SNAR EERS, om0 G pdm, BAIERE OEN) WRED AR i
EEHA, BEsiARE wEm =y ,“. sk iai nEm o
] o G
. A 3 3
. i e ’1_’: T S }

Z

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

New challenges arise as we move forward into 2020. The
signing of phase one of the Economic and Trade
Agreement between the United States and China has lifted
the market sentiment but has yet provided noticeable
benefits for international trade. More importantly, the novel
coronavirus outbreak has seriously disrupted the global
supply chain as a lot of businesses and manufacturing
units in mainland China were suspended for an extended
period of time after the Chinese New Year. The spread of
the virus is expected to disarray global business activities
and economy worldwide for the first half of 2020. To
overcome the market headwinds, the Group will continue
to implement stringent cost control measures and at the
same time strengthen our core competencies to stay
steadfast in the market. We will expedite the development
of Industry 4.0 data management over the whole
production process to elevate our production efficiency
and reduce the impact of rising labor cost. The Group will
also devote greater effort into the research and
development of technological innovation and material
application solutions to further expand into different
industries and sectors. On the other hand, maintaining
strong client relationship and close contacts with the
market will also be essential for the formulation of value-
added solutions that assist our customers to succeed.
2020 may be a tough year but Ka Shui will remain resilient
with its profound expertise and experience, and with its
established and diversified customer base, it will continue
to maintain its leadership and market presence in the
material solutions sector.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to
the shareholders, business partners, and customers for
their unfailing support regardless of the challenges. | would
also like to thank my fellow directors for their concerted
effort and insights along with the unwavering commitment
of our staff. The Group will continue to deliver our promise
to improve persistently and pursuit technology innovation
with an aim to bring fruitful returns to its shareholders.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN®R DM

(A)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As a result of prolonged US-China trade dispute in
2019, which has dampened consumer sentiment and
hence demand for the products of the Group’s
customers, the Group’s overall revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2019 dropped by
approximately 16.1% to HK$1,554,364,000 (2018:
HK$1,852,329,000) when compared with last year.

While a drop in the general and administrative
expenses was recorded when compared with the
same period last year, such rate of decrease was
lower than that of revenue primarily due to, among
other factors, expenses relating to the continuing
integration of the Group’s production facilities. In this
regard, the consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019 decreased by approximately 21.9% to
HK$88,705,000 (2018: HK$113,556,000). The
Group’s EBITDA, computed as profit before tax,
depreciation, amortisation of intangible assets and
finance costs, amounted to HK$201,650,000 (2018:
HK$221,115,000).

Amid this difficult operating environment, the Group’s
gross profit margin was 25.5% (2018: 24.2%) due to
increase in operational efficiency, more automation in
production and improvement in customer and
product mix.

To cope with the challenges ahead, the Group will
place high priority on implementation of stringent
cost control measures, increasing operational
efficiency and development of new products and
technology to achieve product diversification, as well
as closely monitoring the market situation and
making necessary adjustments to its strategies and
operations.
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(B)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Plastic injection moulding business

In 2019, political tension and trade dispute between
the United States and China have affected the
consumer sentiment which have led to a decrease in
the market demand of mobile devices and
automobiles. Therefore, the revenue of plastic
injection moulding business segment had recorded a
decrease of approximately 21.2% to
HK$714,815,000 (2018: HK$906,869,000), which
accounted for approximately 46.0% (2018: 49.0%) of
the Group’s overall revenue. In order to expand its
market share, the Group is committed to the
research and development of new production
technology to further enhance its product quality and
application.

Magnesium alloy die casting business

As a result of the slowdown in the global shipment
of notebook computers due to unfavourable market
condition, the revenue of this business segment for
the year ended 31 December 2019 dropped by
approximately 11.7% to HK$496,168,000 (2018:
HK$561,695,000), accounting for approximately
31.9% of the Group’s overall revenue (2018: 30.3%).
Apart from existing products, since light weight
components play an important role in the
development of new energy vehicle, the Group will
increase additional applications of magnesium alloy in
automobile such as body and components of new
energy vehicles with a view to providing best
solutions to customers.

Zinc alloy die casting business

During the year under review, the revenue of the zinc
alloy die casting business recorded a 5.7% decrease
to HK$158,745,000 (2018: HK$168,382,000) when
compared with that of 2018. This business segment
accounted for approximately 10.2% of the Group’s
overall revenue (2018: 9.1%). It is expected that the
zinc alloy die casting business will continue to act as
a relatively stable revenue contributor for the Group
in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEN®R D (E)

Aluminium alloy die casting business

The revenue of the aluminium alloy die casting
business for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$140,665,000 (2018:
HK$161,303,000), representing an approximately
12.8% decrease when compared with that of the
previous year. This business segment accounts for
approximately 9.0% of the Group’s overall revenue
(2018: 8.7%). In view of the rapid development of
5th generation mobile communication technology
(“6G”) network, the Group has been actively
exploring collaboration with its partners and business
opportunities in  providing product or component
solutions for building 5G base stations in order to
expand its business portfolio.

Others

The revenue of other businesses (trading of lighting
products and home appliances) dropped by
approximately 18.7% to HK$43,971,000 (2018:
HK$54,080,000) when compared with that of the
previous year.

PROSPECTS

Stepping into 2020, as the phase one of the
Economic and Trade Agreement between the United
States and China was signed, the Group anticipates
less turbulent conditions for international trade as
trade tensions subside. However, as resumption of
operations after Chinese New Year in 2020 was
delayed as a result of the Chinese government’s
response to control the spread of the novel
coronavirus, uncertain market condition has created
new challenges for businesses. The interruption of
the supply chain in the PRC has affected the
business performance in the first half of 2020. Whilst
we are not yet in a position to ascertain the impact
on the business environment due to outbreak of
novel coronavirus, the Group will continue to stay
vigilant in the dynamic market, and we will focus on
the self-enhancement in material application,
precision mould development, technology innovation,
product diversification and internal optimisation to
gain greater market recognition and prepare for
future business opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

To strengthen our market position as a solution
provider, the Group has placed strong emphasis on
offering value-added products to our customers. The
Group’s capability of utilising high-precision technique
and fast response to provide premium products and
accessories for flagship models has made the Group
a partner with the globally renowned branded
customers in communication devices and
accessories. Since the worldwide sales of
smartphones to end users is on track to reach 1.57
billion units in 2020 according to Gartner, Inc., and
the unveil of more 5G mobile devices is expected to
happen within the foreseeable future, the increasing
need for replacement of mobile devices and
accessories is expected to provide promising
business opportunities to the Group. At the same
time, the expected rapid development of 5G network
has placed a demand on the need of updated
infrastructures worldwide. Compared with the 4th
generation mobile communication technology (“4G”),
the speed of 5G is faster and is more likely to
generate more heat. However, high temperature of
electronic components in 5G devices will negatively
affect their operating efficiencies and their service
lives. Therefore, 5G related applications such as base
stations, notebook computers and mobile devices will
require efficient heat dissipation solutions and hence
light alloy with high heat dissipation efficiency, which
the Group has self-developed, and large scale die
casting facilities can cater for this emerging market
demand. As the speed requirement of 5G is higher
than 4G, if the same wireless coverage is to be
maintained, the number of 5G base stations is
expected to be doubled. Currently, there are
approximately 4.5 million 4G base stations around
the world and it is expected that 13.5 million base
stations are required for 5G and the demand for
base stations in 2025 will reach 65 million units. The
Group has already started to provide solutions for
heat sink applications components in 5G base
stations, and it is expected that the market potential
of 5G related components will be huge in the
foreseeable future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEN®R D (E)

Light weight solutions continue to be the focus for
the Group for us to ride on the current market trend.
In addition to the 5G related configuration, high heat
dissipation magnesium alloy can also be applied for
automotive components and its fast heat-dissipation
feature can enhance the efficiency of electronic
components used in automobile applications.
Furthermore, the light-weight of the material coupled
with squeeze die casting technology can be
leveraged to produce high strength alloy auto
components. This technology of the Group is
expected to enhance the energy efficiency of
automobile and therefore increase traveling distances
with same energy. Accordingly, the Group will keep
its customers informed of its new materials and new
technologies, and will keep itself abreast of the latest
market trends in order to provide the best solutions
in the market to its customers. Apart from supplying
high precision auto components, the Group has been
trying to tap into the commercial vehicle market to
provide technical service solutions and component or
system development for commercial vehicles.

In view of the spread of novel coronavirus, the
Group is actively exploring the application of biocide-
free germ-repellent plastic to various fields such as
medical and health care. The biocide-free germ-
repellent plastic is an advanced material technology
without using biocides. Instead of kiling germs, the
biocide-free germ-repellent plastic prevents germs
from adsorbing and colonising on the surface to
avoid cross-transmission of germs when used. This
plastic is proven to be leach-free, non-toxic and will
not give rise to drug-resistant “Superbugs”. The
Group will continue its research and development to
provide innovative and practical solutions to its
customers, and strive to achieve sustainable growth
and continue to be a leading enterprise in the
industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In addition to innovation in materials, the Group has
also devoted itself to advances in technology.
Advanced Out Mold Release (“AOMR”) is an
environmentally-friendly surface finishing technology
to replace passivation and spray painting, which can
reduce the discharge of toxic waste water and
Volatile Organic Compounds (“VOCs”) emission.
AOMR combines the benefits of Micro Arc Oxidation
(“MAQ”) and Out Mold Release (“OMR”) with high
production output, cost effectiveness, good
performance and highly protective coating. AOMR is
also environmentally friendly and has low carbon
emission in manufacture. Leveraging on our capability
in innovation, the Group can fully utilise its strengths
in new material and new technology for industry
upgrade and transformation.

With geo-political tension clouding over China over
the past years, the Group is preparing for disruption
in the manufacturing supply chain in China by trade
disputes with other countries. In order to cope with
such challenges and diversify business risks, the
Group has already started collaborations with local
partners in selected ASEAN countries for production
capability expansion with a view to securing local
support and alternative manufacturing bases outside
China to its customers, while at the same time
expanding its geographical coverage for new
businesses. As for its production in China, the Group
will continue its production upgrade towards Industry
4.0 to achieve a higher level of data analysis for
management decision to further optimise production
efficiency and reduce overheads. The continuous
improvement in the Group’s manufacturing process
would yield more effective cost management and
stronger profitability in the long run.

Despite the challenging business environment, the
Group will continue to pursue a prudent approach to
explore various investment opportunities and new
business lines that are in-line with our business
model, bringing in further synergy to the Group’s
operation and sustaining long-term business growth.
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The Group will closely monitor the impact and
implement necessary measures to mitigate their
effects on the Group’s business, as a result of trade
dispute development and novel coronavirus outbreak.
Technological innovation and advancement will
remain a vital focus of the Group’s future
development, as we strive to uphold our leading
position as a solution provider with expertise in
metal, plastic injection and related areas. On top of
that, strong customer relationships, years of
experiences along with sound business philosophy
will all serve as pillars for a sustainable progression
for the Group and create long term values for
shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had restricted
bank balances as well as bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$264,087,000 (2018:
HK$256,123,000), most of which were denominated
in either US dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.

The interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2019 were all bank loans with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$259,046,000
(2018: HK$324,702,000). All of these borrowings
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (2018: Hong
Kong dollars) and which were primarily subject to
floating interest rates. The bank borrowings with
maturities falling due within one year, in the second
to fifth year with repayment on demand clause and
in the second to the fifth year without repayment on
demand clause amounted to HK$201,532,000,
HK$Nil and HK$57,514,000 respectively (2018:
HK$221,491,000, HK$21,363,000 and
HK$81,848,000 respectively).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the net gearing ratio (a
ratio of the sum of the total bank borrowings less the
pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balances (if
any) and bank and cash balances divided by the
total equity) of the Group was not applicable since
the Group had net cash (pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank balances (if any) and bank and cash
balances less total bank borrowings) of
HK$5,041,000 (2018: net gearing ratio of 7.2%).

As at 31 December 2019, the net current assets of
the Group were approximately HK$351,936,000
(2018: HK$283,103,000), which consisted of current
assets of approximately HK$889,093,000 (2018:
HK$934,389,000) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$537,157,000 (2018:
HK$651,286,000), representing a current ratio of
approximately 1.7 (2018: 1.4).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. As such,
the Group is aware of the potential foreign currency
risk that may arise from the fluctuation of exchange
rates between US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group will closely monitor its overall
foreign exchange exposure with a view to
safeguarding the Group from exchange rate risks.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s banking
facilities were secured by the following assets: (a) all
monies assignment of rental over the property
situated in Hong Kong owned by the Group; (b) a
property situated in Hong Kong owned by the
Group; and (c) corporate guarantees provided by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
approximately 3,500 full-time employees (2018:
4,100). The Group attributes its success to the hard
work and dedication of all staff, therefore, they are
deemed to be the most valuable assets of the
Group. In order to attract and retain high caliber
staff, the Group provides a competitive salary
package, including retirement schemes, medical
benefits and bonuses. The Group’s remuneration
policy and structure are determined based on market
trends, the performance of individual staff as well as
the financial performance of the Group. The Group
has also adopted a share option scheme and a
share award scheme as incentives and rewards for
those qualifying staff who have made contributions to
the Group.

The Group provides regular training courses for
different level of staff and holds various training
programs together with PRC institutes and external
training bodies. Apart from academic and technical
training, the Group also organises different kinds of
recreational activities, including New Year gathering,
various sports competitions and interest groups. The
aim is to promote interaction among staff, establish a
harmonious team spirit and promote a healthy
lifestyle.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, aged 64, founded the Group in 1980
and is the Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lee was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company since 2 June
2007 and is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a director of Precisefull Limited,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Lee is responsible for the formulation of the overall
business strategies of the Group. He has over 40 years of
experience in the die casting industry. Mr. Lee holds a
Master of Science Degree in Materials Engineering from the
Yanshan University in the PRC. He was conferred an
award of Honorary Fellowship and Fellowship of
Management and Business Administration by the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries
and is the Vice Chairman of the Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lee has been
appointed by the Foundry Industry Association,
Guangdong Province as an Expert of the Casting Industry
and is selected for its Expert Database.

Mr. Lee was one of the founding members and was the
Chairman of the Hong Kong Diecasting Association (now
become the Hong Kong Foundry Association (the “HKFA”))
in 1989. He was elected as the first Chairman of the
HKFA and Hong Kong Federation of Innovative
Technologies and Manufacturing Industries (formerly known
as Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal
Industries) in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Mr. Lee is
currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Federation of
Innovation Technologies and Manufacturing Industries, Vice
Chairman of the PRD Council of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries, Shenzhen Division, Managing Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong Federation of Huichow Associations Limited, a
member of the Fourth Industry Training Advisory
Committee of Manufacturing Technology (Tooling, Metals &
Plastics) and a member of Vocational Training Council
Manufacturing Technology Training Board. Mr. Lee is
currently the Rotating Chairman of Die Casting Branch of
the China Foundry Association, Executive Director of the
China Foundry Association, Deputy Director of Semi-Solid
Processing Technologies Specialties Committee,
Technology of Plasticity Branch of Chinese Mechanical
Engineering Society, Managing Vice Chairman of the 4th
General Committee of the Guangdong Foundry Industry
Association, the Vice-Director General of the Guangdong
Mechanical Engineering Association Die Casting Branch.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Mr. Lee is currently the Deputy Director of Sub-committee
4 on Die Casting of National Technical Committee 54 on
Foundry of Standardization Administration of China, the
Deputy Director of the Fifth session of the Die Casting
Technical Committee, Foundry Institution, Chinese
Mechanical Engineering Society and a member of the Light
Alloy Industry Technology Innovative Alliance Expert
Committee of Guangdong Province. Mr. Lee is the
brother-in-law of Ms. Chan So Wah, the executive director
of the Company.

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen, aged 58, joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company on 2 June 2007 and 1 January
2017 respectively. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Wong is also currently the director of
manufacturing of the Group and is responsible for the
Group’s manufacturing activities. Mr. Wong has over 35
years of experience in die design and manufacturing and
the die casting industry. He is an Associate of the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Ms. Chan So Wah, aged 61, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 April 2019. She is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is currently the
director of planning and management of the Group and is
primarily responsible for assisting the Group’s Chairman in
formulating development strategies and the Group’s
business planning. She has over 35 years’ experience in
sales, marketing and management. She holds a master’s
degree in business administration obtained through
distance learning education from the Centenary College in
New Jersey, USA and she is a Fellow of the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries (Die Casting
and Foundry Industry). She is the sister-in-law of Mr. Lee
Yuen Fat, the Chairman of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Professor Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBS, JP, aged 66, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 2 June 2007. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee as well as the nomination
committee of the Company. Professor Sun has over 40
years of experience in the household products
manufacturing industry. Professor Sun was appointed as
Justice of the Peace in July 2003 and was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Special
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Administrative Region Government (“HKSAR Government”)
in July 2006. He had been a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen,
Ningbo & Zhejiang Committee for over 20 years. He is
currently the Honorary President of the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries, Honorary Chairman of The Hong Kong
Exporters’ Association, Honorary Chairman of the Hong
Kong Q Mark Council, the Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association, Chairman of the
ICAC Business Ethics Development Committee, the
Supervising President of Guangdong Overseas Chinese
Enterprises Association and an Adjunct Professor of the
City University of Hong Kong. Professor Sun is currently an
independent non-executive director of Wisdom Education
International Holdings Company Limited (Stock code:
6068), which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He was a non-executive director of China South City
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1668) from September
2009 to July 2017; and an independent non-executive
director of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 3828) from July 2007 to March 2016.

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP, aged 67, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 June 2007. Ir Dr. Lo holds a doctoral degree in
engineering, master’'s degrees in engineering and in
business administration respectively and a bachelor’'s
degree in engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer and
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers. Ir Dr. Lo
was awarded the “Young Industrial Awards of Hong Kong”
and the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection” in
1992, the Medal of Honour of the HKSAR Government in
July 2001, and was appointed as Justice of the Peace by
the HKSAR Government in July 2004. Ir Dr. Lo was also
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star and the Silver Bauhinia
Star in July 2009 and July 2015 by the HKSAR
Government respectively. Ir Dr. Lo is currently a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong, representing the
Engineering functional constituency. He has over 40 years
of experience in the electronic and power supply industry
and is an Adjunct Professor of the City University of Hong
Kong. Ir Dr. Lo is currently an independent non-executive
director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (Stock
code: 8159) which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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EESkEREEAE(E)

Mr. Andrew Look, aged 55, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 16
December 2009. Mr. Look holds a bachelor's degree in
commerce from the University of Toronto, Canada and has
over 30 years of experience in the equity investment
analysis of Hong Kong and China stock markets. From
2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in Union Bank of
Switzerland (“UBS”) as the head of Hong Kong research,
strategy and product. He was rated as the best Hong
Kong strategist and best analyst by the Asiamoney
magazine, a leading monthly financial and capital markets
publication for corporate and finance readers and
investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Mr.
Look is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1446), CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1205) and Union Medical Healthcare Limited (Stock code:
2138), all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director
of TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited (a
company delisted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on
30 September 2016) from September 2010 to September
2016. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (now known as
Affluent Partners Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 1466) and
Cowell e Holdings Inc. (Stock code: 1415) from
September 2014 to December 2016 and from April 2017
to December 2018 respectively.

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong
To Yeung, Frankie), aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11
May 2015. He is the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company. Mr. Kong is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants (the United Kingdom). He has accumulated
over 27 years’ experience in accounting, auditing,
corporate finance and project administration mostly from
Hong Kong listed companies and multinational business
conglomerates. Mr. Kong is currently a consultant of a
company providing company secretarial, risk management
and financial advisory services and is an independent non-
executive director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 720), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung King Kwok, Godfrey sBs, aged 56, joined the
Group in 2019 and is currently the Chief Executive Officer
(*CEQ”) of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
overall management and supervision of the execution of
the overall business strategies of the Group. Mr. Leung
holds a master’s degree in science (urban planning) from
the University of Hong Kong and a bachelor’s degree in
social sciences from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Leung was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in June
2017 by the HKSAR. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked as a manager in various departments within the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council for over 15 years,
and he was appointed as the CEO of Construction
Workers Registration Authority and Director — Workers
Registration of Construction Industry Council from April
2008 to December 2012 and from January 2013 to
October 2013 respectively. Mr. Leung was appointed as
the Under Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development of the HKSAR Government from October
2013 to June 2017.

Dr. Wan Shu Kwan, aged 62, joined the Group in 2018
and is the chief operating officer of the Group. He is
primarily responsible for overall operational management
and execution of business strategies of the Group. Dr.
Wan holds a doctorate degree in engineering from the
University of Huddersfield, the United Kingdom and has
over 35 years of work experience in engineering and
project management.

Mr. Lo Hin Fai, aged 57, joined the Group in 2012 and is
currently the director of finance and corporate strategy of
the Group. He is primarily responsible in overseeing the
Group’s finance, investment, strategic development and
capital market financing activities. Mr. Lo holds a M.B.A
degree in finance, corporate accounting and organisation
from the University of Rochester, USA. He has over 25
years of experience in banking, corporate finance and
investment. Prior to joining the Group, he has served
finance, investment and management functions within both
financial institutions and corporate businesses, working
closely with different multinational and local companies in
Asia, covering mergers and acquisitions, equity and project
investments.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EESkEREEAE(E)

Ir Mr. Chan Sin Wing, aged 47, joined the Group in 2004
and is the director of enterprise development of the Group.
He is primarily responsible for overseeing the research and
development as well as new business development of the
Group. Mr. Chan holds a master degree in industrial
engineering and industrial management and a bachelor
degree in engineering from the University of Hong Kong.
He is currently a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers. Prior to joining the Group, he worked as a
senior consultant of the Hong Kong Productivity Council for
over 9 years.

Mr. Chan Man Fu, aged 48, joined the Group in 2016 and
is currently the financial controller of the Company. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Chan has held senior financial
positions in different listed companies in Hong Kong and
has over 20 years of experience in the areas of audit,
finance and treasury management. He holds a master’s
degree in business administration from the Hong Kong
Baptist University and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ir Mr. Lee Kwok Keung, aged 57, has joined the Group
since 2019 and is the chief technology officer of the
Group. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the
technological research and development of the Group. Mr.
Lee holds a master’s degree in industrial engineering and
a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Engineer, a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and the
Institution of Mechanical Engineers, the United Kingdom.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lee had worked in the
Hong Kong Productivity Council for almost 27 years with
the last seven years being the General Manager in Smart
Manufacturing Division. He has total over 34 years of
experience in engineering and manufacturing technology.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) have
the pleasure in submitting its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting
and plastic injection products and components, which are
mainly sold to customers engaging in the household
products, 3C (communication, computer and consumer
electronics) products, automotive parts and precision
components and trading of lighting products and
housewares. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Company, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that had occurred since the end of the financial
year 2019, as well as indication of likely future
developments in the business of the Group are set out in
the sections “Business Review” on pages 13 to 14,
“Principal Risks and Uncertainties facing the Company” on
page 57 and “Prospects” on pages 14 to 18 of this report
respectively. An analysis using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the sections “Segment Information”
on pages 200 to 204 and “Five-Year Financial Summary”
on page 268 in this report.

As an innovative high-tech enterprise, the Group is
committed to offering one-stop solutions and professional
services to meet the various needs of our customers, while
building an environmentally-friendly corporation that pays
close attention to conserving natural resources. The
management will review the Group’s environmental
practices from time to time and will consider implementing
further ecology friendly measures and practices in the
operation to enhance environmental protection and
sustainability.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESEHRE(AE)

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was
no material non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on
the Group’s business and operations.

The Board recognises that our employees are valuable
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract, motivate and retain our employees. The Board also
regularly reviews the remuneration package of our
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform
to the prevailing market practices. The Board also
recognises that maintaining good relationships with our
customers and suppliers is vital to achieve the Group’s
long-term goals.

Detailed discussions on the environmental policies and
performance, compliance with the relevant local laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group and
the account of the key relationships of the Group with
employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 61 to 95 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and
bonuses, is in line with the local practices where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate. The Group has also
adopted a share option scheme and share award scheme
as incentive and reward for those qualifying staff who have
made contribution to the Group. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company makes recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. It also
reviews and determines the terms of remuneration
packages, the award of bonuses and other compensation
payable to directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s financial performance,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all employees (including the executive
directors of the Company) in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The employees of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable under the
above schemes.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 103.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board had recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Thursday,
18 June 2020. Subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on Monday, 8 June 2020, the final dividend will
be paid on or about Friday, 26 June 2020.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 3 June 2020 to Monday, 8 June 2020,
both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 2 June 2020.
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The register of members will be closed from Monday, 15
June 2020 to Thursday, 18 June 2020, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 June 2020.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 107.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserve available
for distribution amounted to approximately
HK$215,977,000 (2018: HK$248,451,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the Group’s major
customers and suppliers attributable to the Group’s total
sales was as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 36.1%
— five largest customers combined 76.8%
Purchase

— the largest supplier 10.2%
— five largest suppliers combined 33.4%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five
financial years ended 31 December 2019 and assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2015, 2016,
2017, 2018 and 2019 are set out on page 268.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are shown in note 34 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award
scheme described below, the Group has not entered into
any equity-linked agreements during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$55,000 (2018:
HK$185,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities of the Company.
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THE BOARD
The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) (Chairman)
(stepped down as Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 23 July 2019)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Chan So Wah
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2019)

Independent non-executive directors
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok SBs, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie)

The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 21 to 26 of this annual report.

During the year under review, no director resigned from his
office or refused to stand for re-election to his office due
to reasons relating to the affairs of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Lee, Mr. Wong Wing Chuen and Mr. Kong Kai Chuen,
Frankie will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the directors of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance (inclusive of provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries), to which the
Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director and
the controlling shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules, the Board reported the following details
of loan facilities which exist at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report and include covenants requiring specific
performance obligations of the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

0] On 21 December 2018, Ka Shui Manufactory Co.,
Limited (the “Borrower”), the indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a facility
agreement with a bank, under which a term loan
facility for an aggregate amount of up to HK$100
million was extended to the Borrower (the “2018
Facility Agreement”). Any draw-down of the loan
under the said facility would be repayable by eight
quarterly instalments commencing the 15th month
after its own draw-down date. The Borrower may
drawdown the 2018 Facility Agreement for a period
of 18 months from the date of the Facility
Agreement. The 2018 Facility Agreement contains a
specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee, a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and an executive director of the Company,
shall at all times beneficially own (whether directly or
indirectly) not less than 50% of the shareholding and
equity interest in the Borrower and the Company and
maintain management control over both the Borrower
and the Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the 2018 Facility Agreement. If an event
of default under the 2018 Facility Agreement occurs
and is not remedied in accordance with the terms of
the Facility Agreement, the bank may (among other
things) cancel its further commitments under Facility
Agreement, and/or declare that all or part of the
loans together with accrued interests under the 2018
Facility Agreement would become immediately due
and payable.
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On 22 September 2017, the Borrower entered into
the facility agreement with a bank comprising the
following facilities up to an overall limit of HK$160
million to the Borrower (the “First Facility
Agreement”). On 30 November 2018, the Borrower
and the bank agreed to revise the First Facility
Agreement (the “Revised First Facility Agreement”).
Under the Revised First Facility Agreement:

(@)  Trade related facility and revolving loan facility
up to an aggregate maximum amount of
HK$80 million, with a sub-limit of () HK$20
million for the revolving loan facility; (i) HK$40
million for the aggregate outstanding amount
for the utilisation of import invoice financing by
PRC value added tax invoices; (i) HK$10
million for the aggregate outstanding amount of
letter of guarantee/standby letter of credit; and
(iv) a treasury credit limit up to HK$5 million for
the purpose of hedging the Borrower’s foreign
exchange rate, shall be made available. The life
of these facilities are not specified, but is
subject to the bank’s overriding right of
repayment on demand; and

(o) Term loan facility of HK$40 million remains
unchanged. The purpose of the 2nd TL Facility
is to finance the Group’s working capital
expenditures with a loan period of 36 months
from the date of the 2nd TL Facility being
made available.

The Revised First Facility Agreement contains a
specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee, a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and an executive director of the Company,
shall remain as the single largest shareholder of the
Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the Revised First Facility Agreement. If
an event of default under the Revised First Facility
Agreement occurs, liabilities payable under the
Revised First Facility Agreement and the relevant
security documents shall become immediately due
and payable.
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)

(iv)

On 2 January 2015, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to finance the Group’s
capital expenditures for a term loan facility up to
HK$150 million consisting of two tranches, both
repayable by sixteen equal quarterly instalments
commencing the 15th month after the first utilisation
date. The facility agreement contains a specific
performance obligation that Mr. Lee must at all times
maintain substantial shareholdings (directly or
indirectly) interest in the Borrower. A breach of the
aforesaid specific performance obligation will
constitute an event of default under the facility
agreement. If an event of default under the facility
agreement occurs, the bank may terminate the
facility agreement and liabilities payable under the
facility agreement and the relevant security
documents shall become immediately due and
payable.

On 20 June 2017, the Borrower entered into the
facility agreement with a bank to finance its working
capital for a term loan facility up to HK$130 million
repayable by 36 months after the first utilisation date.
The facility agreement contains a specific
performance obligation that Mr. Lee (including shares
under his family trust) must maintain as the major
shareholder (with at least 50% shareholding) of the
Company. A breach of the aforesaid specific
performance obligation will constitute an event of
default under the facility agreement. If an event of
default under the facility agreement occurs, the bank
may terminate the facility agreement and liabilities
payable under the facility agreement and the relevant
security documents shall become immediately due
and payable.

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of
any circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure
obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18
of the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2019 and as at
the date of this report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 to
9 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in the Rules
Governing the Listing on Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity

S

Executive Directors

iz zRE

Approximate
percentage of
interest in
the Company
XA ER
BHERL

Number of
Shares

i3 88

WITES
Mr. Lee Interest in controlled company! 480,000,000 53.71%
FhE R QRO
Founder of a discretionary 127,980,000 14.32%
trust®
PREFEZ A AR
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen Beneficial owner 11,050,000 1.24%
EokBREAE BEnEA A
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BIUAFBITES
Mr. Andrew Look Beneficial owner 8,800,000 0.98%
B 5R SR A& EnfEAB A
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBs, MH, JP Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.11%

E & H 18 tss, MH, JP

Notes:

A

EDBEAA

Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull Limited
(“Precisefull”). As such, Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling
interest in Precisefull and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
interests of Precisefull in the Company.

The 127,980,000 shares, in which 77,980,000 shares and
50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful Crystal Development
Limited (“Beautiful Crystal”’) and Beautiful Colour Assets Limited
(“Beautiful Colour”) respectively (both companies are wholly-owned
by YF Lee Family Trust). YF Lee Family Trust is a discretionary trust
set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC (Jersey) Limited (“UBS
TC”) as trustee on 20 February 2014. The discretionary objects are
family members of Mr. Lee. Mr. Lee is the settlor of YF Lee Family
Trust and is deemed to be interested in the 127,980,000 shares
held by Beautiful Crystal and Beautiful Colour under the SFO.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none
of the directors and chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 to 9 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code in the Listing Rules. In addition, save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons, other
than the directors or chief executives of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 to 5 of Part XV of the SFO or, who were,
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company, or which were required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity

S

Precisefull Beneficial ownert"
EmEA A
Beautiful Crystal Beneficial owner®
EmERAR
Beautiful Colour Beneficial owner®
EmEAA®
UBS TC Trustee®
ZFEA®
Notes:
1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull. As such,

Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest in Precisefull and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of Precisefull in
the Company.

2. 77,980,000 shares and 50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful
Crystal and Beautiful Colour respectively (both companies are wholly
owned by YF Lee Family Trust). The YF Lee Family Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC as
trustee on 20 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were
aware of any other persons (other than the directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 to 5 of Part
XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company, or which were
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein.

iz zRE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of interest in
Shares the Company
X AT LS

K& E BsE Rt
480,000,000 53.71%
77,980,000 8.73%
50,000,000 5.59%
127,980,000 14.32%

Wiz -

1. F St R B Precisefull 2 #F B B ITIRAS « B UL - F 4
WAR B A Precisefull (&l M #E % - WE R AR
Precisefull T #% B M AR A 7 4 ©

2. Beautiful Crystal &2 Beautiful Colour% 5l# 74 77,980,000
1250,000,0008% f& 5 + b5 A F1FAYF Lee Family Trust
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme the (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by ordinary resolution of shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 19 May 2017.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to selected eligible persons for their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
remain valid until 18 May 2027 and each option will be
granted at a consideration for HK$10.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme may include
directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, advisors and
contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme. In addition, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes involving the issue or grant of share options by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options already granted or to be granted to
each participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant should
not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the
date of such grant. Any grant of further options above this
1% limit shall be subject to approval of the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings, with such participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
89,376,140 shares, representing 10.0% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Board at the time of the offer of grant,
and must expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant. There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which an option must be held or the
performance targets which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for any share under the Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the Board
and will be not less than the highest of:

0] the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a
business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of
a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

(i) the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.

There were no options granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 19 May 2017.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 10 January 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) under which the shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected persons to
recognise the contributions by certain employees and
persons to the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme will be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on the Adoption Date until 9 January
2023.

The participants of the Share Award Scheme may include
executives, officers, employees, directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiary, any business or joint venture
partner, investor, consultant, adviser or agent of any
member of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Administration Committee in
accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme
and the terms of the Trust Deed.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
select the eligible persons for participation in the Share
Award Scheme and determine the number of shares to be
awarded. Shares will be acquired by an independent
trustee at the cost of the Company or shares will be
allotted to the independent trustee under the general
mandate granted or to be granted by the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings from time to time and
be held in trust for the awarded persons until the end of
each vesting period. Vested shares will be transferred at
no cost to the awarded persons.

Where any Awarded Shares are proposed to be offered to
a connected person of the Company (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), such offer of Awarded
Shares has to be first approved by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company and the Company will
comply with the applicable requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of such offer (including but not
limited to the obtaining of independent Shareholders’
approval if necessary).
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Based on the 890,435,400 Shares in issue as at the
adoption date, the maximum number of Awarded Shares
under the Share Award Scheme would be 44,521,770
shares and the maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to an awarded person under the Share Award
Scheme would be 8,904,354 shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no Awarded
Share was granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company had any interest in
any competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of Mr. Lee
and Precisefull (the controlling shareholders (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company) has
provided a written confirmation, which has been reviewed
and confirmed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, confirming that they have complied with
the terms of a Deed of Non-competition entered into
between them and the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules,
based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions are set
out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
Save for the purchase of machinery and machinery parts
from and maintenance cost to a related company, Chit
Shun Machinery Limited, in prior years, the related party
transactions set out therein do not fall within the definition
of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. After the outbreak of novel coronavirus in early 2020,
the Group has taken and is continuing to implement
a series of precautionary and control measures. The
Group had gradually resumed its manufacturing
operations since mid-February 2020. Given that the
impact of the novel coronavirus outbreak on the
Group and its customers remains uncertain, the
Group is not yet able to accurately evaluate its
impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results as at the date of this
announcement. The Group will closely monitor to the
development of the novel coronavirus epidemic and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group. The Group will take
appropriate measures as necessary and will make
further announcements in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

2. On Thursday, 23 April 2020, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share (2018: HK3.5 cents per
share) for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 18 June
2020. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Monday, 8 June 2020, the
final dividend will be paid on or about Friday, 26
June 2020.

AUDITOR

At the last annual general meeting of the Company, RSM
Hong Kong was re-appointed as the auditor of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statement has been audited by
RSM Hong Kong who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

The Company will propose a resolution in relation to the
re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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OTHER CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Other change in directors’ information for the year ended
31 December 2019 is set out below:

1. Mr. Andrew Look, an independent non-executive
director of the Company, resigned as the Chief
Investment Officer of the asset management business
of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (Stock code:
850), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 3 July 2019.

Save as the information disclosed above, there is no
change in directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2020

EFERNRMRE

BE-Z-NE+-A=+—ALFENESE
HEMBEHIIMT -

1. ARRZBIFPTEFERALENR-F
—NFLAZBBRERBEBRIA LR
AREEEEEARLA (B : 850)
CEEEREBERREMRE -

B ENHEBEERIN METRNESEE LA
Bi%k TR BIE1351BIVEZRE TIHE -

EEEGD
FEE
2

E8 —ZETFMNA=-+=H




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
believes that good corporate governance practices are
essential for promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
and reviews its corporate governance practices on a
regular basis.

With the above in mind, the Company has applied the
principles and adopted corporate governance practices as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in its corporate governance. In accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and also to
enhance its corporate governance practices, the Company
has also adopted a number of corporate governance
policies, including but not limited the board diversity policy,
the shareholders’ communication policy, the director
nomination policy and the dividend policy.

Save for the matters discussed in the paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” in this section, for
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board is of the
view that Company is in compliance with all the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code, which is explained in the
relevant paragraphs below.

THE BOARD

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall business strategies, monitoring and
evaluating its operating and financial performance and
reviewing the corporate governance standard of the
Company. The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are all led by the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board has
delegated a series of responsibilities to the senior
management of the Company, which include the
implementation of decisions of the Board, the coordination
and direction of day-to-day operation and management of
the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating
and monitoring the production and operating plans and
budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control
systems. The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprises seven
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)
(stepped down as Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 23 July 2019)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Chan So Wah
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Sun Kai Lit Cliff, BBS, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok, SBS, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie)

Biographical details of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) as at the date of this report are set out on
pages 21 to 26 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other as at 31
December 2019.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
confirmed in writing his independence from the Company
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On this
basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

All the independent non-executive Directors were
appointed for a term of two years and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions
of the Articles of Association of the Company. To further
strengthen the standard of corporate governance, the
Company follows the CG Code and requires any re-
appointment of an independent non-executive Director who
has served on the Board for over nine years to be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
In such cases, the Board will set out in the annual report
or circular the reasons why it considers such Director to
continue to be independent and should be re-elected.
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The Board conducts four regular scheduled meetings a
year on a quarterly basis generally and ad hoc meetings
are convened when circumstances require. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of
Board meetings are circulated to all Directors for
comments. Minutes of Board meetings with details of
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached
are kept by the Company Secretary and open for
inspection by the Directors.

During the year, four Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held and details of attendance of
Directors are set out in the table on page 54 of this
annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)
should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Currently, the roles of chairman and CEO
of the Company are separate and are not performed by
the same individual.

After the appointment of Mr. Leung King Kwok, Godfrey
sSBS (“Mr. Leung”) as the CEO of the Company with effect
from 23 July 2019, Mr. Lee stepped down from his role as
the CEO of the Company on the same date but he
remains as an executive director and the chairman of the
Board. Through Mr. Leung’s appointment, the Company
has recompiled with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code. Mr. Lee, the chairman of the Company, is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board while Mr. Leung, the CEO of the Company, is
responsible for the overall management and supervision of
the execution of the overall business strategies of the
Group.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE DIRECTORS
The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage
on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the
Group’s business. The Company reviews the extent of
insurance coverage on an annual basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices, applicable regulatory regimes and the business
development of the Group. To keep abreast of the
responsibilities of the Directors and infuse them with new
knowledge, an in-house seminar was conducted during the
year and all Directors attended the seminar. Apart from
what the Company had arranged, some of the Directors
also attended other external training seminars.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in June
2007. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s financial reports, make
recommendations on the appointment, removal and
remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and
audit-related services, supervise the Company’s internal
financial reporting procedures and management policies,
review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems as well as the internal audit function, and
other duties under the CG code. The Audit Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as
Kong To Yeung, Frankie), Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 8BS,
JP, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, Jp and Mr. Andrew Look
and is chaired by Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly
known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie), a qualified accountant
with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls.

During 2019, the Audit Committee held two meetings to
review the interim and annual results of the Group, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group,
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function
and to make recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of the auditors of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up in June 2007 and
is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
the composition of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed change to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The members of the Nomination Committee are
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS,
MH, JP, Mr. Andrew Look and Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie). Professor
Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JpP is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During 2019, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of an executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company, and also review the
structure, size and the composition of the Board and the
Company’s board diversity policy.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) as required by the CG Codes
which sets out selection criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorships. The Nomination Committee
shall consider various factors, including but not limited to
objectives of nomination committee, the character and
integrity, qualifications, ability and independency
requirements of the selecting candidates, the board
diversity policy and the needs of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall evaluate and assess
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship based
on the selection criteria upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director. It may engage external
service provider(s) as it considers appropriate in making the
determination and recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship. The Nomination
Committee shall also evaluate candidates based on the
selection criteria to determine whether such candidate that
is nominated by a shareholder is qualified and appropriate
for election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company.
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The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the selection criteria. The Board, with
the recommendation from Nomination Committee, shall
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect of
the proposed re-election of the retiring director at the
general meeting. The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the
Director Nomination Policy from time to time and may
adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant time.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) as required by the Listing Rules
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises that increasing diversity at
the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity when selecting candidates from a number of
perspectives through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness as appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
June 2007. The major duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management. It also reviews and
determines the terms of remuneration packages, the award
of bonuses and other compensation payable to individual
Directors and senior management with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration
Committee consists of Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP,
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP, Mr. Andrew Look and Mr.
Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie). The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Professor Sun Kai Lit, CIiff BBS, JP, an
independent non-executive director.
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During 2019, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings to approve the remuneration of an executive
director and the chief executive officer of the Company.

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management (excluding directors) by band for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
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HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001/ 7 — 1,000,000/ 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 — 1,500,0005%8 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t — 2,000,000/ T 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions with the following duties:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on changes and updating;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS HEEE
A summary of attendance of Board meetings, committee TEREIWR=ZZE-NFEELEZL ZEELH
meetings and general meetings in 2019 are detailed in the ERERECEFEERFHE -

following table:

Number of attendance/Number of meetings
HERY, EHERY

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual

Committee Committee Committee General

Board meeting meeting i Meeting
meeting B & =R
ZEEER ZEEEH ' BEXE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 4/4 - — — 11
FRELE

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 4/4 - — — 11
Ms. Chan So Wah" 3/3 - - — 11
REELZLO

Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BUERITES
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
HRZ %8BS, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok sBS, MH, JP 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
[E{F B8 L sBS, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
BER L4
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
(formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie)

TRNER % & (BITTIE)
Note: it
1. Ms. Chan So Wah was appointed as an executive director of the 1. REZLLTREZERRAANNTESE  R_T—hF
Company with effect from 1 April 2019. PmA—HAER -
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The statement of the
external auditor of the Company in relation to their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 96 and 102.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to safeguard
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ investments. The
systems of risk management and internal control of the
Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives and only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfiling its role
in reviewing the Group’s financial, operational and
compliance controls and reviewing the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
procedures on the continuing connected transactions.

The management assists the Board regularly in the
implementation of the Group’s policies, procedures and
limits within the Board’s approved risk appetite by
identifying and assessing the risks faced and monitoring
the design and operation of the relevant internal control
measures to mitigate and control these risks.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERERHRSE(R)

During the year, the Group has engaged an external
independent professional firm to review its internal control
system covering all relevant financial, operational and
compliance control functions within an established
framework. Reports prepared by this firm are submitted to
the Audit Committee of the Company twice a year for
review to ensure that an effective and adequate internal
control system is in place.

The Group has also engaged an independent professional
consultant to identify, evaluate, manage and prioritise the
significant risks exposed to the Group through reviewing
the implemented system and procedures, including areas
covering financial, operational and legal compliance
controls and risk management functions. In addition, the
Group has adopted a risk management policy which
contains a structured approach to risk management and a
risk-based three-year internal audit plan was introduced
through restructuring of internal control system in order to
address the significant risks identified and assessed by the
Group.

During the year, the Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems through the Audit Committee and the outsourced
internal auditor. The scope of review was previously
determined and approved by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems are adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the code provisions on
internal control and risk management of the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

Business Risk

Political tension and trade disputes between the United
States and China resulting in the increased tariff imposed
on manufacturing exports from China had certain impact
on our business and the affected customers in the United
States placed pressure on our selling prices. The signing of
phase one of the Economic and Trade Agreement between
the United States and China in January 2020 seems to
alleviate the pressure temporarily. However, after the
outbreak of novel coronavirus in early 2020, resumption of
operations after Chinese New Year was delayed as a result
of the Chinese government’s response to control the
spread of the novel coronavirus and hence the supply
chain in the PRC was interrupted for a certain period. The
Group will closely monitor the development of the
aforesaid issues and evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group, and to
implement stringent cost control measures and to make
necessary adjustments to its strategies and operations so
as to mitigate their effects to the Group and our
customers.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in US
dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. As such, the
Group is aware of the potential foreign currency risk that
may arise from the fluctuation of exchange rates between
US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Group
will closely monitor its overall foreign exchange exposure
with a view to safeguarding the Group from exchange rate
risks.

Competition Risk

Competition risk arises from the emergence of a number of
competitors in the industry. Price cut from competitors
intensifies the risk. The Group believes that the provision
of quality products and after sales service to customers
are the only way to gain and maintain customer
confidence and loyalty.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREREE (E)

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the
Group is strictly controlled to avoid unauthorised use of
inside information. All staff are required to sign the
employee confidentiality agreement and access to inside
information is restricted to employees on a need to-know
basis. In addition, the Group has adopted an inside
information policy to set out the procedures of inside
information identification, reporting and disclosure. The
Group will review the effectiveness of the policy from time
to time to ensure the compliance of the relevant regulatory
requirements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total auditor’'s remuneration in relation to statutory
audit work and non-audit services of the Group payable to
the Company’s external independent auditor, RSM Hong
Kong, is set out as follows:

EEREMABEENEFREZER

AEEBEENEERBMAEEARTHEE - A
BERAERBERANREE - IBETIHRFER
EREBREHZ LR E TIRAMNEERETAR
HE - BE  AEBECDRANE BB BRASIE
AEHEER - mERBERT - AREHTE
WA ERREFNAERNE  NERETHBARER

Eo

AN 2 B &
AEBERN TINEBL ZBENERX GRS
FrBRAE B MIFE IR BEI N S 20 T

2019 2018

—E—hEF —E—N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FETT

Statutory audit ETE B 1,800 1,770

Non-audit services!” EEZRBED 357 353

Total @ 2,157 2,123

Note: HtaE -

1. Non-audit services mainly include agreed-upon procedures on interim 1. FBEEREEEOREPHEBEZOTRRF R E AR

results and tax advisory services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Company. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company Secretary has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), provided that the declaration and
payment of dividend shall remain to be recommended by
the Board and any final dividend for the financial year will
be subject to shareholders’ approval.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, among other things, the Company’s current and
future operations, corporate development plans, liquidity
position, capital requirements and future expected capital
needs, as well as dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates. Any payment of the dividend
by the Company is also subject to any requirements under
the Cayman Islands law, the Listing Rules of Stock
Exchange and the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the
relevant time as part of its commitment to maximizing
shareholder value, taking into consideration the financial
performance of the Company and market conditions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening extraordinary general
meeting on requisition

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, an extraordinary general meeting may be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREREE (E)

Procedure for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s office in
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at the general meeting regarding
any specified business and its supporting documents.

Shareholders’ enquiries

The Company has a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to enable shareholders to engage actively with the
Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an
informed manner. The Board will review Shareholders’
Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company’s Shareholders Communication Policy has
set out, amongst other things, shareholders should direct
their questions in relation to their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar. Shareholders may make a
request by writing to the Company Secretary for the
Company’s information to the extent that such information
is publicly available. Shareholders may also send written
enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong office at Room A,
29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (“Ka Shui” or the
“Company”) is delighted to publish its environmental, social
& governance (“ESG”) report, covering the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The report focuses the ESG management approaches,
environmental and social performance of the Company and
its major manufacturing facilities (collectively, the “Group”)
in Guangdong Province, the PRC, as listed below:

—  Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“‘Ka
Fung”)

— Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“Ka Yi”)

— Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“Ka Shui
Technology”)

It covers the principal operations of the Company — die
casting and plastic injection. The reporting scope is in line
with the 2018 ESG report which was included in 2018
Annual Report of the Company.

REPORTING STANDARD

The report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Comply or Explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It has been reviewed and
approved by the board of directors of the Company. The
board of directors has acknowledged its responsibility to
oversee the Company’s sustainable development and
review the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
ESG report.

CONTACT AND FEEDBACK

The Group values your feedback and opinion on this report
or our sustainability performance. If you have any
comments or suggestions, please feel free to contact us
via enquiry@kashui.com.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
Biz - #2RERKRE (H)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND BEHhESEEEEMHTM

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Ka Shui always gives top priority to stakeholder interests EhEELEEREFBNEMNR TERMMOHE
and value their view as we believe that the participation of B HAARRMRAFNENZEYMEN SRS
stakeholders is crucial for corporate social responsibility ([PEMEEEDMNERELRE HgHERE
(“CSR”) implementation and continued success in ESG BNHERNEHEEE - BTHBFDENRHEL
management. To understand our stakeholders’ insights and BEEE BMEETHHELEEY - NIET
concerns, we have conducted the stakeholder engagement FERMER BMeBBESEEERMMFE
exercise. After identifying our key stakeholders, we BB EWMEHER  RMBEBAERINEBE
communicate with them on an ongoing basis through TERFMNE NBEREZER -FHEL2EPEZR
various channels. During the Reporting Period, we have FINR

engaged our key stakeholders, both internal and external,
to hear their voices. The summary of stakeholder
engagement is presented below:

Communication channel

Types of stakeholder group

BixEHEMNER RERE
Investors and shareholders . Company website A &) #8 1k
HEERBR . Company’s announcements 2 & A

e Annual general meeting ¢ IAF A&
. Annual and interim reports 4 ¥ & &1 B R &

Customers . Company website 2 &) 48 ik
=P . Customer satisfaction surveys & FmEE AT
. Customer service hotlines & P IR 7% Eh 43

4

Employees o Training and orientation 3l %8 & % 3l
== . Intranet Ay 43
. Opinion box & 7.4
. Annual appraisal £ & :FH
. Relationship building activities 337 B &8I SE &)
e Whistle-blowing mechanism £2 37 # i

AR

Suppliers and business partners . Monthly and annual assessments A & & F € 71 1f
e M E TG Tendering and procurement processes AIE & B 7 12

Non-governmental organizations

EEGEER

Communities
'

Media
o]

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2019

Charity donations Z Z 183k
Voluntary services & TAR7E

Company website 2 7] 48k
Community activities it [& 5 &

Company website 2 &) 483k
Company’s announcements A &) A




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Stage 1
F—PEER

|dentify and map a
list of ESG topics
BB K bl — F5IR

HodEgREARTE

®  |dentify key stakeholder
group
BRI EBFNEER

N

To identify material sustainability-related topics to Ka Sui,
we have conducted a materiality assessment by means of
online survey which consists of 27 ESG topics, covering
areas in operational practices, employment, environmental
protection and community investment. Stakeholders are
invited to rate the importance of those topics from the
stakeholder and business perspective. Based on the
materiality of each of the ESG issues expressed by the
stakeholders, the ESG topics are prioritised and shown in
the materiality assessment matrix below:

Medium Priority
hEERF

HEMENEEM

Significance to Stakeholders

o
© O
e@

o0
ﬁ{\% Priorit%y @

e Conduct stakeholder

engagement exercise

ETHNEZREE

./

Bz - #2RERHRE(H)

Prioritise the most
material ESG topics
through material
assessment
BABENTAETE
BE - HEEEREE
BENNER

e Review the result of
material assessment
for ESG report

disclosure and ESG

performance
improvement in future

ARG MHBEREAR

EH B EIE R E

RIREVIRIE ~ A&

ERRBAMENEE

MRHEE AR

RERBER AR EERABNEZEE - BN
WLABSHTRNETEZUFNMGE  EPEFE27ER
B OMEHERIE REZEER BE ®E
RERMRTEERD - FHHEBLBRT D EMEH
AEFEZEFIENERN - ARXFNEMTER
BodeREAEENEEE  SAERE HEH
ERATEGUBEEERT  ERATHEEER
fHAEfEH 27 -

High Priority
mELRF

0%
0 °°8°

00990@

REBEIRF
Medium Priority

Significance to the Group’s Business & Operation

HAKEMEXBEREBENEEMY

63—
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Biz - #2RERKRE (H)

. Environment IRiE

We prioritised those ESG topics into 3 categories: high,
better strategic planning and
resource allocation. The issues which fell in the upper right
corner of the matrix were defined as the topics that matter

me

Air emission

RASHERR

Greenhouse gas emissions
BE RN

Climate change

R Z 1L

Energy efficiency

BE IR A

Water & effluents
VNSSEFIN

Use of materials
WHE A

Waste management
REY)E B

Environmental compliance
REEH

dium and low, for

‘ Employment #t %

9 Labour rights
& THE]

10 Labour-management relations
BITERBER

11 Employee retention
EERBME

12 Diversity and equal opportunity
Sl FEKE

13 Non-discrimination
R Z AR

14 Occupational health and safety
BERRERLZSE

15 Employee training
1E B35k

16 Employee development
EBE#R

17 Prevention of child labour &
forced labour
FEETIR®EET

’ Community #E

27 Community support
e E

most on the Group’s business operation and concerned by
our stakeholders.

‘ Operation &3i&

18 Customer satisfaction
BEPWER

19 Customer service quality and
complaints handling
BEPREE Z R RFEIE

20 Customer health and safety
BEFRERZE

21 Marketing and product and service
labelling compliance
LBHARERERBEES R

22 Intellectual property rights
HBERE

23 Customer privacy and data
protection
BEELERBBRRE

24 Responsible supply chain
management
BEENHERER

25 Business ethics
EEER

26 Socio-economic compliance
HEKEEER

BABZSRE t@RBE A TBRELRTE
DHRZE " PRE - REETEFOEER
RERAE - A L ANBEERRE/ER
SEXBLERABRAENERSBINEE -




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

OUR SUSTAINABILITY APPROACH

As a leading one-stop service provider specialised in zinc,
magnesium and aluminium alloys die casting, and plastic
injection moulding for 40 years, Ka Shui recognises CSR
as an integral part of our business sustainability and
success. Responding to the call of the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development, Ka Shui is committed to
contributing our efforts in achieving the Sustainable
Development Goals (“SDGs”) as well.

Striving to develop a more strategic corporate governance
framework, conduct business activities in highest standard
of business ethics and embed socially responsible
management practices throughout the Group, we have
formulated the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Statement, endorsed by the Chairman of Ka Shui Group.
In line with our core values — “pursuit of excellence,
creation of values, unity and mutual trust, harmonious
development, green production and giving back to the
community”, it is a group-wide policy implemented at all
levels of staff.

We focus on four key areas to foster the well-being of our
employees, customers, environment and community
through leveraging our technology, innovation and
expertise. Guided by this management framework, we
incorporate these corporate values with positive impacts
into our day-to-day operations.
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A Responsible Producer B &84 E R

Uphold the highest standards of governance with core ethical values
FERSBERERROEEBES

Integrate sustainability concepts into our product designs

KA HEERESBARMNERRF

Invest in new technology research and development

BRE R

Take environmental and social considerations in managing our supply chain
TEBRMHHEERZERENAEREE

A Responsible Employer £&H{EE

Foster a dynamic, supportive and safe workplace for our people
REMNEIZE—ERNESN  XBERTE2HIESH

Ensure our employee practices are strictly abided by local labour laws and regulations, and international
standards such as SA8000 Standard
HREMNESITRABRKETE S TEAEER KBIFRRAE - fIi1SAS0001F £
Support employee wellness and family obligations

XHEERERREERE

Treat our people fairly with no discrimination

PERRI A TFEHSFRMHNET

Offer diversified programmes for employees’ growth and advancement
REHESEANFENEEREENRLER

Responsible for Our Environment ¥ B & H

=

Improve and refine our environmental management system
HERTERMANRREERR

Maximise energy and natural resources efficiency
RERSHEREBARE RN

Achieve low-carbon manufacturing

B E

Minimise negative impact on the environment
BAOBREHNEETE

2 e
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Bz - #2RERHRE(H)

Responsible for Our Community ##E&&

Make positive contributions to the community
A4t @ IE T & R

Focus on supporting local education projects for youth development

BN FEEFERNOMEERAB

Collaborate with local charities on poverty and disaster relief initiatives

EEWERERBAIFETRE RRTH

RESPONSIBLE PRODUCER

EENLEED

“Respecting people, honouring customers, fostering innovation, and supporting continuous improvement”

[UARBE UERBE  BIFEBIFTRIGFENZE]

We firmly believe conducting business ethically and
creating sustainable values for our customers and the
community are the keys to guide us through the
evolving business world. In addition to complying
with all applicable laws and regulations during our
operation, we strive to pursue excellence in our
businesses.
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Product Responsibility
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Ka Shui upholds excellence in products as its top
priority. To satisfy customers’ expectations and to
build trust, we have established robust internal
control processes with reference to international and
industry-specific standards, as well as customers’
requirements. Our manufacturing facility, Ka Shui
Technology, is certified with ISO 9001:2015 and
IATF 16949:2016 Quality Management System.

Internal and external audits are performed to ensure
full compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
Corrective and preventive procedures are in place to
handle any product non-conformity to our quality
standards. All of our employees are devoted to
working according to their job responsibilities defined
in the Group Quality Policy and do the best to
satisfy our customers. We are also committed to
providing accurate and complete information about
our products and services, marketing, advertising
and labelling to protect the interests of our
customers.
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e Provision of adequate training to our employees
RETRHFTEHEIN

e Advance planning to prevent occurrence of quality matters
RATETEIART I B R 4

e Good relationship with our customers and suppliers
%P K R R AR

e Continuous improvement on customer satisfaction
TEHREEPRER

In addition, we have an ISO/IEC17025 accredited
Research and Development (“R&D”) laboratory, which
is specialised in research and testing of high
performance nonferrous light alloy. With the
laboratory, authoritative testing services, such as
mechanical testing, photoelectric property testing,
hazardous substances testing, are available to offer
effective technical supports for product quality
control.

We ensure our products do not impose any safety or
health issues by identifying and evaluating risk factors
of our services and products; and thus effectively
controlling those risks. All raw materials and ancillary
products procured should be complied with industrial
and international standards such as the Restriction
on Hazardous Substances Directive (“RoHS”) and the
Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction
of Chemicals (“REACH”), as well as customers’
requirements. Suppliers are required to declare that
all products supplied to Ka Shui conform to the
requirements of REACH and RoHS. If our products
are found to have any safety or health issues, we will
recall the products immediately and stop the related
production. We will also carry out a comprehensive
investigation in order to avoid similar occurrence in
the future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising
and labelling matters of products and services in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

“E-NFFR e RHBIRERBRAF

AN - B9 A — [E&1S1SO/IEC1702558
FRHERAE((HEDERE  EF9UHE
BHEEEEESSNIFRLAR - HME
B E R ER MR - S E RO
BEMERISEBERIRY  BED®D
BETIRHE RN M IE -

T APTIE B Rl Ko Y A AR 75 B E m Y R X
Z BRERTEBEREARZENEERE
2 emABIEHIZERR - FFERBHR
RN B B E m B 1 & T3 R B AR 2E (1
mEREENERES ((ERAEENE
R AR B fm ek il 5P RERE
SRR (MEBmaEf 6 XEER
HHDAREFPER - HEBARAMAEHR
JET BRI EMI T A Bmatft - 71
REMRGIMEREEWERBINENR -
HWHERERAEARZ2HEERE - HMA
# SZ BD Bl W EE an R AR LE B REAEE LN -
B ETEERAE  ABRRERELE
(CEEE

RBREME  AEBY THNBEMENE
R BAE B B AP B K B B am M AR 7% e 62 B %
Zr BEEMBEEREEABNERNER

(EDA

69—



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Biz - #2RERKRE (H)

Ethical Business

Ka Shui upholds the principle of “Compliance,
Integrity, Fairness, and Anti-corruption” seriously. We
hold a zero tolerance attitude towards any form of
bribery. With the strong commitment of conducting
business ethically and responsibly, all employees are
strictly prohibited from receiving, directly or indirectly,
any form of benefits such as presents and money,
which are stated clearly in our Group Anti-Corruption
Policy and Staff Handbook.

We also require our business partners and suppliers
to follow our strict rules on anti-corruption, which are
detailed in our Code of Conduct and Group Anti-
Corruption Policy. We require all suppliers to follow
the content stated in the declaration of integrity;
otherwise, they will be blacklisted and may be
subject to legal prosecution.

Whistle-blowing mechanism is also established for
reporting any suspected or actual events of
misconduct and malpractices. Staff and our business
partners are encouraged to report anonymously
through suggestion box, email, QQ or by face-to-
face communication. The identity of the whistle-
blower and the reporting details are kept highly
confidential to protect the whistle-blower from
reprisal. Having received any reporting case, we
promise to handle the issue timely and fairly through
investigation within three working days.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
There was no legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or our employees.
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Intellectual Property Rights

We understand the importance of intellectual property
(“IP”) (trademarks, patents, technologies and
copyrights etc.) to business. Therefore, we strictly
adhere to our confidentiality policy, by clearly
specifying in our Staff Handbook and the
employment contract. We have set up strict working
procedures for our staff to follow when handling
confidential and sensitive information. Adequate
training on IP right protection is also organised for all
employees to strictly follow all the rules and
regulations, striving to best protect the Group and
our customers’ interests.

In addition to protecting our own rights, we also
value and respect the rights of other personnel and
parties. We will not use third party’s IP in our
business without prior authorisation.

Customer Satisfaction and Privacy

We strive to deliver the best product and experience
to our customers by listening to our customer
feedback closely and satisfy their expectations. To
keep abreast of customer needs, we conduct
customer satisfaction surveys twice a year to help us
understand how our customers perceive our
products and services. Survey results are then
analysed for continuous improvement. In case of any
dissatisfaction or return of product from customers,
we will investigate the reasons and set up
improvement plans on our production and service.
Constant follow-up procedures are implemented to
prevent recurrence of the same deficiency.

In addition, we take customer privacy seriously. Strict
rules are set up to ensure proper handling of any
confidential information of clients and the Group.
Clear guidelines and procedures are in place to
regulate how to collect and handle customers’
information. Only authorised staff can access and
handle the information for operational purposes. We
also sign confidentiality and non-disclosure
agreements with our clients to protect all customers’
confidential business information and product
information.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to privacy matters of products
and services in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Supplier Management

We have been maintaining a long-term relationships
with our suppliers. In order to deliver high quality
products to our customers, we strive to convey our
CSR values along the supply chain to align with our
standards and requirements.
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When selecting new suppliers, they are required to
go through a thorough supplier assessment which
consists of not only criteria linked to product quality,
but also a wide range of CSR-related aspects, such
as environmental protection, occupational health and
safety (“OHS”), intellectual property rights, privacy,
and labour standard and welfare. To meet raising
customer expectations and demands, we have
developed detailed policies and procedures to
effectively manage the product quality of our
suppliers through the monthly and annual
performance assessments based on product quality,
delivery time, customer complaint (if any) and other
CSR-related aspects. Our production site at Ka Yi is
certified with 1ISO 28000:2007 Supply Chain Security
Management System for the manufacture of die-
casting product.
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Apart from managing our suppliers, we also look
closely at the ethicality of our procurement activities.
For example, we do not source minerals such as
tantalum, tin, tungsten and gold from those suppliers
who perform extraction and trade in unstable regions
affected by armed groups such as the Democratic
Republic of Congo or adjoining countries, which have
been known for perpetrating human right abuses.

RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYER
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“Respect, Passion, Integrity, Teamwork, and Initiative”

BE Rl FIE BEkEE)

Our employees are whom we profoundly respect as
they are the backbone supporting the sustainable
growth of Ka Shui. With our people-oriented human
resource management philosophy, we are committed
to creating a pleasant and secure workplace.

Labour Practices

Employee is a crucial part of our continuous success
and thus we offer competitive remuneration packages
to our staff, which are in line with national
regulations and also other international standards
including SA8000 Social Accountability International
Standard and Responsible Business Alliance (“RBA”)
code of conduct. We have a set of comprehensive
policies in place to provide guidance for management
of our human resources to ensure our people are
remunerated with competitive wages, fixed working
hours, comprehensive insurance coverage and
mandatory provident fund. In addition to statutory
holidays and annual leaves, all employees are entitled
to paid leaves such as maternity leave, paternity
leave, sick leave, work injury leave, marriage leave
and funeral leave.

At Ka Shui, deduction of wages as a means of
disciplinary action is prohibited. Instead, we provide
incentives to employees with outstanding
achievements and performances to recognise their
efforts throughout the year. Employees with excellent
performance will be rewarded by the “Excellent Staff
Award” based on their efforts on showing
responsible attitude, maintaining high level of ethics,
getting along well in a team or demonstrating other
outstanding abilities.
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Creating a fair and harassment-free working
environment, as well as setting an example for our
employees and industry peers, are our long-term
goals. All employees and job applicants are treated
equally, regardless of race, sex, marital status,
pregnancy, disability status or other forms of
difference that is unrelated to the job requirements.
All decisions on recruitment, promotion, performance
evaluation and salary adjustment are made solely
based on qualifications, experiences, capabilities and
performances. Female employees will not be
dismissed and their wages will not be deducted due
to pregnancy, maternity, breastfeeding etc.

We respect diversity and freedom of association, and
we prohibit any forms of discrimination, harassment,
and victimisation at the workplace. At the same time,
to build unity and mutual trust, we operate an
anonymous whistle-blowing system to encourage the
reporting of misconduct while respecting the privacy
of the whistle-blowers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Labour Standard

Ka Shui cares about children’s health, safety,
education and development. Therefore, we strictly
prohibit child labour, who is under the age of 16, in
all our subsidiaries. Under the “Prohibition of Child
Labour and Remedy Guidelines”, comprehensive
recruitment procedures are in place to verify the age,
identity and employment eligibility of applicants
before work commencement. Regular investigations
are conducted to ensure that no underaged persons
are hired.
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If any child labour is found at Ka Shui, remedy
procedures will be implemented by sending the
children back home, followed by providing medical
health check and sufficient living expenses until they
are 16 years old. We aim to offer as much
assistance as possible and alleviate potential negative
impacts on them. For juvenile workers who are under
the age of 18, they are not allowed to engage in
certain positions with potential safety and health
hazards. We will register with the local labour
authority and provide physical health examinations
before on board. In addition, we also ensure our staff
work consensually, and are free from any forced
labour in the workplace.

Externally, we require our suppliers and
subcontractors to follow the same labour practice by
adding the requirement of child and forced labour
prohibition in partnership agreements. It is also one
of the criteria of the selection and evaluation
processes. If the suppliers and subcontractors are
found to employ child or forced labour, they are
required to undergo the remedy procedures and
make improvement plans.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to preventing child and forced
labour.

Staff Training and Development

Ka Shui always views the talents of our employees
as the most valuable asset. To let our staff grow
professionally and achieve their career goals, we
provide a series of internal training programmes and
encourage them to participate in external training
opportunities.
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We have set up the Ka Shui Enterprise Academy in
2005, which is responsible to leverage learning
opportunities and promote corporate culture
exchange. The academy collects the training
demands from each department and formulates an
annual training plan. Through lectures and
relationship-building activities, our people at different
job positions and levels have chances to nurture our
rich corporate culture and develop in both personal
and professional domains. Training records are well
kept and feedback is collected for continuous
improvement and future planning.
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Legal Seminar
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The apprenticeship programme is also in place to
train and develop our technical personnel, as well as
strengthening the sense of belonging among
employees. Experienced mentors are assigned to
help and guide new employees in terms of job skills,
professional ethics, and personal development.

We have a clear career path to provide employees
guidance on pursuing their career goals. Through
ongoing evaluations and annual performance reviews,
employees’ performance is assessed in an objective
and fair manner to guide every employee’s career
path and enable them to perform to their utmost
potentials. It is also an opportunity for employees to
reflect their opinions to the management so as to
achieve an effective two-way communication.

Occupational Health & Safety

Ka Shui attaches high importance in maintaining a
workplace free from occupational hazards. We are
committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace
for our employees by protecting them from work-
related injuries or accidents. We have set up our
health and safety policy and a safety management
system to identify, control and evaluate these OHS
risk to ensure employees are following the safety
procedures. Management controls to safeguard our
employees from accidents and occupational risks
include:

Daily safety
inspection at
production sites
by our safety

Periodic
machinery safety
inspection and
hygiene control

team ntr
TE MR 2z 2
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EAEERIEN BB R AT
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To raise employees’ safety awareness, a wide range
of safety training programme are organised. For
example, all newly-joined staff receive safety
induction training on how to encounter emergencies
and the correct ways of using protective equipment
such as safety glasses and protective gloves. Based
on employees’ job natures and needs, we provide
extra training to ensure their acknowledgment to all
the potential hazards and dangers in workplace, and
are competent to perform their duties safely.
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In spite of the above preventive measures, first-aiders
are stationed in our production sites as required by
relevant laws and regulations for any immediate first-
aid support. An emergency procure plan is also
developed to cope with emergency situations. Drills
for fire and other emergency situations are
periodically conducted and reviewed to increase
staff’'s safety awareness and response efficiency in
case of emergency events.

Externally, suppliers are required to sign the Safety
Responsibility Agreement to show their commitments
in safeguarding worker’s working conditions. For
example, all workers have to be provided with
sufficient protective equipment and trained before
on-boarding.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards in Hong Kong and Mainland
China.

Pleasant Workplace

We strive to maintain a harmonious working
environment and good relationship with our
employees by setting up a multi-channel
communication system for staff, union, and the
management. We are committed to maintaining an
open dialogue among employees, the union and the
management, and to improving employee satisfaction
by means of meetings, forums, sports competitions
and other activities. Employees are also encouraged
to express their opinions or complaints via the
internal opinion box. We promise to respect their
feedback and to handle them timely and impartially.
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A wide range of recreational and relationship building
activities are organised to strengthen the bonding
among our employee and build a sense of belonging
to the Group. Our workplace is also equipped with
physical fithess rooms, library, Internet rooms, and
badminton courts to foster a healthy work-life
balance.
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RESPONSIBLE FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT
Regarding environmental protection as our own duty,
we strive to be an advanced and leading green
high-tech enterprise. Responding to SDG 12 —
Responsible Consumption and Production, we have
the Group Environmental Policy in place, endorsed
by our Chief Executive Officer. It outlines our
environmental commitments to minimise
environmental impacts, supported by the ISO
14001:2015 certified Environmental Management
System at Ka Fung and Ka Yi.

Group Environmental Policy $EEIRIEB &

BRAR 8 ST PR B R B3R 3t 75 AR SO R

e QObserve all applicable national and local laws and regulations strictly
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Establish, implement and strengthen our environmental management system, as well as setting of goals
for environmental achievements

BY  BREMBREEEER  THEREKRERF

Introduce cleaner production in steps, striving to conserve resource uses and reduce waste or effluent
BAWATIEREE BHEHERGE R KR BE Yk RE 7K

Provide training and education to promote the idea of sustainable development across the supply chain
REFIRHE  UEBAEEESHAIREERNER

Provide channels for relevant interested parties and the public to get access to our environmental
performance tracking

AN R ARA T REEBERRERIR MR RE

To ensure strict compliance with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations, we conduct
regular internal and external inspections on
wastewater discharges, air emissions, hazardous

REERBIGETAAEMANRRAERX
B RPTEIEERBER - REBTEIN - EREY
R R EESETEHNT RINRE -
PR EEESA MG ERNRT#E

waste disposals and noise generation. All emissions
and discharges are only carried out with valid
permits and licenses. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, generation of waste and use of resources
in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Life-cycle analysis 4 & BEI 9

o Raw material R#7#}
In/_\pl'lt e Energy AEIR
TN

Pr e Product
9ceEISS  Semi-product &AL &
HBRE

o Effluents BE7K
e Exhausts BE R
o Waste 1)
o Noise & &

Ka Shui places high importance on reducing the i EERRVERYIRIBN L - #
environmental footprints of our products to create MAEBRPNEEEENELEEBE -F 8
values for our customers and stakeholders. By taking EZEELOEGRAR BT EED &
our product’s life-cycle into consideration and using B WA E BT TR EM e AR
the “cradle to grave” approach, we fully understand SREENEBEMABAR EREIREYN
the impacts of our products on the environment FE - A RPSWMHERFER ISR
during its entire life process, from raw material input ER I HI R FIIRE R -

to final disposal. Findings from the life-cycle analysis
enable us to control our footprint in an integrated

manner.
We actively promote the practice of environmental Bt E RS REEEELRHAZSELgR
protection in daily office and factory operation, EE LREBEEEE R AT R TS E
develop the environmental awareness of our FHRREBERFEEMMANREER - B
employees by training and encourage them to EWRAERTIRMEAR BRI - Bt
participate in different green activities. Apart from BRERERREIEZOKRE -

implementing green measures at our offices and
factories, we proactively explore opportunities to
achieve our environmental goals.

g

SE-AEFR  BHERERERAT
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Emission Control

The major sources of our air emissions are stationary
machineries, motor vehicles and our manufacturing
processes such as die casting, moulding and
scrapping. To reduce the level of air pollutants in our
emissions, several mitigation initiatives are
introduced:

° Install filtering devices for our major air
pollutants, such as volatile organic compound
and particulate matter (“PM”)

° Maintain exhaust gas generating equipment and
exhaust gas control equipment regularly
according to the maintenance instructions

° Appoint third parties to conduct annual air
quality testing to ensure air pollutants are
controlled properly and the level of emissions
does not exceed the threshold limit

° Inspect company vehicles annually to control
exhausts from motor vehicles

° Turn off vehicle engines when they are idling
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total air

emissions generated by company vehicles and
stationary fuel usage were as follows:

Air Emission REEHER

Nitrogen oxides & &1L
Sulphur oxides FRE1E4

PM 8% 1Y)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2019
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In view of global warming and climate change, we
strive to reduce our greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions by conserving our energy and resources,
which will be detailed in the later section of this
report. We have conducted a GHG emission
assessment! to understand the Group’s emission
pattern which the Group’s GHG emissions are mainly
contributed by use of purchased electricity, fuels and
refrigerant. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
total GHG emission was 40,776.54 tCO,e, with an
intensity of 63.25 tCO,e per milion pieces of
product.

Bz - #2RERHRE(H)

ER2ERE L RRIEEL  BARHBB
BHEEREBERAVAVAERE (AER
BN #BEBEIRAREEES
e BB BT EERERMTME - AT
BAEENERER  AEBARERE
BMEBRAFEACHENE D  BER
BUSHE o PEREHIR  AEBAREERE
BEM B B40,776 AR — Sk inE 8 &
EATAEMEREI2AM —AIiRE

=
=

Greenhouse Gas Emissionis = 5 82 HE i

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions?

BE— — BERAEREBHR

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions®
HE_— — gpREEREREHRC

Total GHG emissions
BERBHNRE

GHG Intensity
BEREBHENEE

! The carbon assessment is conducted based on the “How to
prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx and international
standards such as ISO 14064 and GHG Protocol.

2 Scope 1 represents direct GHG emissions generated by the
use of refrigerant and fuels for stationary and mobile
sources.

8 Scope 2 represents energy indirect GHG emissions generated
by the use of electricity.

Unit& i

tCO,e 2,628.93

R — AL EE

tCO,e 38,147.61
N AL EE
tCO,e 40,776.54

A —_FmE S

tCO,e/million pieces of product 63.25
ABE_EtmEE BAEHESD

! B ¥ 14 TO AR 15 2 8 B <2 A T 3 eV KONl AR 3R
5o HEgREAWRE ? M BRRHRENIE
RIEMRIESI) RISO 14064 B ERBEHAEE S
BRI AT

2 8 E — 45 B 7E & By IR A 0 A BLUL B R KRR
EENERBEREIN -

e HE I AEMEENEREETREEREH -

TE-NFFR e ERBEBRERABRAT

83 —
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Waste Management R E

We reduce our raw and office material consumption by BAIE B E A E R E AR DR, D TR R R
improving the efficiency of the production process in order NEMEOERE  #RDEMENEA  BE
to cut raw material inputs and minimise product failures, WA EMBE - URREFMEENEDE -

which in turn lower the amount of waste generated.

We exercise waste segregation to isolate hazardous waste BIETEMSE  »AEERATRFERE
which requires different approaches to handle, and to BHBEEY  UERBIREEBENEY - BEYD
divert valuable waste for recycling. Waste is separated into REZEVREEEYD WMAZENZERNEK
non-hazardous and hazardous waste, with respective o AR 2RS0T HRREYHEE
dedicated collection bins. In the meantime, Ka Shui It ERFTE R EREEBHUE -

Enterprise Academy organises regular training sessions on
waste handling to ensure all employees are familiar with
the practices.

Waste segregation

Non-hazardous

waste Hazardous waste

RERY RERY

General industrial and
domestic waste
—MIERRAEY

Valuable waste

HEENEY

£
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Hazardous wastes, such as waste oil residue, paint,
sludge, chemicals and their containers, are disposed
of in strict compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. Hazardous wastes are sorted, collected,
labelled, stored and transported with special cares.
Each department logs its monthly generation records,
for effective management control and continuous
improvement planning. A contingency plan is
established to cope with emergency circumstances
such as chemical leakage, fire, explosion or other
accidents that may occur when handling hazardous
waste. The plan provides our staff with timely and
appropriate response action to minimise the potential
environmental and health impacts incurred under
such circumstances.

For valuable waste such as metals from the leftover
in production, we will recycle back into the
production cycle. For waste which inevitably ends up
with being disposed of, which is the least preferable
option, will only be handled by qualified collectors.
We require our collectors to comply with our
environmental and safety agreement, to avoid
inflicting potential harms to the environment and our
staff.

During the Reporting Period, the Group disposed of
a total of 589.53 tonnes of hazardous waste and
77.92 tonnes of non-hazardous waste:

Waste Generation EEPIE 4

Hazardous waste H XY
Chemical waste 1t 2 g £}
Other E A

Total &5t

Intensity 23 &
Non-hazardous waste fEZEEEY
Domestic waste &K &4

Total &3t

Intensity 23 &
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BEEY (MEREE MR 5k L8
R E R =R BRIERARER SOERETT
RE - BEEVNDE WK BFK  FHiF
FEBOFRHEREE - RANEEES
RE@EWEE S ATLEERE
MELNRCE - RAITNHIERZE - JAE
HRECREMEAEEENERBR
IEEBamERIR ~ KA BRI EAMER - %
AHEIARMIM B TRHAKE MEE M EE
T8 NREREEEBIERLTELNE
ERERERTE -

REEBETRBNCBEREEMNER
YmE - B EKIE B ALER
PAABRREKERRENENMS @ Ut
Ty A A ERE - A EBNKER
RIE - RMBRREHETREERLZZW
#OBRHRBENEBTENEESBE -

RS BIR  ANEE KR E589.53 A A
EREYRTT.O2 AR EEREY)

2o o

Unit E1i 2019

Tonnes A ME 424.39

Tonnes A ME 165.14

Tonnes A A 589.53
Tonnes/million pieces of product 0.91

W/ BEBHER

Tonnes A MA 77.92

Tonnes A MA 77.92
Tonnes/million pieces of product 0.12

DM BEBNER
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Use of Resources

In our operational activities, we consumer various
types of resources such as energy, water and
materials. Reducing our consumption of resources
not only conserves the environment, but also lowers
our operation cost and creates values to our
stakeholders. To effectively manage our use of
resources, we have set up the Energy and Resource
Consumption Control Procedure, which clearly
outlines the responsibility of each department on
managing each resource type. Through the metering
system at our production sites, we can understand
our consumption patterns and identify areas for
further improvement.

Energy Consumption

The Group’s major types of energy consumed are
purchased electricity, natural gas for stationary
machineries, as well as gasoline and diesel oil for
vehicles. We are committed to utilising energy
efficiently and thus reducing corresponding
greenhouse gas emissions.

In addition to monitoring, we have put substantial
effort in cutting energy consumption and improving
energy efficiency. The followings are some energy-
saving initiatives adopted at our factories and offices:

° Adjust production processes to enhance energy
efficiency

° Purchase machineries and electrical appliances
which are certified with energy-saving labels
through green procurement practices

° Promote energy saving behaviour among staff
by reminding them to switch off electrical
equipment, such as computers, printers, and
shredders when not in use

° Place “energy-saving” signs next to power
switches to remind staff of avoiding
unnecessary consumption of electricity

&R A

REEEFPT  RIVERSEER - flange
IR KR e AR ERERETMER]
REIRE - BRI RERPINEERE - SR
MEREBE RERERERNER
BB HECERRERBERESRF)
ZRFBEEMASHMFEESREREAR
WEE-BBRMEESANERS
BP9 T R P R B REE AL B R —
BGER T e

REiRHRE
AEEERNEREIZEHEEFCBENE
N AREE#BORARAEARITE
B K S o BB B BRI AR AR
e > 48 FE B R = SRAE PRI

TESSN RPN B BEIRE R KB E
auﬁxﬁl S EELRARE S - LT REM
EIBMEFAERRNE THRERE

° FEEERZURA RS

. Ltif@?%ﬁ%*%‘%ﬁﬁﬁj%‘fﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁ’%‘é
HAOMSMER

o BB TMEEETA  REMMET
FHAENREREEEN - FTEIER
MR ES H&E

o  HEEEFZERRE(EEIFTR  ZER
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. Conduct regular vehicle maintenance and
annual inspection to ensure they are always
operating in good condition to increase fuel
efficiency

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed a
total of 45,647.58 MWh of electricity, 1,402,958 m?
of natural gas, 91,5624.88 litres of gasoline and
78,724.49 litres of diesel oil. Their respective
intensities are as follows:

Type of Energy #EiRHFE

Electricity & 7
Intensity % &

Natural gas KA R
Intensity % &

Gasoline J5
Intensity &

Diesel oil 4
Intensity % &

s TEHETERAENTERD - AMHE

S

REEEE T RAFAREE - ATR S B

REREHR - AEBEFE T #25£45,647.58
KENEEE S 1,402,958 K KRR
91,524,887+ 5 M K. 78,724,497 4¢3 - H

HEZEWT

Unit 2 {i

MWh JEFL /] BF
MWh/million pieces of product
KRN BESMHER

m3 3K
mé/million pieces of product

NHK/ BEBHER

Litres 7+
Litres/million pieces of product

Tt/ BEBHER
Litres 375K

Litres/million pieces of product
YhAK/EEEHEM

SE-NEERH

Bt

¥ B 4

S8

[

Sz

XA

4

2019

5,647.58
70.80

1,402,958.00

]

9

7

ol

2,176.08

1,624.88
141.96

8,724.49
122.11
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Water Resources

Freshwater is a precious resource in the planet that
we should conserve so thus Ka Shui is committed to
conserving our water resources by using it
responsibly and efficiently. Our daily water
consumption is mainly due to production processes
and domestic use. We strive to reduce our water
consumption by the following measures:

° Inspect water pipes regularly to prevent water
leakage

° Promote water-saving behaviour to all staff

° Conduct timely maintenance to avoid waste in

case of water leakage

° Place “water-saving” signs near water taps to
remind our staff to treasure water resources

° Reuse and recycle our water resources as much
as possible such that employees are
encouraged to propose water-saving initiatives

During the Reporting Period, there was no issue in

sourcing water and the total water consumption was

258,744.23 m3, with an intensity of 401.33 m® per

million pieces of product.

Water Use FK

Freshwater %7K

Intensity /&
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KE&ER

KKK EBENER - RPIEED R
K A ERBAOSHKER  AEERA
MIERKER - BHPINBEEIEREE
AREEREREERK - BRI BB
PATN 38 bRk A 7KOH 78

o EHRBKE AR LEMIRK

s [RMBEEIEBHHRKITR

o HERKMBAT  BEETHE
AR ERORE

B 42

o TEUKEESRMIATAL L8P K0 MKIMER
i RERFNE T2 HEKER

s RESHAMEYKER G UBET
REREKT R

e &=
BB

EES

BifE - HAMEES 7}@5@@%@%
' #AFEIK 8 A258,744.233 F oK
BEMHEMAION.IZL T K

Unit EE{if 2019

258,744.23

m?3/million pieces of product 401.33

MK/ BEBHER
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Our major effluents include industrial and domestic
wastewater from canteen, toilet and septic tanks.
Through strict control of sewage discharge
management, we ensure the discharge of all effluents
complies with relevant laws and regulations, as well
as the requirements of local environmental protection
authorities. All discharge activities are monitored by
the implementation of the Water Pollution Control
Procedure. Chemicals and oils are also kept away
from the inlet of water pipes to prevent
contamination of water bodies.

To further lower our amount of wastewater, we made
efforts on water reclamation by installing a
wastewater treatment system at Ka Shui Technology.
Industrial wastewater is processed and 60% of the
treated water is successfully recycled in our
manufacturing processes. The sludge remained is
then collected and disposed of by a qualified
recycler. During the Reporting Period, the total
amount of wastewater discharged was 64,300.92
m3.

Effluent BE7K

Wastewater FE7K
Intensity % &

Use of Materials

We aim to use sustainable materials which bring less
harm to the environment and human throughout the
entire product life cycle. Therefore, we carefully
select our raw materials in compliance with
international standards, including RoHS and REACH
to govern the use of the regulated hazardous
substances and chemicals in production. In addition,
we also follow the Forest Stewardship Council
standard as requested by our clients to ensure the
wooden materials are sustainably sourced.

Bz - #2RERHRE(H)

BN EI2EKEERE  RMARMEED
B TR EEK M AETEREK - BIBBAIREH)5
IKBERE R - R AFIRER P B BE/K B B IR
NEMBBEERMERURE HIRREE N
F5R  BBBEHNOSRIEHIRF - FIEHK
ABYFEE LB m RN B RREKE
AL ABTISRKE ©

BE—DRLEKE  BEERMRER
HIEKEEBRG - BAORKEEIKFIA -
T¥REKEBIRIE - M60% LS 5 IE K 7K 7E
BPMEEBREPKINE - Ferry)5E
MEBRBINEKRERESE - RREH
Ml - BEKEHERRAR £ 52 64,300.9237 77 K o

Unit E&{i 2019
m® 37 77K 64,300.92
m3/million pieces of product 99.74

MHK/ BEEBHER
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Z o

Plastic, magnesium alloy, aluminium alloy, and zinc
alloy are the major types of raw materials consumed
during our manufacturing processes. Through
upgrading manufacture equipment, optimising the
production process, offering training to our
employees, recycling scrapped products, and better
strategic planning to control and minimise the
occurrence of unqualified products, we are able to
lower our raw material usage. During the Reporting
Period, the Group consumed a total of 3,745.14
tonnes of raw materials, with an intensity of 5.81
tonnes per million pieces of product and details are
as follows:

Raw Material R# %
Plastic % &
Magnesium alloy 4 &
Aluminum alloy 24 4
Zinc alloy & &

Total 45t

Intensity 2 E

Packaging materials are also used for product
containment and protection in order to deliver
excellent products to our customers. Major types of
packaging materials used are carton box, plastic,
sticker and wood. During the Reporting Period, the
Group consumed a total of 749.13 tonnes of
packaging materials, with an intensity of 1.16 tonnes
per million pieces of product. The amount of
packaging materials consumed is summarised as
follows:

Packaging Material 8 3£#1%}

Carton box ##8
Plastic 28 &
Sticker Bfi#f
Other E At
Wood AR##
Total 45t

Intensity 232
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Unit BE{i 2019

Tonnes A A 1,124.68

Tonnes ‘AMA 1,748.40

Tonnes ‘AME 509.66

Tonnes A A 362.40

Tonnes ‘AMA 3,745.14
Tonnes/million pieces of product 5.81

N/ EEEBNER

BEMBOEBEREELREER AW
EMNEERMNEENER FRHNE%E
MREBEEAAME BB - B EAM -
R EHR AEE L EFET4013R B
EMR BEASEEGHERI6ANE - 4
HHESHEEMANT ¢

Unit B 2019

Tonnes A M8 409.73

Tonnes ‘AMA 50.99

Tonnes ‘AMA 1.91

Tonnes A& 15.66

Tonnes ‘AMA 270.84

Tonnes ‘AMA 749.13
Tonnes/million pieces of product 1.16

DM FABMEmR




Green office

While our operations in offices do not pose
significant emissions and pollution impacts to the
environment, certain amount of resources such as
paper, stationary and electricity are unavoidably
consumed. To promote a green culture in offices, we
set up the following green office initiatives:

° Advocate the concept of a “paperless office” to
encourage our employees to make full use of
e-communication channels such as the intranet
to use paper as least as possible

° Encourage double-sided printing and reuse
single-sided paper

° Maintain the room temperature at 25 °C

° Practice green procurement such as opting for
refillable ball pens, recyclable paper for printing
purpose and energy-efficient appliances

During the Reporting Period, a total of 15.72 tonnes
of paper was consumed, with an intensity of 0.02
tonnes per million pieces of product.

Noise Mitigation

During our manufacturing processes, noise is
inevitably generated from machineries such as
generators and compressors. With an aim to reduce
the noise level and nuisance to the surroundings,
high-efficient machineries are opted to reduce the
operation time. Regular maintenance is performed to
ensure the equipment is in good condition. We are
also committed to strictly adhering noise level
standards according to the relevant laws and
regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Innovation & Research

INDUSTRY, IRKOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

As a pioneer in magnesium, aluminium and zinc
alloys die casting, we are also actively engaged in
R&D of sustainable technology to create green values
for our stakeholders. Echoing to SDG 9 — Industry,
Innovation and Infrastructure, we aim to foster
innovation on the use of materials, products and
technologies, leading to higher energy efficiency for
end products, higher resource utilisation efficiency in
the manufacturing process, and reduced negative
impacts to the environment.

We are delighted to share with our stakeholders that
Ka Fung and Ka Shui Technology have been
accredited as the “New & High Technology
Enterprise” this year. The honour represents the
recognition from the government of Guangdong
Province to our scientific research capability. We will
further enhance our innovation capability, keep
putting continuous effort to be a role model and fully
utilise our strengths to achieve high-speed
development.
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Ka Fung and Ka Shui Technology also participated in the “Key Technology and Applications in Product Shape
and Mechanical Performance Control for Die-casting Large Complex Thin-wall Magnesium Structural Parts”
project and won the “Guangdong Scientific and Technological Progress Award (Second Prize)’ by the
government of Guangdong Province as well as the “China Nonferrous Metals Industry Science and
Technology Award (First Prize)” by China Nonferrous Metals Industry Association. The project aims to produce
large metal parts for automotive and electronic communication industries and it has four core technologies: 1)
magnesium alloy composition optimisation for better die-casting performance; 2) vacuum die-casting to
enhance the capability of making complex thin-wall structural parts; 3) surface finishing treatment of low cost,
high efficiency and environment-friendly magnesium alloy; and 4) computer-aided engineering analysis for die-
casting process simulation and parameters control of large, complex and thin-wall structural part. Through the
successful applications of production facilities and commercialization, Ka Shui will continue to utilise our
cutting-edge technologies to further develop businesses in automotive and electronic communications sectors.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Biz - #2RERKRE (H)

Beyond Ka Shui

Apart from instilling the culture of environmental
responsibility within Ka Shui, we strive to step
forward to exert influences on and raise awareness of
other parties associated with Ka Shui. Related
parties, including transportation providers, waste
collectors, raw material suppliers, chemical suppliers,
and canteen operators, are all required to comply
with our “Environmental Requirements of Related
Party”. For example, raw material suppliers are
required to use recyclable packaging as far as
possible and waste collectors are required to obtain
relevant permits and qualifications. In case of
violation, Ka Shui will follow the issues seriously and
may terminate the business relationship if there are
no improvements.

QOur suppliers have to sign the Supplier
Environmental Agreement to ensure they understand
our CSR policy and are committed to accomplishing
our expectations according to ISO 14001
Environmental Managing System. Since we strictly
follow the RoHS and REACH standards, suppliers
are required to declare that their supplying materials
are complying with the standards, and also to submit
testing reports performed by a third-party for
verification of the compliance. For instance, chemical
suppliers are required to submit Material Safety Data
Sheet to disclose the health and safety hazard
information of the chemicals and corresponding
health and safety measures. We will request
improvement plans in case of discovery of violation.
Ka Shui may terminate the business relationship if no
corrective or preventive actions are taken.
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RESPONSIBLE FOR OUR COMMUNITY
As a socially responsible enterprise, Ka Shui aims to
exert positive influences on the community where we
operate and live by making full use of our
competency. In line with our Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy Statement, we focus on (i)
supporting local education projects for youth
development; (i) collaborating with local charities on
poverty and disaster relief initiatives; and (iii)
participating in environmental conservation activities,
to give back to the community. We always engage
and encourage our staff to involve in community
activities. Ka Shui has also established a volunteer
team which arranges volunteer activities
continuously.

Guangzhou City Construction College’s Visit to
Ka Shui Technology Park
BNETRERER2E R RE

D.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBENRE

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KA SHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 267,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Fair value measurement of land

2. Allowance for inventories
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HBER &S (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
FAREZEIR

BEEEZSEE (E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESEPHAREZSENEELR

Fair value measurement of land

+in AT EmE &

Refer to notes 5(e), 7 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2066 MRS M FESE) - 7/K20 °

The Group measures its land at fair value using a
market approach. The valuation is a level 3 fair
value measurement as it involves adjustments to
market comparables to reflect the particular
characteristics of the land, including location and
plot sizes, which are based on unobservable
inputs that are subjective. The value of land is
sensitive to these inputs. In order to determine
an appropriate fair value of the land, the Group
appointed an independent professional valuer to
perform the assessment.

ESEERAMSE RATEAEHE LM - HE
RE=ZBRVESE ARETIAUTISAE
R ERETHAE  URBRLteARELE - 8
T RE R/ - TUAEFEBE A BEZN 2R
Efff - Ty BEUZSE2HBR - REEZ LT
WHIREATE EXEERETELIEXRMGHEME
1T5FHE ©

Our procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement of land included:

BB LA FEMEETHRF B

—  Evaluation of the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
AHEEREMEER O REBEIT

—  Assessing the valuation methodologies used and
the appropriateness of the key assumptions and
comparables;
AEFTAMERSEZUAREERRRAZLRER

=] L.
EERE

— Checking the accuracy of the observable inputs;

BEABRESBED LR

— Reviewing the appropriateness of those
adjustments which were based on unobservable
inputs; and

R RTABRSBAEARETRY © &

—  Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
respect of the fair value of land.
AHER T A T EERBESS B4 -




INDEPENDENT

KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
FREZEIR

AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B2 &S (&)

EAEZSEE (E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESRPHAREZEEMEELTR

2. Allowance for inventories

FERE

Refer to notes 5(a) and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

28656 B 5 MR M E5(@) K& 25 -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
identifies obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items that are not probable for use in future
production or to be sold out. It also identifies any
other inventories with net realisable value below
cost. The identification is based on forecasts of
customers’ future orders and future market
conditions, and involves subjective estimation.
The allowance has impact on the carrying
amount of inventories and the profit or loss for
the year.

RBEBRR - SEREBA Ao BIERKEESK
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
The Other Information comprises all of the information
included in the 2019 annual report of the Company other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Our procedures in relation to the allowance for
inventories included:

B EEREETNREF B

— Reviewing inventory ageing analysis to identify
obsolete or slow-moving inventories;

BEREFEREDN - BHBRKIBHFS

—  Testing whether the net realisable value of major
items of inventories exceeded cost by reviewing
sales after the reporting date; and
EHREAPROEE AR ETEFEEENA
BRFERTEREAE &

— Reviewing the appropriateness of the allowance
for inventories by reference to information about
subsequent sales or usage.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BYZBE#RE (&)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BYZBE#RE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Liu Fung Yi.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
23 April 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

GEESR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B it FET FHET
Revenue [N 8 1,554,364 1,852,329
Cost of sales 8HE B (1,158,438) (1,404,530)
Gross profit EH 395,926 447,799
Other income E Al A 9 31,484 20,900
Impairment losses on trade E 5 R IR R EEE
receivables (117) (132)
Reversal of impairment losses on 2 5 W IR R EEE
trade receivables o] £ - 764
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (29,990) (33,586)
General and administrative expenses —#% M 1T B 52 (247,573) (269,644)
Other operating expenses and income £ th 238 i & &2 I A 11 (36,053) (26,881)
Profit from operations EERR 113,677 139,220
Finance costs BhE B AN 12 (11,536) (13,167)
Share of losses of associates BoE A A EEK 23 (810) (146)
Profit before tax B B A it F) 101,331 125,907
Income tax expense FriS & 5 2 13 (14,569) (12,505)
Profit for the year 5 i F 14 86,762 113,402
Attributable to: LT AT rEh#ER :
Owners of the Company RATIERFTFBA 88,705 113,556
Non-controlling interests FEFERR R 2 (1,943) (154)
86,762 113,402
HK Cents HK Cents
B JE
Earnings per share SiEA 18
Basic BN 9.92 12.71
Diluted e N/AFER N/AZiE




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEREERAMEZEAKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-AF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT FHET
Profit for the year E R F 86,762 113,402
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2 mEUg2S -
Items that will not be reclassified to T EE D EE B
profit or loss: ZHEH
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land HELHEEEMN 2 & 11,279 20,858
Income tax on items that will not be TEeEHH»EEEECEE
reclassified to profit or loss ZFTER (3,714) (6,647)
7,565 14,211
Items that may be reclassified to B R Em s HA -
profit or 0ss:
Exchange differences on translating BMEBINEBEEZER
foreign operations =& (12,953) (40,578)
Share of translation reserve of associates #7552 7 [E 5 {# 15 - (25)
(12,953) (40,603)
Other comprehensive income FRBRBEEMEEWE
for the year, net of tax (5,388) (26,392)
Total comprehensive income FREHEMELEE
for the year 81,374 87,010
Attributable to: LT AL RE(G#EDS :
Owners of the Company RAEIERRFFREA 83,616 88,118
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR R 2 (2,242) (1,108)
81,374 87,010

A




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GEMBRRE

At 31 December 2019 R=Z— N F+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—T-hEF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B i FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B R 19 504,054 766,155
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 20 224,525 —
Club membership gMes 21 718 718
Investments in associates REERNE 2 IRE 23 8,953 9,931
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEGFAEMER
Wz emEE 24 - —
Deposits paid for acquisition of TERNEEYE  #RR
property, plant and equipment LEzEe 7,894 8,287
Deferred tax assets EEFRIAE E 33 149 215
746,293 785,306
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 25 215,957 244,755
Right of return assets REIEEZET 111 111
Trade receivables B 5 e FRIE 26 340,524 376,785
Contract assets BHEE 27 17,731 14,670
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - EZe &k
receivables E {th g Uk 508 47,407 40,842
Due from associates JE Bk 2 A B RR 23 16 108
Current tax assets BNERFRIE & &= 3,260 995
Restricted bank balances BIRHIRITER 28 1,835 5,517
Bank and cash balances R1T MR ek 28 262,252 250,606
889,093 934,389
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B S RN RIA 29 209,014 264,032
Contract liabilities aHER 27 1,005 1,500
Refund liabilities RRAR 241 241
Other payables and accruals H i & A~ RIE K
st &R 29 82,572 95,284
Due to associates JE A~ Bt 2 A B FRIE 23 1,305 3,257
Bank borrowings RITERK 30 201,532 242,854
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 5,681 =
Current tax liabilities BNERFIE & & 35,807 44,118
537,157 651,286

o




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
FEMBRRR(E)

At 31 December 2019 R=ZZ—AF+=-HA=+—8H

2019 2018
—E—NhEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt F#EIT FET
Net current assets REEEFE 351,936 283,103
Total assets less current liabilities ZFELERKEI G & 1,098,229 1,068,409
Non-current liabilities EREER
Bank borrowings |ITER 30 57,514 81,848
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 5,908 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEBE 33 26,852 28,701
90,274 110,549
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,007,955 957,860
Capital and reserves BX R
Share capital [ 34 89,376 89,376
Reserves 1 36 903,215 850,881
Equity attributable to owners EATEREE ANEN
of the Company gy 992,591 940,257
Non-controlling interests FEERTHELS 15,364 17,603
TOTAL EQUITY HEinEE 1,007,955 957,860
Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 April 2020 and KEFeN_S_SFMA-_+=H08/fF A
are signed on its behalf by: NTEEREESE
Lee Yuen Fat Wong Wing Chuen
FiEE ke
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
capital

Share
premium

Bt
HK$000

Retained
earnings

RERH

GERGEDR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRRRTABEER

Foreign
currency Share Land Non-
FvTOCI
reserve Total
BATE
FARH
2ERE

Capital ~ Merger translation option  Statutory revaluation controlling

reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve interests

THEf
AfiEE EnEG BREES ARRE 0 BS 8y b
HKSO00  HKS00D  HKSU00. HKSU00  HKS00D HKS000 HKS000

= o= = g —

At 1 January 2018 ~5-\-A-A 89,376 204,650 428,79 8,701 (9,931) 2,146 10 58 127,516 - 81,322 15,321 866,643
Adjustments on inital NAERZBE

application of

— HKFRS 9 - BRNHREEL

£0% - - 8,206 - - - - - - (8,308 @7) - 1)
— HKFRS 15 - BAUBRERE
£15% = - 98 = = = = = = - 98 - 98

Restated balance at RZE-NE-A-R

1 January 2019 E2k 89,376 204,650 446,854 8,701 (9,981) 2,146 10 58 127,516 (8,308 861,077 15,321 876,398
Total comprehensive income FR2ENEEE

for the year - ~ 11355 - ) - - - 18 (110§ 87010
2017 final dividend paid TH=F-tERHRE

(note 17) (Witt7) - - (8,938) - - - - - - - (8,938 - (8,938)
Lapse of share options R BRiE = = 10 = = - (10) - - - - - -
Capital contribution from REFERERZERRA

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 3390 3,390
Changes n equiy for the year ~ EREZZH = - 104628 = - (39,649 (10) - 4 - 79,180 2282 81462
At 31 December 2018 and R=E-\F+A=t-A

1 January 2019 RZ5-n5-A-H 89,376 204,650 551,482 8,701 (9,931)  (37,503) - 58 141,727 (8,303) 940,257 17,603 957,860
Total comprehensive income FR2ENEEE

for the year - - s - - (1265) - - 7565 - B Ay 81
2018 final dividend paid TH=F-NEXHRE

(hote 17) (Witir) - - (31,289 - - - - - - - (31,282 - (31,282
Capital contribution from REFERER ZEREA

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 3 3
Changes n equiy for the year ~ £REZZH - - 514 - - (12,654) - - 7,565 - 5334 (2239 50,095
At 31 December 2019 ASE-NET-A=t-B 8076 204650 608905 8701 (9931)  (50,157) - 58 149292 (8303 992501 15364 1,007,055
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NhE —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FiEiT FHET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM HEEBRBRREFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 38(a) 159,317 177,193
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ##&EFEZHLSRRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 UF & 747 300
Proceeds from disposals of property, & « #23 N R
plant and equipment 655 5,719
Purchase of property, plant and EEWE MBI NEE
equipment (43,421) (100,439)
Payments for right-of-use assets S EREEEREA (660) —
Payments for rental deposits TN EZR S KA (650) —
Deposits paid for the acquisition of — FET#73E - # 2L K&
property, plant and equipment ZE& (263) (1,706)
Investment in an associate REERa 2K E - (10,916)
Net cash used in investing BRETHMAZRE
activities B (43,592) (107,042)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RiZFEIZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid B’ E (31,282) (8,938)
Capital contribution from non- REFERER 2B R
controlling interest B'A 3 3,390
Net short-term bank loans repaid EREHRITERFESR (25,908) (25,596)
(Advance to)/Repaid from MBS AR (B4),/
associates, net BEFRIBF5 (1,855) 11
Repayment of long-term bank loans (EERHIRITER (69,748) (137,562)
Long term bank loans raised g RHERITE R 30,000 120,000
Principal elements of lease payments & TE 2 E B (3,934) —
Net cash used in RLEEEEEZ
financing activities &3 (102,724) (48,695)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
GeREeRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—EB-NhE —E-NF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
g3 F#T FHET
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeR&ERRE2EE
CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥ hnigEE 13,001 21,456
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HHBELR
AT 1 JANUARY EEFELEH 250,606 243,994
Effect of foreign exchange EREHTE
rate changes (1,355) (14,844)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W+—-—HA=+—H#
AT 31 DECEMBER HE&ERZERREE£ER 262,252 250,606
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND H&RERREIER
CASH EQUIVALENTS i
Bank and cash balances RITRIBE ek 28 262,252 250,606
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wa P RRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
7 January 2005. The address of its registered office
is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is Room A,
29/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at
31 December 2019, Precisefull Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the
ultimate parent and Mr. LEE Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) is
the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

NEER
RARAFIRBEREHERTEE-_ZTZTRF
—AtERAERSEMKIAZHAREE
R~ & e HEE o = & B A Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands - EFX Z& X B RB B NENE
ERNEBE—FRERTLBE2IEAT o XA
AROEBTEBHERXSBRA A ([H
Frl) EtR £ o

ARBBREZERAR  EfBRRZE
ZEBHIINEGRA M BERKRME22 -

ARREZEERAE RN_E—NLF+=A
=+—H - Precisefull Limited (—RBREB
BXEEEMKY 2 AR]) AREKF AR
FRBEEE((ZERE]) BARDR ZRKYE
AT o

A I 2 2

WEFAMBBRRDBBEERZHETLS
ARMAe((ERSAMAS ) MBEMEE
MHREEN(EEMBREER]D R
Bl e BEMBHREENEREEMBRE
ZH - BASENTEBGFEAD K
BE - UERAMBHRROEER 2
Rz EmARA (T EHRAD 2 WET
AIREBATED (6225 ) 2 WEEK
AEEMRAZ TR N WFE




BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised
HKFRSs
The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS,
HKFRS 16 Leases, and a number of

amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the
developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

2. #HmHlEZE ()
EESHMACERMETRAEEALAS
FTEIME R E R T RIBERMZFET &
KB BAMBREED - EREREH
BREFRBZEAENERZSHASEE
BREAMBEMRMI B2 AFEERBESH
MEBER 2 EREBF RN GRE MR
M3 -

KRR RSB BB BHREE
2l

FER I REEITEEUBRE
A
BEGHM SR RITEHI BB
R EER - IR BM RS LR
F16HME - UERAKEER &
HRERERN S EE BN GRS L
ANBETA -

(a)

(REBM B IREERE 1655 - BE
BRFAHAEEEMSCBEMHEE
BRI BRI 2N T AEE
BEXFE - ARBERBEEBEMER
eI e L GO E R R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
w e MR R M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and
the related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC) 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a
single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability for all leases, except
for leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS
16 did not have an impact or leases where the
Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS
17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to assess the effect that leases have on the
financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as
from 1 January 2019. The Group has elected
to use the modified retrospective approach and
has therefore recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

R0 T R A T B B B R R
Al (%)

(a)

FER ] REETEEMBRE
B (&)
FREMBRERENF16RAE
BEMEHRELEANE16RBREES
FHEFENTREERERRE - BE
B (ERMBRERBERES)RES
AFEBERHELEREEE 8 (%
BAREZEe)REFIRELERE
- BEBERFE(FRREZES)R
BEoT R RESHERNERTE AN
RHAE - B BHEERFE 165
REBASIAE -G RERN - &
KABARMEHERABEREEE
LEEAE  HEHEBA/12EARUAT
ZHERKEBEEERERN -

RN HELENE16RABUSRE
BEHEFEI7TRHOHBEA SRR
AR HEASEEEREETE SR
ERFA7TSRPRUNRAGEED B
RBEIMERE - At - FEMHK
WEEANE16FHEAEE R HTEAN
HEYEZE - HAEBGFELE
17RO AA S EIER T RBA R

< =4

= °

B S LERIE165% IR 5| AZRIN
MEMREERBERFR  EEENH
WEREMEFEHEHERY BN
N MBERARASRENTE -

AEEE T NF-HA—BEER
ERMBBMEMEERIFE 165 - &NE
BEEZEREETEWE - Ft#
ERNEEESEZ Vo ke
—hF—A—BZEER AR
B REMTTED  WHBERE
BT EREITHRRE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition options applied are set out
below:

()

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease
mainly relates to the concept of control.
HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis
of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time,
which may be determined by a defined
amount of use. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
were entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2019. For contracts entered
into before 1 January 2019, the Group
has used the transitional practical
expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under
HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for
as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts
previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted
for as executory contracts.

Sa PR RRM (R
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=

(a) FEERMIIREEITEEMBRE
B (8)
FREMBREENFE165HEE (B)
ERBTEETHREINEERTE
VAR Fft & R BIBOE R R — TR IR
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() HERFEE
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o AEFIEEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 7% = Mt = ( “a)

II‘Ii\

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % =

—hEF+ZA=Z+-HLFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for
a lessee to classify leases as either
operating leases or finance leases, as
was previously required by HKAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to
capitalise all leases when it is the lessee,
including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for
leases previously classified as operating
leases, the Group has applied the
incremental borrowing rates of the
relevant group entities at the date of
initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied is
4.10%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the
Group applied the following recognition
exemption and practical expedients at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

(@ elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in
respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to
leases for which the remaining
lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease
term ends on or before 31
December 2019;

RANFTR] RAEEFT BB M B RS L
2 (%)

() ERAMIREEIEEMBRE
B (&)

FEMBREENE165HE (8)
(i) AN ETBEIERERTE
BEM B R EEAF165RBUH
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R-AEEEREAEAR A
ENEAARE (BRENRE

BB EAF17THR D BRE
SHENHEE)  H HEHEE
BEEEEHENERR
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RERERBHEREHESE
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RTBERAREERMBRMEE

AlE165%  AKRERBERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(Continued)

(b)  used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial
application in determining the lease
term for the Group’s leases with
extension options; and

(¢) excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax for leasing transactions in which the
Group recognises the right-of-use assets
and the related lease liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-
of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Sa PR RRM (R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BT RZBETEBMBERELE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) FERMEI REBITEEMBRE

(Continued) #8I(8])

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEMBHREERE16RHEE (8)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (i) HEEAETEERABETE
(Continued) (%)
The following table reconciles the TRHEINR_E-NF+=H
operating lease commitments as =+ — Bz EHEARE (R
disclosed in note 39 as at 31 December IO HER) BN T —NEF—
2018 to the opening balance for lease A—B®RZHEEAEN AT
liabilities recognised as at 1 January R ETER -
2019:

1 January
2019
—E-hEF

—H—H
HK$°000
FET

Operating lease commitment at 31 December 7N [E4R 4 B 53K A 55

2018 as disclosed in the Group’s RZE—N\FE+=A
consolidated financial statements =+ — B2 &EEHERE 16,403
Less: commitments relating to leases B EER BT E AR
exempted from capitalisation: HEH R RIE -
— Short-term leases and other leases — REEERFISAE
with remaining lease term ending HR=ZT—NF
on or before +=—A=+—8H
31 December 2019 3,2 Ail JE i Y
EhiHE (4,381)
— Leases of low-value assets — REEEEMHE (164)
11,858
Less: total future interest expenses W RIRA B B (109)
Present Value of remaining lease N-ZT—hFE—H—HE?R
payments, discounted using the ZHGBHEMNRZIRE
incremental borrowing rate and ({35 FH 38 22 2 SR P BRAGER)
total lease liabilities recognised REEEFEE
as at 1 January 2019 11,749
Of which are H
Current lease liabilities mEHEAE 3,995
Non-current lease liabilities FRBHEEARE 7,754
11,749




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to
leases previously classified as operating
leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised
for the remaining lease liabilities, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the statement of
consolidated financial position at 31
December 2018.

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

So far as the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on leases previously classified
as finance leases is concerned, the
Group is not required to make any
adjustments at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, other than
changing the captions for the balances.
Accordingly, instead of “Finance leases
payables”, these amounts are included
within  “Lease liabilities”, and the
depreciated carrying amount of the
corresponding leased assets is identified
as right-of-use assets. There is no impact
on the opening balance of equity.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # & —

k) J?ﬁﬁm?h@

—“NE+ZA=ZT—HLEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
‘2“.'/;—"‘ \jﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ.?(nﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—hE+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BT RZBETEBMBERELE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (48)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) FERAMIREETEEMBRE

(Continued) A (4&)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEMBHREERNE16REE (8)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (i) BN EEEERBEGE
(Continued) (%)
The following table summarises the T 2R A BR AN B TS s
impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on Al FE 165 A KBRS MR
the Group’s consolidated statement of MR E

financial position:

Effects of adoption of HKFRS 16
%%E/ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬁ‘l%wfﬁ’] 2

Line items in the

consolidated statement Carrying Carrying

of financial position XEMB AR BRE LD amount as at amount as

impacted by the F16HT 2R 31 December Re- Recognition el ELTIELY

adoption of HKFRS 16 A MK RERER 2018 classification of leases 2019

RZT—-N\F RZFB-1E
+-A=1+—-H —A—H
REREE E by HE®R HERE

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET FET FET

Assets &E

Right-of-use assets FREEE = 209,770 11,749 221,519

Property, plant mE  WRRRE

and equipment (@ 766,155 (209,770) - 556,385

Liabilities afE

Lease liabilities HEBRE - - 11,749 11,749

Note: HtaF -

(a) In relation to upfront payment for leasehold (@) FARSCRIR B AL A & 18 TR
lands previously classified as finance leases HENHEE T TENZEM
under property, plant and equipment, the F  AEEERBR=-Z—NEF—
Group re-categorises the carrying amount of A—BIHERENHEBEEMNR
the relevant assets which were still leased as T {8209,770,0005%8 7T & 7 2 8
at 1 January 2019 amounting to RIEAREE -

HK$209,770,000 as right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i)

Impact of the financial results and cash
flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1
January 2019, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. This results in a positive impact on
the reported profit from operations in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit
or loss, as compared to the results if
HKAS 17 had been applied during the
year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as
a lessee is required to split rentals paid
under capitalised leases into their
principal element and interest element
(note 38(c)). These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows and
operating cash outflows respectively.
Although total cash flows are unaffected,
the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in
presentation of cash flows within the
cash flow statement (note 38(d)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(i)

Impact of the financial results and cash
flows of the Group (Continued)

The following tables give an indication of
the estimated impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on the Group’s financial result
and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2019, by adjusting the
amounts reported under HKFRS 16 in
these consolidated financial statements to
compute estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been
recognised under HKAS 17 if this
superseded standard had continued to
apply in 2019 instead of HKFRS 16, and
by comparing these hypothetical amounts
for 2019 with the actual 2018
corresponding amounts which were
prepared under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BT RZLETEBMBERELE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (4&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) FERMEIREEITEEUBRE
(Continued) A (48)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) FEHEMBHREENE167HEE(E)
(i) Impact of the financial results and cash (i) HEEBHFEERERT HE
flows of the Group (Continued) Hy 2 ()

2019 2018
—E-n% —EN\E

Deduct:

Estimated

amounts
Add back: related to Hypothetical FeileEICoR0)
Amounts  HKFRS 16 operating amounts for amounts
reported depreciation lease as if PIRIEEE  reported for
under and interest under HKAS TGS 2018 under
HKFRS 16 expense 17 (note a) HKAS 17 HKAS 17

B : HEE
HERMAN HERES
e : &#& fEst&E —F-AEHN 2Rl
REEE BHEE (REEE RELH EATH
pHRE  ERIE165% A (REEE i)
ERHIE16T THHER E1TH) e LN —F-N\F
ERMEH FBRX (Biita) AV SEUR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Financial result EZROERMBREER

for year ended 16N EZBE

31 December 2019 —E-hE

impacted by the +-ZHA=t+-H

adoption of HKFRS 16: EEENMBES:
Profit from operation "EHRH 113,677 4,231 (4,351) 113,557 139,220
Finance costs BB A (11,536) 408 - (11,128) (13,167)
Profits before taxation BB i i 1 101,331 4,639 (4,351) 101,619 125,907
Profit for the year EREF 86,762 4,639 (4,351) 87,050 118,402
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
(i) Impact of the financial results and cash
flows of the Group (Continued)

3. IR

(a)

2019
“E-0E

Amounts
reported
under
HKFRS 16

REEEME
HEERIE165
28MEE
HK$'000
FAT

Line items in the consolidated cash ZiRWFHMEREREA
flow statement for year ended 31  H165HEZHBE

December 2019 impacted by the “E-hE
adoption of HKFRS 16: +=A=+-BLEE
HGARERER
EH :
Cash generated from operations BEFMRERE
Interest element of lease rentals paid EALHOFSHH
Net cash generated from operating BELBMRRLRE
activities
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERASHERDSD
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBHFAEZ
ReFE

YA

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019

201,194
(377)

159,317
(3,934)

(102,724)

31T RSB B BU GRS
81 (&)

FERM] REETEEMBHRE

A (%)

FREMBREEF165HEE (B)
(i) HAEEYERERALRE

HZE ()

Estimated
amounts
related to
operating  Hypothetical
leases as  amounts for
if under 2019 as
HKAS 17 if under
(notes a & b) HKAS 17
HEE
HEFHH
fEiteE ZB-AEW
(R E BRLHE
R (%
F17H)  FEEHER
(HiztaRb) E175)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

(4,311) 196,883

377 -
(3,934) 155,383
3,934 -
3,934 (98,790)

2018

“Z-N\%E

Compared to
amounts
reported for
2018 under
HKAS 17

BREES
E5HER
ENTHRERE
—Z-N\E
SELE
HK$ 000
FETL

203,632

177,193

(48,695)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
(i) Impact of the financial results and cash

flows of the Group (Continued)
Notes:

() The “estimated amounts related to operating
leases” is an estimate of the amounts of the
cash flows in 2019 that relate to leases which
would have been classified as operating
leases, if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2019.
This estimate assumes that there were no
difference between rentals and cash flows
and that all of the new leases entered into in
2019 would have been classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still
applied in 2019. Any potential net tax effect
is ignored.

(b) In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in
order to compute hypothetical amounts of net
cash generated from operating activities and
net cash used in financing activities as if
HKAS 17 still applied.

B B R Y ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

2

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2019. These new and revised
HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 Definition
of Material

1 January 2020

Amendments to HKFRS
9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

1 January 2020

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. leasehold land that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

(a)

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between () the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and
unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

4.

£ 108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. l|dentifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The
fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”)
or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held
by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence,
the holder’s intention and financial ability to
exercise or convert that right is not
considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at
cost. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the
investment at the end of each reporting period
when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an
associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that associate and (i) the Group’s entire
carrying amount of that associate (including
goodwill) and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the
equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rate for the
period (unless this average rate is
not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and
expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

— Al resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(i)

Translation on consolidation
(Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, including
buildings and leasehold land (upon application
of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, the interest in
leasehold land was reclassified to “Right-of-use
assets”, see note 3), held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

£ 136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost or revalued amounts less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are
as follows:

Buildings 5 to 20 years or over the
unexpired term of lease

Leasehold 2 to 5 years or over the
improvements unexpired term of lease

Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years

Computer equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
The residual values, useful lives and

depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and equipment
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i) The Group as a lessee
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily
laptops and office furniture. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, except for the right-
of-use assets related to leasehold land
where the Group is the registered owner
of the leasehold interest are carried at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Right-of-use asset related to leasehold
land held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts
do not differ materially from those that
would be determined using fair values at
the end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of such land is recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in land revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A
decrease in the carrying amount arising
on the revaluation of such land is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held
in the land revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of that asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Depreciation of revalued land is
recognised in profit or loss. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued land, the attributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the land revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to retained
earnings.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the unexpired term of lease.

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the
Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of
investment properties and lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4.

22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee
the Group classified leases as finance
leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group. Leases which
did not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group
were classified as operating leases,
except for the property held under
operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment
property was classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis
and, if classified.

Where the Group acquired the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets were recognised as property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, were
recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation was provided at
rates which wrote off the cost or
valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it was likely
the Group would obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset. Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments
were charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which
they were incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy prior to 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Where the Group had the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases were charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
was more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received were
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they were incurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

)

Research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Impairment is reviewed annually or when there
is any indication that the club membership has
suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Other contract costs
Other contract costs are the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or
less from the date of initial recognition of the
asset, in which case the costs are expensed
when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities
Contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) in accordance
with the policy set out in note 4(x) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the

related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
w e MR R M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

Z 116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

(m)

Recognition and derecognition of

financial instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the instrument is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income
from the instrument is calculated using
the effective interest method. Typically,
trade receivables, other receivables, cash
and bank balances are classified in this
category.

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T — A F+-_A=+—ALFE

4. FESFHHX(B)

0

(m)

ERBRRILERERMT A ()

AEBEEEBCHEE  BUEXER
B RIEERSRAE - & ILERK
TRABREESHEACD N REMNK
REBRIMCEENIREEE
SEAENRAB) WERE AIREBEET

EHEE
FIBABESTAEENEREERSR
BIER 5 AR RRILTHER - BT
TABERAEMSHAOLIEZL
MERARNEENGREEERS -
FECHANSRMEERLRA 2R
BEKARATEFE BFeRE
ENDEME -

Eetid
AEERBENBEHRENDDER TS
Heh—IBFH 885

- MREERBAFEUREAOERR
E MZFRENEERLE
KM BFRIE - Al S EHR A -
BREH N BWA Ty BB
REAE - EFRUFR - H
i UK IR ~ R e RIRTT AR
— R EFABN LR o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 7% = Mt = ( “a)

II‘Ii\

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % =

4.

Z 18

—hEF+ZA=Z+-HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the instruments
comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the instrument is held within
a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of ECLs,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the
instrument is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.

FVTPL if the instrument does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the instrument (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)

(n)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings but not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as
at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

4. FESFHHX(B)

(o)

(p)

ReERFRABELIER
RAekEFRRLERBRBRRITRTFE
Ae  RITEEMSBEENENE
FoARABRESRAENSRAS
WEHERE)  BEENERERR
AARERWIER =EA A&
B opmtlmeReRERMNS R
ERFRAESRBBRRERLERER
BRASER S EEAKE D WIRTT
Ex B RERRLER RS
EEERIERTE -

EMBERERKREIAR

ERMBERRATATRIEMETZD
BHTHMEE RRBEBWHERELE
AHERBEERRATANEZRMN D
B BATARERNASBER
HEABRNEET ARSI
TAEH - AFEEBARREAT
AMBANEHBRENRTX -

i) @E=
EEMT RN FEIGMES
MR ZRATER - HRANAE
BRFI AR B ANERT & -

FRIEASEER EIRITER
ARBENEERRRREEE R
SHRTEREL+ @A -
BRIEERSBEARBEE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised as a financial liability at the
time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

= the amount determined in
accordance with the ECL model
under HKFRS 9; and

= the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of
the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be
payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

(iii) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

(iv) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

For OEM Products that have no alternative use
to the Group and when the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date,
the Group recognises revenue from the sales of
such OEM Products as the performance
obligation is satisfied over time in accordance
with the input method, by reference to the
costs incurred to date over the total expected
costs. Otherwise, sales are recognised when
control of the products has been transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers. Delivery occurs when the products
have been delivered to the designated location
prescribed by the customer. Payment for
goods is not due from the customer until the
OEM Products are delivered to the customer
and therefore a contract asset is recognised
over the period in which the goods are
produced, representing the entity’s right to
consideration for the services performed to
date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from the sales of non-OEM Products
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customer as this represents
the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. A refund liability and a corresponding
adjustment to revenue is recognised for those
products expected to be returned. At the same
time, the Group has a right to recover the
product when customers exercise their right of
return so consequently recognises a right to
returned goods asset and a corresponding
adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate
the number of returns on a portfolio level using
the expected value method. It is considered
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
given the consistent level of returns over
previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from sales of moulds is recognised
when the quality of moulds are accepted by
the customers, and the customers have the
legal title to the moulds and can direct the
Group to use them for production.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are
earned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

4. FESFHHX(B)

n ESEH

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

EEEZHHRERH
BEFBREEMRBRNESR
FERER YEREERE
= 3R B T A B LR PR R
BEANERERERBEED
Bt B EFEL#EE -

12 B 7w i S B R 1R s 4

X7
7o

BAERIE

AEBERERETEKREFE
ERHR 2R EEHATS A
Zat &l o AT Bl R A ANEE R
BEEREEEAFESHNEDL
AHE - BBREMEKRRIKER
AERAEARERAZES
SAFHIHERK

ol ek 18 )

BEBRR AR AR E A BREZ
SEAMBHOENEEEREA
PRAS B8 e AN BEBR AR A B
(AREE RE) R -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

t)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the fair
value (excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and wused for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to
the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset. Effective 1 January 2019, any
specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
w e MR R M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

Z 160

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss to its estimated recoverable amount unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
w e MR R M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

£ 162

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECLs on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI,
lease receivables, trade and other receivables
and contract assets, as well as on financial
guarantee contracts. The amount of ECLs is
updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables. The ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

4.

A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

—  significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and

(i)  adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
w e MR R M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

£ 166

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

£ 168

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward—
looking information as described above. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets,
this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECLs is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or HKAS 17 (prior to 1 January 2019).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period,
but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial
asset in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(2)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period are
adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when
material.

4. FESFHHX(B)

(v)

(2)

BERIAEHE
HARERBEEHFAERBETL
HETE B {1 A B 75 22 487 A a8 i Hi A
BITABEEY AIEL A b &
ERERTREARSEN A EERE
o MRENREREEEN  BHEE
IBITEERBAERXORET
-

AR RER BEEMERL - XA
BB TRER S E - AR TR
SARBERE  BRIFBBEEN DR
HEO AT REMERR (K - RIFERIER © AT REAK
EONEE(AFERGEE - HXZ
HARKREMH A BT MHEE) IR
SRBERE  BRIFBBUEEN DR
HEY AT BE AR (K - BIERIER -

REMETSESEE
BEMHTERFAEREHRARERNE
SHIR AR EINER - 1hF
RAEFHY RRNGEMHERE
WEGFREEEN RS METEERE
o WEEKE - ARG MBHRER
B FE AR R o




CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are
dealt with below).

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Allowance for inventories

The directors identify obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items that are no longer
probable for use in production or to be sold
out at the end of each reporting period. The
directors estimate the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest
selling prices and costs of completion and
selling expenses estimated at current operation
conditions. The directors carry out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items.

(a)
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Allowance for inventories (Continued)
Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

The allowance on inventories as at 31
December 2019 was approximately
HK$49,735,000 (2018: HK$35,123,000).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$504,054,000 (2018:
HK$766,155,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2019, the management of the Group estimates
the amount of impairment loss for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets based on
the credit risk of trade receivables and contract
assets. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables and contract
assets are approximately HK$340,524,000
(2018: HK$376,785,000) (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$343,000
(2018: HK$229,000) and HK$17,731,000
(2018: HK$14,670,000) respectively.
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2

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.
During the year, approximately HK$14,569,000
(2018: HK$12,505,000) of income tax was
charged to profit or loss based on the
estimated profit from operations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which
principally relates to deductible temporary
differences and tax losses, depends on
whether it is probable that future taxable profits
or taxable temporary differences will be
available against which deferred tax assets can
be utilised. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits or taxable temporary differences
generated are less than expected, a reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal takes place. The
directors considered that, based on the profit
forecast of the group companies with tax
losses, it is probable that the tax losses can be
utilised in the foreseeable future. The profit
forecast required the use of judgement and
estimates.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
with respect to tax losses as at 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$11,364,000 (2018:
HK$7,938,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Fair value of leasehold land

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of
the leasehold land. In determining the fair
value, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of leasehold land as at 31
December 2019 was approximately
HK$212,610,000 (2018: HK$209,770,000).

Revenue and profit recognition

As explained in policy notes 4(q), revenue from
sales of moulds is recognised when the quality
of moulds is accepted by the customers and
the customers can direct the Group to use
them for production. Certain contracts with
customers may include moulds and products,
and the Group only charges the customers for
the products and recovers the costs of moulds
through the sales of products. Since moulds
and products are distinct performance
obligations, transaction price of a contract
should be allocated to moulds and products
separately. In the allocation of the transaction
price to moulds, the Group has to make
estimation of the stand-alone price of moulds
and the products, and the quantity of the
products that the moulds can be ultimately
manufactured. Actual outcomes of revenue may
be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years as
an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

During the year, approximately HK$163,588,000
(2018: HK$207,600,000) of revenue from
moulds was recognised.
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£ 176

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$, United States dollars
(*USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of other foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had weakened
0.5 per cent (2018: 0.5 per cent) against USD
with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,040,000 (2018:
HK$1,516,000) higher, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange gain on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
loss on trade payables denominated in USD
(2018: foreign exchange gain on trade
receivables and bank balances denominated in
USD, but partly offset by the foreign exchange
loss on trade and other payables denominated
in USD). If HK$ had strengthened 0.5 per cent
(2018: 0.5 per cent) against USD with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,040,000 (2018: HK$1,516,000) lower,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in USD, but partly offset
by the foreign exchange gain on trade payables
denominated in USD (2018: foreign exchange
loss on trade receivables and bank balances
denominated in USD, but partly offset by the
foreign exchange gain on trade and other
payables denominated in USD).
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6.

£ 178

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had weakened
5 per cent (2018: 5 per cent) against RMB with
all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$987,000 (2018: HK$871,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), but partly offset by the
foreign exchange gain on bank balances
denominated in RMB held by the Hong Kong
subsidiaries (2018: foreign exchange loss on
trade receivables and bank balances
denominated in HK$ held by the subsidiaries
operating in the PRC, but partly offset by the
foreign exchange gain on bank balances
denominated in RMB held by the Hong Kong
subsidiaries). If HK$ had strengthened 5 per
cent (2018: 5 per cent) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$987,000 (2018: HK$871,000)
higher, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange loss on bank
balances denominated in RMB held by the
Hong Kong subsidiaries (2018: foreign
exchange gain on trade receivables and bank
balances denominated in HK$ held by the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange loss on bank
balances denominated in RMB held by the
Hong Kong subsidiaries).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened
5 per cent (2018: 5 per cent) against USD with
all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$870,000 (2018:
HK$2,462,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange loss on trade payables
of the PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD,
but partly offset by the foreign exchange gain
on trade receivables and bank balances of the
PRC subsidiaries denominated USD (2018:
foreign exchange loss on trade payables of the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in USD). If RMB
had strengthened 5 per cent (2018: 5 per
cent) against USD with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$870,000 (2018: HK$2,462,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on trade payables of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD, but partly
offset by the foreign exchange loss on trade
receivables and bank balances of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD (2018: foreign
exchange gain on trade payables of the PRC
subsidiaries denominated in USD).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will
not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group’s
established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 120
days from the date of biling. Generally, debtors
with balances that are more than 30 days past
due or exceeding the credit limit granted are
requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

(Continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2019:

6.

s ERERE (&)

(b) EEREE(E)
BSEKWRIERSHEE ()

TR WAREE S EKRER
—E-AFT- A=+ -AMEEE
B RIEREEBRNER

2019
—T-AE

Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
RS E = AREEE BB E
% HK$’000 HK$’000

I=hd74 FEIT FEIT
Current (not past due) W (CR@E) 0.03% 312,896 94
1—30 days past due #HI1230H 0.56% 24,376 136
31—90 days past due #HI31Z=90H 1.76% 3,138 55
91—180 days past due #EIO1Z=180H 5.10% 269 14
More than 180 days past due A HIHEE 180 H 23.24% 188 44
340,867 343

2018

—T-N\F
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEH S 1B X E BB E BB
% HK$'000 HK$'000
Ak FET FET
Current (not past due) B (R ER) 0.02% 319,382 64
1—30 days past due #wHI1230H 0.19% 53,047 101
31—90 days past due B EI31 =90 H 1.09% 4,437 48
91—180 days past due #HI91 =180 H 2.29% 22 1
More than 180 days past due B HA#E 180 H 12.20% 126 15
377,014 229

8 =

TE-NFFER e EHBEEERERDLA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

6.

A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HBEKRERE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)
Trade receivables and contract assets BOBWRIERGHEE (E)
(Continued)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEHEEBXRDERBEIFNERE
experience over the past 3 years. These rates B - ZE R EFE U RBUK
are adjusted to reflect differences between SR L EEARMLENRR - BRI
economic conditions during the period over R 7S £5 (] 4 e WK IR T B SF HR Y A8
which the historic data has been collected, BERRANE L2 HRER -
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
The expected loss rates for contract assets are EREENTERBERARIEEE BAR
very low since the contract assets are due AREERBLAEFrERF, >  WHZ
from several major customers and no default ERFPBELSHEEERED - Bt
from these customers has happened in the I Mgk E H B EVE R B -
past. Therefore, no loss allowance has been
made with respect to the contract assets.
Movement in the loss allowance account in FANEBE SRR BEREER
respect of trade receivables during the year is BEHHT :
as follows:
2019 2018
—T-hE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January m—H—H 229 861
Impairment losses recognised 4 A FE SR K 6l 1B &5 18
for the year 117 132
Reversals [o] % - (764)
Exchange difference bE =8 (3) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 343 229




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The following changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables and contract
assets contributed to the increase in the loss
allowance during 2019:

— increase in the expected loss rate due to
a forecast of the future poorer economic
condition, but partly offset by;

— decrease in specific write-off of bad debt
happened during the year, which lowered
the historical loss rate.

Financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group’s investments at amortised
cost are considered to have low credit risk,
and the loss allowance recognised during the
period was therefore limited to 12-month
expected losses.

,?v'FA,M"#&%%MT*I(,.‘;)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. MBERERE (&)

(b)

fEEmE b (&)
BORKRERSHEE (F)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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6.

A

8 % ¥ == Y =E ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T

—hEF+ZA=Z+-HLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, its compliance with
lending covenants and its relationship with its
bankers to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s bank
borrowings and other financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates currently at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for other financial liabilities is prepared
based on the scheduled repayment dates.

6. MBERERE (&)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HKEKRERE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HRENEEE(E)
2019
—F-0E
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
HBAAMT — KRB LR
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but undiscounted
Within less than less than More than cash
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years outflows
1704 WENL R
BREX - BYREE EVREE RENE BeRHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T FET FET FET
Trade payables U 29,282 179,732 - - - 200,014
Refund liabilties RHEE 24 - - - - 241
Other payables and accruals 4/ 208 )&
B 3 54,695 - - - 54,698
Due to associates EfBEAEZE 1,305 - - - - 1,305
Bank borrowings RITEH 147,146 58,417 35,577 24,507 - 265,647
Lease liabilties BEAR - 6,000 4,108 1,892 - 12,000
177,977 208,844 39,685 26,399 - 542,905
2018
2N\
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
HEASH - AMBREMH

More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but undiscounted
Within less than less than More than cash
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years outflows
—ENE MEAE ESiE!
RER —F7  EIR@E EIREF RENE RERLAHE

HK$000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSO00  HK$O0D
TET TET TET TET TET TET

Trade payables %%Féﬁwﬁ 51,808 212,224 = = = 264,032

Refund liabilities RHEE 241 - - - - 241
Other payables and accruals  E th Ef 508

Fﬁ%ﬁ 3 76,024 = = = 76,027

Due to associates EfEEQR 3,257 - — - - 3,257

Bank borrowings RTEX 186,260 60,196 56,119 28,106 = 330,681

241,569 348,444 56,119 28,106 - 674,238

—ENEEH . REERERARAT 185 —




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements.

The amounts

include

interest payments

computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis contained above.

6. MBERERE (&)

(c)

mENE 2 EM (48)

TR AR B 12 2 RAEE R
RITIE TR E R BRI HHEER
BHNEIMBEL RERER/R
BRNEFTEOFSRE - Bt - &%
ERBEXAHDNBAADFPZ
2R IKRRABEARENSBAR °

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayment on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments

MBS - RECERMMAREREERRNRTEE

More than More than Total
On demand 1 year but 2 years but undiscounted
or within less than less than More than cash
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years outflows
BER - 174 MELL RIFH
-k BEYREE BEIREE AENLE HEFHESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET FET
31 December 2019 —B-NE
+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings RITER 148,078 - - - 148,078
31 December 2018 —Z-)\F
+=A=1+-8
Bank borrowings RITER 167,335 21,614 - - 188,949

£ g6




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arises from its bank deposits, short
term and long term borrowings. These deposits
and borrowings bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market
condition.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates at that
date had been 10 basis points (2018: 10 basis
points) lower with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$80,000 (2018: HK$124,000) higher, arising
mainly as a result of lower interest expenses
on bank borrowings but partly offset by lower
interest income on bank balances. If interest
rates had been 100 basis points (2018: 100
basis points) higher, with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been approximately
HK$801,000 (2018: HK$1,238,000) lower,
arising mainly as a result of higher interest
expenses on bank borrowings but partly offset
by higher interest income on bank balances.

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T — A F+-_A=+—ALFE

6. MBERERE (&)

(d)

F 2 = b

7K 8 A ) SR L 3R 2 ELARAT IR B
CEREMER - ZETRRERE
558 2 5 45 RO T 42 B ) TR R 6

AR e

RZZE—AF+ZA=1+—8 ' 7
RTHAOMEER (= —/\F : 10f#
B MEMABEHERFTE
B & N Br B 12 4R & & B A5 35 00 49
80,000/ 7T (=& — /A4 : 124,0007%
TL)  FERRIRITERMF B
WARE R ESRRITES
B F B AR D F K8 o i FIE _EF
1001E E B (ZF — )\ : 1001 £
) MEMAEESERTE A
FABRBEES &M BB DL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MKEKRERE (&)
(Continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at (e) M+=—A=+—H&mMIAZS
31 December L]
2019 2018
ZE—hEF —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets measured at HEEKATENSREE
amortised cost 613,212 638,211
Financial assets measured BAFEFAEMEE RS
at FVTOCI: e REE :
Equity instruments BRATA - -
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised — ZE# KX AT ERN SR B E
cost 524,304 668,018
() Fair values (H 2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial REBrzeREERCRBENGSE
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the AR R R Z BREEME EER
consolidated statement of financial position FEZATFE-

approximate their respective fair values.

Z a8

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access
at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused

the transfer.

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T — A F+-_A=+—ALFE

7. AVENE
RNFEEMSE2REZANGESNESR
FREFHERESKNRERAER/X
MEOER - TXEBEEAAFESAFTE
MAFE AEFERAFEN[ELAZ
gD B =ERSH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. DVEFE (&)

(Continued)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value

(a) AFEFRFRBWEE -

hierarchy:
Fair value measurement using: Total
AFEFEFA oy
Description I5EH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
E1E FE2JE $3E —FB-NE
HK$’000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000
FET FET FEIT FET
Recurring fair value EEMAFETE:
measurements:
Leasehold land HELTH
Commercial — Hong Kong EERal-: - - 58,710 58,710
Commercial — the PRC BE — FH - - 153,900 153,900
Total &t - - 212,610 212,610
Fair value measurement using: Total
NEEFEMA e
Description ERE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
F1E FoE FIE —T—N\F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T8T T T
Recurring fair value EEMAFETE:
measurements:
Leasehold land HELH
Commercial — Hong Kong HE = = 56,370 56,370
Commercial — the PRC BE — FH = = 153,400 153,400
Total a&t — — 209,770 209,770

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. DY EFEGE)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at (b) REBEE=BAFEIEMNSEYH
fair value based on level 3: BR :
Properties
held for
own use — 2019
Leasehold land Total
FIEERYME —E-AhF
— et gt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT F&
At beginning of year F4 209,770 209,770
Recognised in profit or loss: RIBEPER
Depreciation charge for the FRREERA R
year recognised in cost of —RRITBHAXH
sales and general and BRZTERY
administrative expenses (6,197) (6,197)
Gain on revaluation of ME T EBEER W=
leasehold land 313 313
Recognised in other A E b 2 T U 2k P RERR
comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on BEBINEBELEZ
translating foreign MEHZER
operations (2,555) (2,555)
Surplus on revaluation of HMETMEBEEN 2 BH
leasehold land 11,279 11,279
At end of year FR 212,610 212,610

ST REEH e BRARERERAT 191 —




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7.
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at (b)

fair value based on level 3:

DNFEFE (E)

RBE=EBATEFENEEY
AR - (&)

(Continued)

Properties
held for
own use — 2018
Leasehold land Total
FRIEEBRME —E—N\F
— HELH @Er
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of year F4) 202,030 202,030
Recognised in profit or loss: RIBEPER
Depreciation charge for the FAREEX RN R KK
year recognised in cost of TBHRZAERZITE
sales and general and X
administrative expenses (5,786) (5,786)
Gain on revaluation of HE THEEERE 2 WS
leasehold land 265 265
Recognised in other P E i 2 T W 2 P R
comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on BEBINEBEELEZ
translating foreign b =58
operations (7,597) (7,597)
Surplus on revaluation of HELHEBESEH B
leasehold land 20,858 20,858
At end of year FR 209,770 209,770

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in surplus
on revaluation of leasehold land and exchange
differences on translating foreign operations in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

A E At 2 T i a5 P RERR 2 4B M as S ES
BONReEaEtEmiaRT
ZHELWEEEGR ZABRBRES
INEBEEZELEZRZT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets measured at
fair value based on level 3
(Continued):

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss are presented in cost of sales, general
and administrative expenses and other
operating expenses and income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

All the gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss for the year were attributable to the
unrealised gain and loss of the leasehold land
held at the end of the reporting period.

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2019:
The Group’s financial controller is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports
directly to the Board of Directors for these fair
value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience to perform the
valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair
value measurements are mainly adjusted
accommodation value/price per square metre/
square feet of the PRC and Hong Kong
leasehold land estimated based on recent
market transactions.

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

7. AYVEFEGR)

(b)

(c)

RIBE=EBATEFENEEY
AR (48) -

RIB s AR 2 B U s Sk B 1R T R
BEARPZHERS  —BRRITR
X hEMmEERS M m27 -

FRARERBR AR K HER
BHRBERRAF2AEL 2R
BRI S R E R
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EEFRANGEEEFRAFEE
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THENEERBENAFEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

£ 104

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)

(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used (c) R=FE—hE+=-A=+—HB=X
by the Group and valuation techniques ESEMRANGEEFRAFE
and inputs used in fair value FFEFRFRANEERERZ2EH
measurements at 31 December 2019 WEE (&) :

(Continued):
Level 3 fair value measurements E=EEATHEEE
Fair value
AFE
Effect
on fair
value for
Valuation increase of
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables inputs 2019 2018
SyEmy
EH hERE FUBREHEY TR EEE ATENMRE | = ks ZZ\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Land use rights in Direct comparison ~ Adjusted accommodation ~ RMB538/square metre- Increase 12,800 13,300
Egongling Village, approach value per square metre RMB3,298/square metre #m
Pinghu Town, HEILEA taking into account the  (2018: RMB1,479/square
Shenzhen City, differences from the metre-RMB1,538/square
the PRC comparables with metre)
HERYTmEREED respect to location, BT ARARESBTEETLHK
ENETIERE size, tenure and yield ARE3 28 (ZE—N\F:
rate BYHAARE 19T ERT
BEEA BT HAARE1,5387)
%omE ERFER
KaxZE2NETAK
BREEEER
Land use rights in Direct comparison ~ Adjusted price per square  RMB670/square metre- Increase 132,300 131,100
Western District of approach metre taking into RMB683/square metre (2018: 30
Daya Bay, Huizhou ~ EZHEE account the differences  RMB580/square metre—
City, the PRC from the comparables RMB594/square metre)
HEENTATERR with respect to FEHRAREGTOTZBT HA
MLmEmE location, size, tenure ARE6BITL(ZE-\F: §
and yield rate FARARESOLZERTER

BERALR LI KARBE47T)
#oEE RRFAR
hEZZ20ETIK
BREER

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value

B B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. DV EFEGE)

(c) R=-TB—h&E+-A=+—H=F
EEFRFAMNEERFRAFEE
STERFEANEESERZEM

measurements at 31 December 2019 WEE (&) :
(Continued):
Level 3 fair value measurements EEEAFER=E(E)
(Continued)
Fair value
A¥E
Effect
on fair
value for
Valuation increase of
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables inputs 2019 2018
SyEmy
EH h{ER & FUBRENEY T EEE ATENRE D= ks —T-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Land use rights in Wuhu  Direct comparison ~ Adjusted price per square  RMB142/square metre- Increase 8,800 9,000

City, Anhui Province,

the PRC
MERGAEHRTH

THRAE

Land use rights in Billon
Centre, Kowloon
Bay, Hong Kong

EENEERRTON
TifRAE

approach
ERLEE

Direct comparison
approach

EELRE

metre (2018: Adjusted
price per square metre)
taking into account the
differences from the
comparables with
respect to location,
size, tenure and yield
rate

BERAHE T
% mE ERFER
KaxzEMFTHK
BRBER/(ZZ-N
1)

Adjusted price per square
feet taking into
account the differences
from the comparables
with respect to location
and size

EAR T S RE
BEZNBTHRE
BER

RMB386/square metre (2018: &I
RMB144/square metre-
RMB386/square metre)
BYAKARB1LTEET A
ARKIBOT(ZE—N\F: &
FARARE1MUTEGTR

RARB3867T)
HK$13,025/square feet- Increase 42,330 40,730
HK$13,325/square feet (2018:  3&7I
HK$11,480/square fest-
HK$13,906/square feet)

I HRI130BBTEETAR
13,3258 L (25— \F: B8F
AR 480BTEFF AR
13,9063 )




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

%
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques

and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2019

(Continued):
Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

7. A¥

(c)

Bt &8 (/)

RZF-AE+ZA=+—BX
SEMERANGEEEFRAEE
sSFEMERANGELERZHBH
W (&) -

FZEATESER)

Fair value
AFE
Effect
on fair
value for
Valuation increase of
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables inputs 2019 2018
SyEmy
EH h{ER & FUBRENEY TiEEE ATENRE P ks —T\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  HK$5,039/square feet- Increase 16,380 15,640
Kinetic Industrial approach feet taking into HK$7,525/square feet (2018: 10
Centre, Kowloon BEREEE account the differences HK$4,920/square feet-
Bay, Hong Kong from the comparables HK$7,168/square feet)

BENEERN IR
L) 134 66 PR A

BER

The fair value of leasehold land held for own
use located in the PRC and Hong Kong is
determined using direct comparison approach
recent sales price of
land on
accommodation value per metre or price per
square metre/square feet basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of
the Group’s leasehold land compared to the
recent sales. Higher premium for higher quality
in a higher fair

by reference to
comparable leasehold

land will result
measurement.

During the two years, there were no changes in

the valuation techniques used.

with respect to location

and size
EaLE L2 B RE

BEZNGTHREH

57 5RE00BTESTHR

75268 (ZE-N\F

8%

FR4Q0BLEFTEAR

7,168%7T)

NRFEREEFBIEEANEEL
WO RFEDEAERLEEETE
ETFE2EALREE L T HHE
HEFHAREEERIEFHT KT
TRER  WIRAKREHEELHOE
B B RT3 & LB B B R B e
RELPE -SHELHAZARR
BE YAEEBRSHNAFENER
-

RWEFE - FERNEET AL E

#eh
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8.

REVENUE

(a)

Disaggregation of revenue
The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of zinc, magnesium and
aluminium alloy die casting and plastic injection
products and components, trading of lighting
products and home appliances.

Disaggregation of revenue derived from the
transfer of goods and services of the Group
over time and at a point in time is as follows:

B B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. WA

(@) WASHF
AEEEERSLEEREER &R
BETERE BERBRIZEMMETE
- RPERMRERELES -

AEERN —BRERENE S
&

%g»{b =]

RBEEWRADFWT

B2 on

2019 2018
Timing of revenue recognition W\ &% B —E—-hEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&iT FET

Products transferred at a point A3 —EF2i#E 2 ZE f
in time 1,359,558 1,643,024
Products transferred over time R —RIEREZESR 194,806 209,305
1,554,364 1,852,329

Disaggregation of revenue from major products
are as follows:

KETBEEMZBADHMOT

2019 2018
Types of products EmfEE —E—-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Die casting products BREEm 788,935 872,338
Plastic injection products BB E B EE 557,870 718,311
Moulds RA 163,588 207,600
Others H A 43,971 54,080
1,554,364 1,852,329

197 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

8.

£ a8

REVENUE (Continued)

(b)

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue as
follows:

8. WA (&)

(b)

SEEEFAVHMBRBEHRE
X 5 EHE

RZZE-—NF+A=+—RH5kZE
RIABRAOBE (REITHE D RETT)
B3 5 B A% I W sR U A /Y T8 HA I ) 40
™

Sales of goods

HESGSR
2019 2018
—E-NhE —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
Within one year —F R 3,855 35,241
More than one year —F U 171,096 156,998
174,951 192,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME H AU A
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income on bank deposits RITF M B A 747 300
Insurance compensation RERESE 733 —
Rental income HEUWA 502 176
Reimbursement from customers PR E U E 12,212 11,994
Compensation from suppliers HEmFHE 68 598
Sales of scrap materials FERISHE 3,823 3,290
Sales of raw materials R EHEE 195 —
Government grants BT By & 7,881 2,679
Others Hh 5,323 1,863
31,484 20,900

Government grants mainly comprised unconditional
support for subsidising the Group’s research and

development.

BT EEREREXEARE

&R -

TE-NFFR e EREBEERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. ZEER
For management purposes, the Group’s operation is BAEEEE AEBEREBHSAANE(Z
currently categorised into six (2018: six) operating T—N\F: N E) BRI — 8 RIS
divisions — zinc, magnesium, aluminium alloy die SRE - ;EH E B n AN Z EB 4 A K BR B
casting, plastic injection products and components, EmNMRXERALES ZSHFIRAEE
as well as trading of lighting products and home hEZBAFERNELE - KEBE 2 27
appliances. These divisions are the basis of the DEREH-TEER A RIS ELER -
Group’s five reportable segments. The Group’s AR EBEBRZETR M EE TR KA
reportable segments are strategic business units that FEAN WZESIHB DB LB

offer different products. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology
and different cost measurement.

The Group’s other operating segments include REBERMEMESEDBRIERBERMEK
trading of lighting products and home appliances. BREMNES - EHHHREIATEA
None of these segments meets any of the EWMHHNEME(PIE - AL D
quantitative thresholds for determining reportable R B RS [ E | — 4 -

segments. The information of these other operating

segments is included in the ‘Others’ column.
BERMKEETBEMEBRA - BEYK
BOMENTEER  DERX - MEK
FRS BRI -

Segment profits or losses do not include interest P
income, corporate income, share of losses of =
associates, corporate expenses, finance costs and PN
income tax expense.

Information about reportable segment profit ERFBRFIFBEZELNT :
or loss:

Magnesium  Aluminium
Zinc alloy alloy die alloy die Plastic
die casting casting casting injection Others Total

HELEE B02EE REcEE UREE Hth ey
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—-H %

+ZA=+—-HLEE
Revenue from extemal customers R ENREF KA 158,745 496,168 140,665 714,815 43,971 1,554,364
Segment profit/(loss) AERF/(BE) 6,204 41,272 5,706 71,101 (4,133) 120,240
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 5,220 29,837 5,199 45,159 1,189 86,604
Impairment losses on property, Y% - ME R R ERE
plant and equipment BB 722 - - 2,604 - 3,326

Z Hm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. DEBEE ()
Information about reportable segment profit ERNEBBANEBE2EEINT (8) :

or loss (Continued):

Magnesium  Aluminium

Zinc alloy alloy die alloy die Plastic
die casting casting casting injection Others Total
HEeERE BAEEE hacEE  2BIE Hity By

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 — HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET

Year ended 31 December 2018  #HZ_-ZT—\&E

+ZA=+—ALFE
Revenue from external customers 2R B INRE F AR A 168,382 561,695 161,303 906,869 54,080 1,852,329
Segment profit aR=iibig 9,119 40,198 3,976 86,734 5,449 145,476
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 3,571 29,511 4,712 42,029 312 80,135
Impairment losses on property, MmE - BERRERE
plant and equipment B 1,369 2,492 — — — 3,861
Impairment losses on investments  F B & A 7] 2 % B R {E
in associates Bia = = = — 1,652 1,652
Reconciliation of reportable segment SRS  imFISESIEZEHER -
revenue, profit or loss:
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#EiT FETT
Revenue DN
Total revenue of reportable segments £ ¥R% &52 AU A 1,554,364 1,852,329
Unallocated amounts o FEEHE - —
Consolidated revenue RE WA 1,554,364 1,852,329
“E-NFEFR e EMBIRERBRAT 2|:"1j
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss (Continued):

10. 2 HEF (E)

(%) :

E/RFEWA B EE 2 HER

2019 2018
—Z—-NhE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Profit or loss it F 5 B5 48
Total profit of reportable segments 2 548 F 120,240 145,476
Unallocated amounts: THMEER -
Share of losses of associates BN NG E = (810) (146)
Interest income FLEWA 747 300
Finance costs A& B (11,536) (13,167)
Income tax expense RS (14,569) (12,505)
Corporate income ERA 203 205
Corporate expenses TERY (7,603) (6,761)
Consolidated profit for the year F AR S i Al 86,762 113,402
2019 2018
—T-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other material items HitEXEE
— depreciation and amortisation = — ITE R
Total depreciation and amortisation of 2 ¥ 5 34837 & K B §5
reportable segments 86,604 80,135
Unallocated amounts: TNHfEER -
Depreciation of property, plant and ERME - ERE R
equipment for corporate use BB E 2,179 1,906
Consolidated depreciation ERE T E K
and amortisation 88,783 82,041

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B B R B

&t (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information: i E &
Revenue
A

2019 2018
—T-hE ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BB 162,722 225,467
The PRC except Hong Kong R (BABBRIN 636,311 686,395
Japan AR 16,969 25,775
USA = 619,770 759,589
Others HAh 118,592 155,103
Consolidated total REBE 1,554,364 1,852,329

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is
based on the locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical
areas are not presented as the aggregate amount of
the geographical segments other than the PRC is
less than 10% (2018: less than 10%) of the
aggregate amount of all segments.

2R ERE - WARNE PR &

2k -

ARRHBEIN2E SR IEREEELR
SREFENBIBELNI0% (ZF—N
FAOR10%)  FIARKERBRIES

5I] o

TE-NFFR e EREBEERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 HEHR ()
Revenue from major customers: RKEEEERZKA:
2018
—E-NhE —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
Zinc alloy die casting segment HESEBED
Customer a % Fa 73,381 87,378
Customer b EFb 37,432 40,508
Magnesium alloy die casting segment & & B8 5 2
Customer ¢ ZFEc 46,611 43,945
Customer e ZFe 338,475 339,388
Aluminium alloy die casting segment  $84 £ R 5 26
Customer a X Fa 71,554 81,317
Customer e XFe 9 161
Plastic injection segment BRIFE D E
Customer b EFb 65,901 80,798
Customer d EFd 560,592 700,003

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11.

B B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND 1. HKERZRKWA
INCOME
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Allowance for inventories FTERE 15,868 18,890
Bad debts written off 122 BR W 8H 491 655
Inventories written off FEMH 11,504 —
Impairment losses on deposit paid B S REEE - 1,364
Impairment losses on property, plant  #0% - #2E MR E 2
and equipment BEEE 3,326 3,861
Impairment losses on investments in B A BIRE R EEE
associates - 1,652
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - R
and equipment B2 EE 4,956 486
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - Hees R i sE
written off 221 238
Gain on revaluation of land T B WA (313) (265)
36,053 26,381

TE-NFFER e EHEKRERERLA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

12.

13.

2= 206

FINANCE COSTS 12.

2019 2018
—F-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET

Interest expenses on lease liabilittes & & EF 8%

(note 20) (Htt20) 408 —
Interest expenses on bank borrowings #8177 & 2 A &5 X 11,128 13,167
11,536 13,167

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank
borrowings including bank borrowings which contain
a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with
the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in
the loan agreements. For the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018, the interest on bank
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand
clause amounted to approximately HK$6,382,000
and HK$6,576,000 respectively.

BRI RBITERORENS - B85
R IR B 5K 100 o P 3 A0 2 O TRUE B SRR 2 BRY
BREREBRGFORITER BE-F
—NFRZFE-NFF+_A=F+—HLF
B - MAEREREEGERRORITERFE
2 7l %496,382,00078 7T % 6,576,000 7T

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FTEHIAX
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
Current tax BVHARR 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBNER
Provision for the year NEEEE 16,920 17,467
Under/(Qver)-provision in prior years  BEFEEETE
(R ) 1,776 (2,303)
Current tax BVHATH 18
— Income tax outside Hong Kong — BELINTER
Provision for the year REEEE 4,785 10,099
Over-provision in prior years BEFERBERE (3,727) (167)
Deferred tax (note 33) IEIERIIA (B77£33) (5,185) (12,591)
Income tax expense PS5 78 ¢ 14,569 12,505
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first
HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations established in Hong Kong is lowered to
8.25% (2018: 8.25%), and assessable profits above
HK$2 million will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%). For the other Hong Kong established
subsidiaries, Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
provided at a rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
Law, the statutory tax rate for the Group’s
subsidiaries established and operating in Mainland
China is 25% (2018: 25%).

Income tax on overseas profit has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing on the overseas countries
in which the Group operates.

According to the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax at a
rate of 10% would be imposed on dividend payment
relating to profits earned from year 2008 onwards to
foreign investors for the companies established in the
PRC. Such tax rate may be further reduced by
applicable tax treaties or arrangements.

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T — A F+-_A=+—ALFE

FreBim= (&)
ERARFFEHHNET  EEBRILNE
EREBERE2008 8 TR S MR E
8.25% (ZZF— \F : 8.25%) ' M200& /&
LA EHERBRN < B EB16.5% (ZF
—)\F :16.5%) - R EMEBEABKILA
B AR BIRMEFTERBREFA16.5%
(ZZE—N\F :16.5%) BT RFTEHEFE
it o

13.

RIBFRCEMBRE  REBRFEK
BERK N R BB 2 B AR Z AT K 525%
(ZZB—\F :25%) °

8 5132 R 2 B 18 AR R 4F P fi O AR B
R A KBS 2B B BRZRTHE
R

REFBEGRABTL  INEREEHR
ZTN\FREVPBEKL 2 AR RIS
MR Z BB ST AR i AN 10%TREEH © 7%
MEBAGIZERRB RO L HE—F
BEAK o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—hE+_-_A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FISHiFAX (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense FT 15 % 5 2 B2 BR B A s B R LA BB 1S 8L
and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the METEMSERNEROT

Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

2019 2018
“F-hF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$"000
FET AT

Profit before tax B 5 B & A 101,331 125,907

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate at 12 & B RS £16.5%

16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZZ—N\F :16.5%)
TENHIE 16,720 20,775

Tax effect of expenses that are A ASZ OB B E

not deductible 6,526 11,006
Tax effect of income that is not AR AT &

taxable (1,431) (5,923)
Tax effect of temporary differences not 7k #& 52 & B 2= £ H) Fi 75

recognised wE (865) (5,313)
Tax effect of share of loss of BoBE N NaBE BB

associates o 134 24
Tax effect of recognition of tax losses R F Al A HERR < i 15 5 18

not previously recognised ZIRIG R E (3,660) (7,239)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERHBEBE MG 2

recognised 5,068 3,154
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses 2 f 5t Al K #E R 2 Fi 3E

not previously recognised BEZTE (7,439) (2,016)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (1,951) (2,470)
Under-provision for current year REEBEBETR (1,405) (2,037)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate MRFIHE 2 R E (165) (169)
Tax effect of different tax rates M AR RRE 2 B

of subsidiaries T 3,037 2,709
Income tax expense TSR X 14,569 12,505
In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, BREBRKRIEREIN REFARERZEE
deferred tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s T E 2 AR IE D R E A 2 E U
leasehold land during the year has been charged to # HR A ER o

other comprehensive income.

Z 508




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ge UK M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. FREF
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after REBMFRZGEFBTAFOR) THE
charging/(crediting) the following: | :

Allowance for inventories (note (a)) FERE (Mt @)
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ELRD B &
Bad debts written off (note (a)) ZARMEE (AT iE @)
Cost of inventories sold (note (b)) BEFEXA
(H1: (b))
Gain on revaluation of land T E Uk E
(note (a)) (Hit(a)
Depreciation of property, plant and I - S RREINE
equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRAEEENE
Inventories written off 15 & Hf 84
Impairment losses on deposit paid BfIiEeREEE
(note (a)) (Hit(a)
Impairment losses on property, plant and 1% - #48E KRR RIE
equipment (note (a)) &1 (A it(a)
Impairment losses on trade receivables B S RYGRIAERBEEE
Impairment losses on investments in REEE R RIRERE
associates (note (a)) &518 (A it (@)
Net exchange loss M 5 OF B 18
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - WS REE
and equipment (note (a)) FEE (K@)
Property, plant and equipment written off — #7% - #2838 K =& 85
(note (a)) (Hiit(a)
Operating lease charges in respect of land 3 M LY LN E
and buildings and office equipment BEEHES N
Other fees paid to the auditor of NARBZEEN 2
the Company HiEA
Reversal of impairment losses on B 5 W IR EEE
trade receivables Al Ik

Research and development expenditure FEEAZES

2019
—E-hE

HK$’000
FET

15,868
1,800
491
1,121,180
(313)
78,355

10,428
11,504

3,326
117

429

4,956

221

357

4,727

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FET

18,890
1,770

655
1,347,447
(265)

82,041

1,364

3,861
132

1,652
9,418

486
238
7,900
353

(764)
768

Notes: oz

(@) These amounts are included in other operating expenses and (@)
income.

(b) Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation (b)

of approximately HK$344,098,000 (2018: HK$394,038,000),
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately
above and in note 15.

ZERECFARMEERI RBAR -

EEFERACREREIRARMNED
344,098,000/ 7T (= F — /\ £ : 394,038,000/%&
TT) - WEERB DN EXRMFEIGRE -

000 —




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EERAFAX
2019 2018
—E-NE —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Employee benefits expense EEEAASZ (TEREES
(excluding directors’ emoluments): &)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances FEN - AL BOERE 358,864 416,429
Retirement benefit scheme RIRTEFEH &I 3K
contributions 25,599 24,732
Other benefits H b 43 7 37,881 41,172
422,344 482,333
Five highest paid individuals hEamEHMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during FARAEEN A ERaTWALTBEBERS
the year included two (2018: two) directors whose (Z2E—N\F WMB)EZT BEMSFS
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in HRM 16T - REBEEZZT—NF
note 16. The emoluments of the remaining three TZAZET—BLEFEHT=Z(ZZT—AN
(2018: three) individuals for the year ended 31 F:ZRA)RRTWHATHBMSIT

December 2019 are set out below:

2019 2018

—E—hEF —E—)\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#EiT FETT

Basic salaries and allowances AN F B K =B 4,395 4,396

Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 350 1,184
Retirement benefits scheme RIRERET B

contributions 54 54

4,799 5,634

Z o0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ge UK M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. BEERAFAX (&)
(Continued)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued) hEmEFHMAL(E)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENFATEHE :

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
—E-NE —T—)\F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L2
1,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T2
2,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 B L2
2,500,000/% 7T - 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FANAEEVERZETSTMALE
Group to any of these highest paid individuals as an SEE{R] 1 5 I B 2N 52 B 5 ok 2 14 /O 52 B sk
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BEBOREZME -

compensation for loss of office.

oy N\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

16. EBRTHAHEN R =

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

YA

OFFICER
(a) Emoluments of directors (a) EEBE
The emoluments of each director were as ZEENMELT
follows:
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
BIET
Name of director EEita e HaREN B SRR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FAET FET
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-S-1&
+=ZA=+-H
Executive directors BITESE
Mr. Lee TRk - 3,098 360 18 3,476
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EXBEE - 1,665 200 18 1,883
Ms. CHAN So Wah fnote j) BREERL (W) - 900 140 14 1,054
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIUFHTEE
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff 8ss, s BRIZ S Fees - e 192 - - - 192
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok 85, MH, Jp EREBLsEs WP 192 - - - 192
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly — STEI %4 (MIBIER)
known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie) 180 - - - 180
Mr. Andrew LOOK BERiAE 193 - - - 193
Total for 2019 “I-hEE 757 5,663 700 50 7,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

(i) Ms. Chan So Wah was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 1 April 2019.

(ii) Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu retired as an executive director
of the Company on 1 January 2019.

There were no arrangements under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2018: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF 16. EERITHRAZEANR A& (B)
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)
(a) Emoluments of directors (Continued) (a) EEME(E)
Retirement
benefts
Salaries and Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus contributions Total
RIKER
Name of director SRS we  HeREH WA AR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
T FET T FET T
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-\&
+-A=+-H
Executive directors BiTEE
Mr. Lee ThE = 3,101 835 18 3,954
Dr. WONG Cheong Yiu fnote i BREREL (H#i) = 1,583 - 9 1,592
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EABREE - 1666 448 18 2132
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIFHTES
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff 88s, Jo BRI\ ess, o 180 = = = 180
I Dr. LO Wai Kwok sBs, MH, Jp EEEETsBs, MH, P 180 = = = 180
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly TR %4 (RIEITER)
known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie) 180 - - - 180
Mr. Andrew LOOK BEREAE 180 - - - 180
Total for 2018 T \E& 720 6,350 1,283 45 8,398
Notes: Wit -

(i) MEELLTR-_T-NFEOA-—BEE
ERERRZHITESE

(ii) HERBLIR _T-NF-A-BRE
RRFMITES 2B -

EERAFAREFLRERFRER
BEMMENLZE (ZT-N\FE) -

FR - AEEYEAENESNE
A{ERMBEAREBR N 2 &1 REK
BERHENNE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)

Y

16. EBRTHAH BN R = (&)

2

(b) Emoluments of chief executive officer (b) TTHEEZENE
Dr. Wong Cheong Yiu was also the chief RZFE-NF—H—RAEZ—N\F
executive officer of the Company from 1 AA=+—H #ZERELALRF
January 2018 to 31 May 2018 and his THAE  EXFBEEENHSeE
emoluments disclosed above include those HIEETRBEMRHE RS - RN
services rendered by him as chief executive E—N\FARA—B WETHEITERE
officer. On 1 June 2018, he stepped down BB HEEREEARRINITE
from his position as chief executive officer but EHEE-_FT - N\FF+_A=+—H-
remained as an executive director of the
Company until 31 December 2018.
Mr. Leung King Kwok, Godfrey sBs was R L EsBSR T — LF Lt A
appointed as the chief executive officer of the ZT=HEZAERNRNTITHEE -
Company on 23 July 2019. Mr. Lee has THEARE BRTTREE 2B -
stepped down as the chief executive officer HE_ZT-NF+-A=1+—HItF
since that date. The remuneration of the chief EITHBE 2 FH T
executive officer for the year ended 31
December 2019 is disclosed as follows:
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
allowances contributions Total
BHERN
Fi BN B R RS ST st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—hfE
+=A=+—H
Mr. Leung King Kwok, Godfrey sBs 224k Bl 5t 4 sBs 826 9 835
(c) Directors’ material interests in (c) EENRRXS  RHFESHPWE

transactions, arrangement or
contracts

Save as the continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company
and the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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BRESINEGRE M RRMFIRE=
E-N\F+_A=t+—HLFEZH
BRABXSMBEEEN  RERLF
WAL - AR B RT S fay
AEBEXGAERMAABEENHERE
BATRNETERAMEREEEAR
BNEARS  ZHREH -
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17. DIVIDENDS 17. RE
2019 2018
—T-hE —ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#EiT FET
2018 Final of HK3.5 cents —E - \FRERE
(2018: 2017 Final HK1.0 cent) F3.5581L
per ordinary share —E—N\F:
T LFRERE
BRE1.0781L) 31,282 8,938
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final RmEHETER ARREESERE
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December KEEZE_T—NFT+_A=T—HIEFE
2019 of HK2.0 cents per share totaling ZAREBEREER2.08B1M - X AL
approximately HK$17,875,000 has been proposed by 17,875,000/ 7T + WWIREBHFAARIKRER
the Board of Directors of the Company and is FEERRBEFARE LHE -

subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ST AEER e BRERERERAT 5;_:>
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is BRERZFIETIEE -

based on the following:

2019 2018
—B-hE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Earnings |
Profit attributable to owners of the ARFTESREREFZ
Company, used in the basic RATIERFFE ARG
earnings per share calculation ikl 88,705 113,556
2019 2018
—F-hE —E—N\EF
Number of shares R EE

Weighted average number of ordinary FAREtEESREKRZEF| 2
shares used in basic earnings per I 9 3 3 AR A% 2

share calculation 893,761,400 893,761,400
No diluted earnings per share are presented as the HRARAREBZEZZE-—N\FEE=2ZE—Hh
Company did not have any dilutive potential shares FT_A=T—HBLFEREEMNELE
for the financial years ended 31 December 2018 and SERG  BREEYEREEET -
2019.

Z .46
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y% - HBERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Leasehold Plant and Computer and office Motor ~ Construction
land Buildings  improvements machinery equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
i BeRE
HELH BF HBEYEKE  HERIE SHRE REAERE RE ERIR @t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
FET FE7 Fé7 7ET 7ET &L 7ET 77 FE7

Cost or valuation BAGEE
At 1 January 2018 R=F-N\E-A-A 202,030 312,290 180,399 646,068 9,807 14,108 9,307 6,516 1,380,525
Transfer E4d = = 1206 = = = - (1,208) -
Additions RE - - 20,383 80,645 1,921 3,631 4 1,076 107,566
Surplus on revaluation B8 20,858 = = = = = = = 20,858
Gain on revaluation Blaks 265 = = = = = = = 265
Depreciation eiminated against ~~ REAHENE
cost (5,621) - - - - - - - (6,627)
Disposalwrite off HE /s = - 7,776) (3162 (1,240) (1) (556) - (41,508)
Exchange diferences ExEE (7,756) (16,787) (10,794) (35,849) 257) 849) (7) (376) (72939)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\E
1 January 2019 TZR=1t-Ak
“E-NE-F-8 209,770 295,503 183,418 669,242 10,231 16,486 8,483 6,010 1,389,143
Reclassfication due to adoption of ~ ARFAVE BB KREE
HKFRS 16 frote 9 BIZ16% 2 AR
(Hit3) (200,770) = = = = = = = (200,770)
Transfer Ed = = 637 2,399 = - - (3,036) -
Additions RE - - 7,556 26,151 1,806 4,869 - 4,465 43,936
Disposalfwrite off HE /M = = (391) (10,636) 281) (352) (322) 9%) (12,078)
Exchange differences EXZE - (5,066) (3236) (11,09 (104) (347) (64) (143) (20059)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nE
+Zh=1-A - 290,437 187,984 665,064 1,74 20,656 8,097 7,200 1,191,179
Accumulated depreciation RitiERARE
and impairment
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\5-A-H - 69,329 115,456 397,785 8,371 6,551 6,952 5,519 609,933
Charge for the year Eapil 5,786 13,401 20,209 39,185 781 1,852 827 - 82,041
Disposal/wite off HE /s = = (8.249) (24722) (1,302) (21 (517) - (35,062)
Adjustment on revaluation Bfi3% (5,627) = = = = = = = (5,627)
Impairment HE = = 1,559 2,302 = = - - 3,861
Exchange differences EREE (159) (4375) (7,339) (19.224) (101) #4) 229) (324) (32,159)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NE
1 January 2019 TZA=1-BR
“E-N5-A-B - 78,355 121,636 395,296 7,749 7,717 7,040 5,195 622,988
Charge for the year FRmk - 13,246 21,043 41,158 1,069 1,366 473 - 78,355
Disposal/wite off HE /s - - 67) (5,459 (260) @17 (250) = (6,247)
Impaiment RE = = 299 2,548 = 479 - - 3,326
Exchange diferences EiEE - (1643) (2.759) 6530) 66) (137) 64) 99 (11,297)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NE
T-h=1-8 - 89,958 140,152 427,019 8,492 9,208 7,199 5,097 687,125
Carrying amount KEE
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NE
TZA=t-R - 200479 47,83 238,045 3,249 11,448 898 2103 504,054
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
+-h=1-8 209,770 217,148 61,782 263,946 2482 8,769 1,443 815 766,155
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19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land was revalued on 31
December 2018 wusing the direct comparison
approach by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties by independent
surveyors.

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land
would have been approximately HK$50,978,000 at
31 December 2018 had it been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s
banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$4,098,000 (2018: HK$44,977,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
represents impairment on leasehold improvement,
machinery and furniture and fixture of a CGU without
any income forecasted in the foreseeable future
(2018: idle machines and leasehold improvements to
be disposed without future economic benefits).

19.

Y - e st (F)

AEBZHET R T N\F+_A
=t -HABYAEMZEELEAER
2EMGRUDEZIRORSBREMR -

R-E—N\F+_A=+—8 EREH
RETEMBERBIERE  ASEEHEL
I B9 BR B 49 550,978,000/ T °

N EEREE A 44,098,000 T (- =
— J\5E : 44,977,000 70) KO % - #E K
KB EHIEARNEBIEITEERNIKE -

ME - BEMREHEREETERLRIR
BEFMBEARANREELEMZHER
& HEMMBAIBEEREZRE  (ZF
—\F R B AR E M S 2 B BN
HehEREMREENRE)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

B B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. FRAEEE

Leased
properties
HEME
HK$’000
FETL

Leasehold
lands Total

st
HK$°000
FETT

HELH
HK$°000
TET

At 1 January 2019 (note 3) RZZE—h&—HA—H

(#1:#3) 209,770 11,749 221,519
Additions NE - 4,489 4,489
Depreciation e (6,197) (4,231) (10,428)
Surplus on revaluation R M 2 F U AR A
recognised in other BhA%
comprehensive income 11,279 - 11,279
Gain on revaluation recognised in B ERH B U
profit or loss 313 - 313
Exchange differences [ (2,555) (92) (2,647)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=-R=+—H 212,610 11,915 224,525

The Group’s leasehold land was revalued on 31
December 2019 using the direct comparison
approach by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties by independent
surveyors.

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land
would have been approximately HK$48,991,000 at
31 December 2019 had it been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

AEBZHEEL IR -_ZE—hLF+_A
=t EHHEBYAEMBERELEELE
MBEUMEZRERFEEREM -

BRARBRFITEREBESIR R
F-NF+-_A=t—8 AKEHEL
& AR T (B 49 /5 48,991,000/ 7T ©

TE-NFFR e EREBEERARAT
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20.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The carrying amount of leasehold properties pledged
as security for the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$42,330,000 at 31
December 2019.

20. FAHEEE (&)
R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H 2E#E
AEERTEERRNEEMEEERAELY
/542,330,000 7T °

Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in
finance cost)

Expenses relating to short-term lease (included in cost
of sales and general and administrative expenses)

2019
—E-NE
HK$’000
FE T
FHREEENERS
10,428
HEEGENEMAX
(G ARLE R A) 408
HEHAEEE I AX
GIABEERA R
—MRITHAR) 2,248

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in
note 38(d).

For both years, the Group leases various offices
premises, factories, warehouses, staff quarters and
office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 2 months to 5
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are
primarily located and office buildings. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only
if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

HEMR SR H AR IEHIINHES8()

RREFE AREHEZERIE - K
BB BIBERMAERERANE
B HEAWNIIUMEEHHASMEARE
T - HEGRUIEERER LS - 85
BRTRERR RGN - REEHEH KT
ETARESENRER  AEEEAS
MMEBRYBEAQABEI AT -

o REEEEZBEEREAE Z
TERZEDRAERE -AEBRZEY
¥kEn(BEEBREE L) 2EMESR
A o REB B HRATEH — RIE A FRAZEER
HEY RS - (EEPTFL AR A 5
PER TEBEIZFERNELHE
T AR AR -
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21. CLUB MEMBERSHIP 21. SFEe%
HK$’000
Fi&
Cost RA{E
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 RZE-NER_ZT-NF
+=—A=+—H 718
The Group’s club membership of HK$718,000 (2018: AEBR-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—Hz®E
HK$718,000) at 31 December 2019 is assessed as FTef#EHEAT18,0008 L(ZE—N\F:
having indefinite useful life because there is no time 718,000 L) EN ERAEERAFERAF
limit that the Group can enjoy the services provided B RARAEEZHZSMARERS
by that club. Z BB ER S o

SR NEEH e BRARERERAD 221j
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22.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December

22. RIBRARINIKRE

RZZE-—NF+A=+—R0 WERA

2019 are as follows: ZEBAT
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid  Percentage of ownership
establishment and up share capital/ interest/ voting power/
Name operation registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
ERTRYE FEfEHEE
Z2% RIRGERE BE/EREX BE®/GAREHE TEEH
Direct Indirect
B &
Ka Shui (Holdings) Company BVI US$36,909 100% — Investment holding
Limited RBRUES 36,909 7T BREER
FhEEERAHE
Ample Wealth Developments BVI USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited EREREHS E REZK
BUERFR AT
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory Hong Kong HK$74,487,660 - 100%  Sale of plastic injection products
Company Limited ) 74,487,660 1T and components
RYSRHERBERAA HEERTEERRTHH
Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Sale of zinc, magnesium and
EhERERAH B 10,000 7T aluminium alloy die casting and
plastic injection products and
components
HEF ERBEEBRENZRT
BEMRTHE
Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
Company Limited* H HK$430,000,000 magnesium alloy die casting
iRk (EMN) BB AR 1t & 4°430,000,000 products and components
BT HEREERRSBEEMR
TEH
Elegant Shine Investments Limited ~ BVI USS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
HEBREERAA ERBREHS E REZK
Ample Wealth Property The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Inactive
Developments (Huizhou) H HK$6,800,000 TmE
Limited** #Hffit & 76,800,000
BEEMERE (BN BRAR BT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T — A F+-_A=+—ALFE

22. NBRRMRE ()

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid  Percentage of ownership
establishment and up share capital/ interest/ voting power/
Name operation registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
EBRTRYE 11737
& BRIREELYE RE/EREX BE® /GREHE EEEH
Direct Indirect
EE e
Infinite Fortune Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
(formerly known as Ka Shui A% 10,000 7T REER
Technology Limited)
ERRERRRR (RIBRHHR
BRAAE)
Wing Yu (Far East) Industries Hong Kong HK$6,900,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited A% 6,900,000/ 7T REER
K (BR)EXEBRAA
Huizhou Wing Yu Metal and Plastic  The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of surface finishing
Manufactory Company Limited® HK$4,500,000 treatment services and sale and
BEMmARREBHERERAR 1 & 744,500,000 manufacture of zinc alloy die
on casting products and
components
RERERBRBRHE N EES
B BEERRTHIT
Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of zinc and
Company Limited™ H HK$20,000,000 aluminium alloy die casting
EERBEMNERAR 1 & 420,000,000 products and components
BT HEREEHRERCESR
EmRTEHY
Ka Fung Industrial Technology The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of products
(Huizhou) Company Limited* H HK$132,000,000 and components with plastic
FETERMBR(EMBBAA 1 & 48132,000,000 contents
BT HEREEREBBHZERK
ZEH
Alphalite Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Trading and marketing of LED and
R BRABRAA B 18T plasma lighting products

ELEDRERFRAEMLES
RiiatEE

993 —\
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22.

£ oon

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

22. RBRRMRE ()

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid  Percentage of ownership
establishment and up share capital/ interest/ voting power/
Name operation registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
EBRTRYE FEikiEs/
& BIREERYE BE/EREX BE® /GHEHE TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE e
Ka Shui Metal Manufactory The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of zinc,
(Shenzhen) Company Limited™ HK$40,000,000 magnesium and aluminium alloy
EheBRR(RI)BEBRAR 1 & 440,000,000 die casting products and
BT component
HEREEH ERBFCESE
m R
Alphalite Incorporation USA US$100 - 100%  Trading and marketing of LED and
X 1005 7T plasma lighting products
NELEDRERFRAERZES
RisHE
Ka Shui (USA) Incorporation USA US$5,000 - 100%  Marketing of zinc, magnesium and
%HE 5,000 7T aluminium alloy die casting and
plastic injection products and
components, trading of LED
and home appliance products
HEF - ERBSEBRERERT
BERRTB 2 TISEEIR
LEDRREBRAZES
Kalok Technology Investment BVI US$50,000 — 100%  Investment holding
Limited EEREHS 50,000% 7T REER
FARRRERRLA
Wuhu Lenka Technologies The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
Company Limited H RMB50,000,000 magnesium alloy die casting
(“Wuhu Lenka”) 2* HAMERARE products and components
BABELXRBRERAR 50,000,0007T HEREEZSREEEMRTH
([EHH =) is
Ka Shui Metal Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100%  Sale of magnesium alloy die
FheBERAA Bk 100,0007 7 casting products and

components

HEFATESERRTRMN
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22.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

22. NBRRMRE ()

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid  Percentage of ownership
establishment and up share capital/ interest/ voting power/
Name operation registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
EBRTRYE 11737
& BRIREELYE RE/EREX BE® /GREHE EEEH
Direct Indirect
EE e
Katchon Precision Holdings BVI US$1,000 - 70%  Investment holding
Company Limited KERZES 1,000% T REZR
FEREEREBRAR
Ka Shui Plastic Technology Hong Kong HK$1 = 100% FREZBHEBER HERFEE
Company Limited A% 1B
EREBHEERAR
Goodly Precision Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000 - 70%  Investment holding
EMBERIEERAR B 50,0007% 7 REZKR
Goodly Precision (Suzhou) The PRC Registered capital - 70%  Research, manufacture and sale of
Industrial Limited (“Goodly H US$5,000,000 plastic injection moulding and
Suzhou’)* #E 1 & 785,000,000 components of car-related
EMBERTEEGMN ERAA e products
(T=HEM 1) RERBER EBIE LT
ZE - EEREE
Qigihaer Northern Ka Shui Light The PRC Registered capital - 51%  Research and development and
Alloy Technology Company H RMB12,000,000 trading of aluminium related
Limited 2* HMERARE products
EERBILIERERASRE 12,000,0007C ERRER RERES
AR AT
Huizhou Ka May New Material The PRC Registered capital - 70% Inactive
Technology Company F RMB1,000,000 Bl
Limited 2* HMERARE
BENEEAHHRRERAH 1,000,0007C
Ka Shui Aluminium Technology The PRC Registered capital - 70%  Research and development and
(Shenzhen) Company H RMB10,000,000 trading of aluminium related
Limited 2* HMERARE products
st (ORI BR A 10,000,000 ERBER RERES

T
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RIBARIMKRE (&)

(Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully paid  Percentage of ownership

establishment and up share capital/ interest/ voting power/
Name operation registered capital profit sharing Principal activities

EBRTRYE i117:3: 7
& RIRGERSY BE/HEREE BE® /GHEHE TEEH
Direct Indirect
H# fel %
Pioneer Lead Global Enterprises BVI US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited EERAHS I REZK
ERBEREEBRAF
Nobel Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BEARRERAA Bk 18T REER
Shuilong Green Transport Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 70%  Repair and maintenance of motor
Company Limited A% 10,000 7T vehicles for commercial use

hEGERRAE BRERREHRE
Orient World International Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
HERRARAA Bk 18T REZK
Ka Shui (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR1 - 100%  Inactive

BRAD 1B RAEZT 333
i Registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the # BEPBERFMAIEBERE -

PRC law.
A Registered as a company with limited liability under the PRC & REFBEEEMAERETEAR -
law.

English translation of the name is for identification purpose

#HE2 BRI E R ARG -

only.

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash AZE—NF+ZA=1+—H AEER
balances and restricted bank deposits of the Group’s PR ZHERRIAARBFERNRTRE
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB TEBNBRBRITERR4162,361,000
amounted to approximately HK$162,361,000 (2018: BT (ZZ— )\ : 130,612,000/87T) ° i
HK$130,612,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign AR R N /A R 1R 4 Bl A CHNE &
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange RO RCEE SERMNEBSEMATE)E
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, 1T

Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
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23. R 2019 2018

ZE-AF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Unlisted investments: JEEMHE -

Share of net assets o FEE 9,973 10,951
Goodwill FEES 632 632
10,605 11,583

Impairment losses VERIEN SR (1,652) (1,652)
8,953 9,931

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

W/ FENEE & AR FIR QMR - 28R

Impairment losses on investments in associates are R B SR BN B 15
recognised as the Group expects that there will be
no future profit for certain associates. DA S .ﬁg&q S THEQRERIOLE
B - A ERNEE R FRE 2 RER
—NFEFR e EHEIKRERERAA 227j




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 7% = Mt = ( “ﬁ)

II‘Ii\

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % =

23.

£ 08

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

—hEF+ZA=Z+-HLFE

23.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December

2019 are as follows:

Issued and fully

REEQNF2RE ()

75’\\:2 NFT-A=+—HEAEEZH
ERAERT :

Percentage of
ownership

Place of paid up share interest/ voting
incorporation/ capital/ registered power/ profit
Name registration capital sharing Principal activities
31 3- 7
ERTRAR BRE#/
& it BT BE/EMEE BHESE  EEEH
Topanga Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$127,373,638 38.9% Inactive
(“Topanga Asia’) B 127,373,638/ 1 EEEY
YRERRERAA
(=%
Topanga Technology The PRC Registered capital 38.9% Inactive
(Huizhou) Limited* R HK$6,500,000 EmE
YRR (BN BERRF #Hffit & 776,500,000
BT
Huizhou Intelligent Foundry The PRC Registered capital 46% Research and development,
Industry Light Alloy s RMB20,000,000 manufacture and trading of
Innovation Center AMERAREK light alloy moulds
Company Limited" 20,000,0007C TASBAZHE £ER
Bt ;c%”ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ@% (&8¢ g5
ElFTROAER
@ English translation of the name is for identification purpose * BB BB E R MR o
only.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method:

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

23RN

23. REE LR ZRE (&)
TERBIARBURREHAARZAA
ERGFEEHE DRSS SHEER

At 31 December: R+=ZA=+
Carrying amounts of interests EmREE
Year ended 31 December: g#E+=RA=
IS :
Loss from operations KB
Other comprehensive income T
Total comprehensive income 2 = R EE

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
— E g
8,953 9,931
+—8
(810) (146)
- (25)
(810) (171)

The Group has not recognised loss for the year
amounting to HK$449,000 (2018: HK$Nil) for
Topanga Asia. The accumulated losses not
recognised were HK$449,000 (2018: HK$NIl).

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash
balances of the Group’ associates in the PRC
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$6,531,000 (2018: HK$11,543,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

AEBRERY 552N F R 2 E518449,000
BL(ZE-N\F :ZBT)  RERAZZ
st B 18 /449,000 T (ZE—N\F : T&
JT) °

R-ZE—NAFE+-_A=+—H8 A£ER
FEZEE DRI AARBEENRITRIR
& &84 546,531,000 T (ZF— N\ F ¢
11,543,000/ 7T) ° AR K AINER
R AR B 89 CONE B R 01 ) I KA B - S [
RATHEE AR TE )T o

999 —\




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 24, MAFEFAREMEEREZ 2SR
BE
2019 2018
—T-hE —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted equity, at fair value BAFEZIELTRA — -
Impairment loss BEEE - —
The investee company has ceased business in WHRE RN EREFARIEEBREERE
previous years and the management has made full EHBIBEREEL 2SR EEIE -
impairment loss for the investment.
25. INVENTORIES 25. 7E
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&iT FET
Raw materials R 50,420 63,465
Consumables supplies and JERE o {H FE K 48 A A
spare parts 11,141 7,485
Work in progress &M 68,410 93,769
Finished goods 2K i 135,721 115,159
265,692 279,878
Less: Allowance for inventories B FEERE (49,735) (35,123)
215,957 244,755

Z om
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly
on credit. The credit terms generally range from 30
to 120 days (2018: 30 to 120 days) after the end of
the month in which the invoices issued. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of
allowance, is stated as follows:

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. BEFEWFIE
REBUEETS 2R FETENZEFNEST °
FEEH—BNTHES A&ER%EI0E1208

—ZT—)\F:30FE1200) - BEEFAK
BIEERE - AEBER S BEKES KESR
FEUEIE - HES TR BIRMT & -
B o RWIE(MBREBE) REZHHZE
RO TESI T

2019 2018
ZE—hEF —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 127,728 140,160
31 to 60 days 31%260H 95,767 110,524
61 to 90 days 612 90H 48,495 46,486
91 to 180 days 91£180H 68,429 79,644
Over 180 days 180H LA E 448 200
340,867 377,014

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful & : E2E8E & REE 7 B
debts (343) (229)
340,524 376,785

At 31 December 2019, an allowance was made for
estimated irrecoverable trade receivables of
approximately HK$343,000 (2018: HK$229,000)
(note 6(b)).

R-B-AF+_-_RA=+—H" #E+H
AT Y B B 55 e MR TR 1 H BB 4 49 343,00078
7T (ZZ— )\ : 229,000 7T ) (K1576(b)) °

03] —\




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. EZEWFIE(E)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables AEEE HRUGRIENREEBENA TG
are denominated in the following currencies: HIME -
2019 2018
=t B e
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
HK$ BT 24,558 21,469
usb v 258,918 284,394
RMB AR 56,259 70,678
Others Hf 1,132 473
340,867 377,014
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful & : 28R & R BR 2 B &
debts (343) (229)
340,524 376,785
27. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT 27. EHEE EHNAR
LIABILITIES
2018
Contract assets EHEE ZEB—hE —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Arising from sales of moulds RIEAHEREL 4,639 4,978
Arising from sales of OEM Products B R:ZIERIEE RIEE
FrEEAE 13,092 9,692
17,731 14,670
Receivables from contracts with BN RERERFE155
customers within the scope of HENEEFP 2682
HKFRS 15, which are included in ERUFHIE(BEREE
“Trade receivables” Z 2 EBGRIER) 340,524 376,785

yA——
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due
from customers under sales contracts that arise
when the Group’s unconditional right to receive
payments from customers is not in line with (i) the
progress of the OEM Products manufactured under
contracts in which the Group has enforceable right to
payment; and (i) when the control of moulds which
are billed together with products is passed to
customers. Payment for OEM Products and moulds
is not due from the customer until the products are
delivered to the customer, and therefore a contract
asset is recognised (i) over the period in which the
OEM Products are manufactured; and (i) when the
control of moulds are transferred to the customers to
represent the Group’s right to consideration for the
services transferred to date.

There were no significant changes in the contract
assets balances during the reporting period.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be
recovered after more than one year is approximately
HK$4,546,000 (2018: HK$4,283,000).

BHAE

Contract liabilities

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

27. ANEE EGHNEE (B
HENEERBENEBREATHE ZER
1 RE P YRR 2 BRI A T A — 2 () 1%
AEBBEERABHATRZANMEE
MRBREEEEMOER  R()REMR—H
BHRECRAZRGRERERFE B
ERKREFPHEAONGER RERRXM
BEPE BURBREPHNRREEEER K
BANFIR - Bt - SHEERNA TERK
ROEREREEMEEDRR  R(i)ER
HAztlgEBeagr (AXKECERLZS
RIERFE K ERE) B -

RmEHE - GHNEELRLBEAEL -

B —FULARENENEESBALD
4,546,000 7T (=& — J\4F : 4,283,000/

Billings in advance of performance
obligation arising from sales of
OEM Products and moulds

HERRBREERNMER
EERBAOBRENHTRKIEA

JT) °
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#EIT FET
1,005 1,500

Contract liabilities relating to sales of OEM Products
and moulds are balances due to customers under
contracts with customers. They arise because
customers pay deposits for the sales contract which
exceed the revenue recognised to date.

There were no significant changes in the contract
liabilities balances during the reporting period.

HERREREEMRBRAHERBNEH
BERENEPEHRENEER - LKA
TREPXNNHEEANREBBESE
FERRHYULA

RIEHE - AN BEERTEEAE L -

o)

033 —\




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT 27. BREE EHEE (&)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
Movements in contract liabilities: EHBEES
2018
ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEiT FET
Balance at 1 January arising from HERZBRIEEM
sales of OEM Products R— A —H#&s% 1,500 12,615
Decrease in contract liabilities as a FRABRBRAEHENEE
result of recognising revenue during A EFF AHIIANE L
the year was included in the BERN
contract liabilities at the beginning
of the period (89,456) (110,844)
Increase in contract liabilities as a HERZBREEMRIER
result of billing in advance of sales MIBWFIEEHRANEE
of OEM products and moulds N 88,972 99,732
Effect of foreign exchange EXEHH L
rate changes (11) )
Balance at 31 December Rt A=+—HB#&& 1,005 1,500

£ a4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ge UK M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

28. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND 28. AMRFIRITERERITRASLER

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

The Group’s restricted bank balances represent: REEWBREIRITIFRIE :

(a) Balance of RMB1,656,000 (equivalent to @ AR®1,656,000T (HERY
approximately HK$1,835,000) (2018: 1,835,000/87L) (ZE—N\F : AR
RMB1,653,000 (equivalent to approximately 1,653,0007T (#8 % 72 491,867,000/
HK$1,867,000)) to guarantee for the use of TINERRPBEFERRXARZER
natural gas in the PRC (2018: guarantee for the (ZE—NF RHPBEEAXAAZ
use of natural gas in the PRC); and BR) &

(o) Balance of HK$ Nil and RMB Nil (2018: b) ZBATRAREZ T 2H#H(ZF
HK$1,910,000 and RMB1,540,000 (equivalent — A% 1,910,000 T R A R
to approximately HK$1,740,000)) to guarantee 1,540,0007T (48 % 7 491,740,000 7%
to the customs office in the PRC. J0)) B{ER R BEER R ER -

The cash at banks earned interest at floating interest BITHERIEEF0.001EE035E (= F

rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.35% per annum —\F : §F0.01EZ0.35F) ) F B FI =

(2018: 0.01% to 0.35% per annum). BRERA R -

The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are RITRBEeEBCEEBENTIIEE S

denominated in the following currencies: I :

2019 2018

=t B 2N\
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

HKS BT 47,144 48,419

uUsD eV 51,465 94,489

RMB AR 160,977 106,499

EURO B 2,610 1,151

Others HAth 56 48

262,252 250,606

Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control R R B A CONEE B il 61 ) e (A5 BE - BB BB

Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales RNEEBRE)  NEBEATERE

and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the B R IMNE ZE R IRTTAA R H 3251

Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign s o

currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

an




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 29. BESREIRIE - HittENRIERE
AND ACCRUALS FTEH
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the B RS HIBIEWE BB E/ERE DT
date of receipt of goods, is as follows: m
2019 2018
—Z—-NhE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
0 to 30 days 0%£30H 68,995 66,541
31 to 60 days 31%260H 63,427 78,768
61 to 90 days 61%90H 38,897 59,650
91 to 180 days 91£180H 32,385 60,409
Over 180 days 180H A 5,310 3,679
209,014 264,032
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade payables AEFEESENFBEEMENTIEE A
are denominated in the following currencies: B
2019 2018
—EB-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET F&ET
HK$ BIT 4,232 4,954
Usb =TT 33,034 63,602
RMB ARHE 171,689 195,277
Others HAh 59 199
209,014 264,032

£ 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e TR R A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES

AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

Other payables and accruals comprise the following:

29.

B RNFIR - HMBNRIERE

STEH (8)

Hitp N RIBENEAERABRATEE:

2019 2018

=t EXE- —2-N\#F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Accrued wages st TE 33,745 48,118
Other accrued expenses EMETER 30,662 21,569
Other payables b FE A 3R 18,165 25,597
82,572 95,284

The carrying amount of the Group’s other payables

and accruals is denominated in

the following

AEBHEMENFERESERNKEE

BIATEEIIE

currencies:
2019 2018
—F-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#iT FET
HK$ BT 6,536 13,724
Usb Ev 10,804 13,118
RMB AR & 65,232 68,424
Others =i - 18
82,572 95,284

TE-NFFER e EHBEEERERDLA

A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

wE B RRMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS

30. SRITER

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank RITERNEDESNOT ¢

borrowings is as follows:

Current liabilities

Portion of bank borrowings due for
repayment within one year

Portion of bank borrowings due for
repayment after one year which
contains a repayment on demand

2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\&
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEr
REBEE
AR —F AR BEENRT
B E D 201,532 221,491

AR —FRIPEENES

clause - 21,363
201,532 242,854

Non-current liabilities FRENE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FEIHHEENTE

repayment after one year which do &2 B K(EE IEFRAIRTT

not contain repayment on demand B E D

clause 57,514 81,848
The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the AERRITER (RREREREENRTE
bank borrowings repayable on demand, are carried at K TR S AR - AR —FE B HE
amortised cost. None of the portion of bank ENBRERERBEERRESDEARBE
borrowings due for repayment after one year which BRIRITERBL BB ER —FREE -

contain a repayment on demand clause that is
classified as current liabilities is expected to be

settled within one year.

£ a8




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. RITER(E)
At 31 December 2019, interest-bearing bank loans RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 " ZHEE
were due for repayment as follows: RIETEIRITERAT :

2019 2018
—B-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —%F
repayment within one year B E D 201,532 221,491

Portion of bank borrowings due for 7R 1&
repayment after one year which REREE 1'%%7\) E’\Jﬁﬁﬁ
contains a repayment on demand BRE D
clause (note (a)):

After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMEZAN - 21,363
— 21,363
Portion of bank borrowings due for R —F#&E|HEE (T8
repayment after one year which do &% B3REE &) KR
not contain a repayment on TEZIHD
demand clause:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMRFZRN 33,514 54,319
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBERFZA 24,000 27,529
57,514 81,848
259,046 324,702
Note: Mt -
(@) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment (@) BERREBEDIZRER B Z T HATEEER HW%
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect £ WEGREMREREREROTE

of any repayment on demand clause.

039 —\

TE-NFFER e EHEKRERERLA




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

30.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Six (2018: Seven) of the bank facilities are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
Should the Group breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, some of the Group’s bank loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lenders
the right at their sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants
and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants, and is up to date with the
scheduled repayments of the bank borrowings.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c). There have been
no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing borrowings for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.

All bank borrowings were arranged at floating interest
rate. The range of the interest rates per annum at 31
December 2019 was as follows:

30.

RITER ()

ANMEA(CE-NF: LE)RTRERES
NEBEBAKRBEE TH B R 225 &
EREBETNESBEBII L2 ERLH
PHR - WARBEERBREZSE - MEPA
ZREBBRERRERER - I AEEE
TRITEFBREZGHRTETERAZE
B 1BR T BE B R BN B (B8 RV HER)
MERAREREESETRERTAEEE
ERE -

AEBEHPERNERHE BT TiRE
BRITERNBECERPELEERE - ~&H
THITENE & R AE — S EBE AT
B  REBZ-_ZE—\EER=-_Z—NF+=
A=+—HLEE BEEREMERE
2B TS o

FBRTERDRZBMEGFE -R-F
—NMFET_A=+—BNFENXBENT :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
% %

per annum per annum
B g5

FBFIE

Floating rate

3.5% —5.3% 2.8%—5.2%

The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is
denominated in the following currencies:

RITEFEEEATHNEE R EEN -

HK$ BT

2019 2018
—E-hE —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TAET
259,046 324,702




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ge UK M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

31. BANKING FACILITIES 31. RITEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had available RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 £5ET

banking facilities of approximately HK$658,000,000 B A MR 1T7{= B A #%658,000,000/8 7T (=

(2018: HK$696,000,000), which were utilised to the = — )\ 4 : 696,000,0007% Jt) * i & & FH

extent of approximately HK$259,000,000 (2018: R 58 A 4259,000,000/8 7T (ZE— \F :

HK$325,000,000). These banking facilities were 325,000,000/ 7T) o It FIRITEE L T 7

secured by the following: JHEERER -

(@) corporate guarantees provided by the Company @ ARBRRAEEETHEBERTIRHEN
and certain subsidiaries of the Group; NEERR

(b)  a property situated in Hong Kong owned by the b)) AEEBEBEHN—EHEBEWHE K
Group; and

(¢) all monies assignment of rental over the property () AEBERBHAZYEHRACES
situated in Hong Kong owned by the Group. 2B -

on] —\




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
& a B R M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HEARE

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

RERERE REHAERERE

2019 2018 2019 2018
—g-ns EESUCH —%-15 [EESUIE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

il 7 MRazdl AT

Within one year —FR 6,000 = 5,681 -
In the second to fifth years, E_-FEZERF
inclusive (BIEERMWE) 6,079 — 5,908 =
12,079 — 11,589 -
Less: Future finance charges i : KRR & & (490) - N/A -
Present value of HERERE
lease obligations 11,589 = 11,589 =
Less: Amount due for B T ZEARBEES
settlement within ZHIE (BIRR
12 months (shown mBBEET)
under current liabilities) (5,681) —

Amount due for settlement TZEABIBERN 2
after 12 months FIE 5,908 —

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32.

LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

B B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

32. HEEE (HE)

Lease payables are denominated in following EREEDZETIEMEE
currencies:

2019 2018
—ET-NhE —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FEr
HK$ BT 3,437 =
UusbD ETT 4,864 =
RMB AR 3,288 =
11,589 s

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. Comparative information as at 31 December
2018 has not been restated. Further details on the
impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in
note 3.

AEBERAKEITEWEERERETR
M REERFE16  UABR T NF
—A— BB - ARER E T AR
FRERFEUFITHROBREEHENE
EFEMBEERE - T -—N\F+=A
ST ENMUERENYESS - BREE
BUBHRESEAZ16ROTEE - THE
HIIRIEES

TE-NFFER e EHEKRERERLA

TR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
) 717?‘*&%%511?("@)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—hE+_-_A=+—HILFE

33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 33. EEKEEE &G&
The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets LTARAAEERFEACERAELEHIES
recognised by the Group, and the movements BEREEEABAED :

thereon, during the year:

Deferred tax liabilities: FRIERIBEE
Temporary
differences

Accelerated Revaluation arising from
tax of leasehold the adoption

depreciation land of HKFRS 15 Others Total
RINE RS
W& %A
HELH F15%MELEZ

InEH B E BEER BRES Hit @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TET THET THT

At 1 January 2018 R=Z-N\E—H—8 - 34,871 2,139 - 37,010
Charge to other comprehensive REFERTRZHMEE

income for the year e = 6,647 = = 6,647
Credit to profit or loss RENAREER

for the year (note 13) (H1:£13) - (4,195) (1,096) - (5,291)
Exchange differences EREE = (1,512) (74) (1,586)
At 1 January 2019 R-E-N&—A—H - 35,811 969 = 36,780
Charge to other comprehensive RERTRZEMZE

income for the year Yozs = 3,714 = - 3,714
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss ~ REAXE/ (LK) E

for the year (note 13) 1Ba (it13) 62 (2,149) 264 94 (1,729)
Exchange differences ERLETE = (523) (25) ) (549)
At 31 December 2019 RZZT— H?

TZRA=+— 62 36,853 1,208 93 38,216

2




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ge UK M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 33. BEEFIBBEE BE (&)
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets: EIERIBE E
Fair value
Decelerated  adjustment
Tax tax on business
losses depreciation combination Total
EBatn
BEBHE HEBRERE ATFEAE st
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\$—-A—H 1,109 = 310 1,419
Credit/(charge) to profit or  RERAE/(TE) %

loss for the year (Biz13)

(note 13) 7,239 141 (80) 7,300
Exchange differences EREE 410) = (15) (425)
At 31 December 2018 and WR=-Z—/\F

1 January 2019 +ZA=t-8k

“Z-N¥-RA-H 7,938 141 215 8,294
Credit/(charge) to profit or  WNERAE/(E) E%

loss for the year (Hiz13)

(note 13) 3,660 (141) (63) 3,456
Exchange differences EREE (234) = @) (237)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+_A

=t+—H 11,364 - 149 11,513

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for consolidated statement of
financial position purposes:

A BMRARME - BEBIRAH
(RH®R) < DT

2019 2018

—F-NE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FEIT

Deferred tax liabilities RERHIEEE 26,852 28,701
Deferred tax assets BREFIAEE (149) (215)
Total 5T 26,703 28,486

TN
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # E—%

33.

AR

8 % ¥ == Y =E ()

—hEF+ZA=Z+-HLFE

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$277,449,000 (2018:
HK$290,513,000) which are available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$45,458,000
(2018: HK$31,752,000) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised
tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$19,363,000 (2018: HK$13,641,000) which may
be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$212,628,000 (2018: HK$245,120,000) will expire
as follows:

33.

BB EEE B81& (&)
RZE-—NF+_A=+—H x%£8F
RENA A E 18 49277,449,0008 L (=&
— /A5 1 290,513,000 7T ) A £t K 85 K 2
A o BLEX FE5184945,458,0008 T (=&
— N4 : 31,752,000/ 7T ) #E R Z%LURIE
BE BERZSHGTIEEB®ER

ERTEEE l%ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁimﬁu;ﬁ)\o
*EEMRIEEE%EEP@%Eﬂé%@m,%&ooo
BT (ZZ— )\%F : 13,641,000 L) °

MR EAAES - A T 2 RFERTIIAE B Z’J
212,628,000 L (=& — J\F
245,120,000 7T) 17 N5 AR B HA -

2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
Year 2019 —NF - 2,343
Year 2020 —T-TF 11,051 30,129
Year 2021 T —4F 29,172 51,729
Year 2022 —E - 139,239 143,507
Year 2023 — E:E 10,215 10,580
Year 2024 _7_E¢ 16,119 =
Year 2034 =P 926 926
Year 2035 == fﬁi 2,955 2,955
Year 2036 —E=RF 2,951 2,951
212,628 245,120

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of RZZE—NFF+ZA=+—H EHPERK

temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries operated in the PRC and the
United States are approximately HK$229,772,000
(2018: HK$217,455,000) and HKS$Nil (2018:
HK$1,551,000) respectively. No liability has been
recognised in respect of these temporary differences
because the Group is in a position to control the
timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that such differences will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future.

EHEEZMBRARZADIKANEBZ
A

B2 5 Bl A #1229,772,00078 TT
— N4 : 217,455,000/ 70) b &

Vv

— J\#F : 1,551,000/ 70) ° AN EE I
EREREEERAE  RRAELNEERE
T I R E R A O BB M=

A RET AT LR 2R (B 43




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T — A F+-_A=+—ALFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
Number of
shares Amount
& e &8
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ERREEC.1E A T @Ak
At 1 January 2018, 31 December RZE—N\F—H—H8"
2018, 1 January 2019 and —E-N\FE+ZA
31 December 2019 =t—8 -—Z—AF
—A—ARZZE—hF
+=—A=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FAXEEC.1E A T A%
At 1 January 2018, 31 December RZZE-—N\F—H—H"
2018, 1 January 2019 and —T—-NE+=A
31 December 2019 =+t—H8 -—Z—AN%F
—A—BARZZE—h%F
+=—A=+—H 893,761,400 89,376

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the previous year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash
and cash equivalents and total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves, retained earnings and
non-controlling interests. The directors of the
Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

= Bl

AEBEEEEEANERAEEAN R
BrAIFSEEE  MBHERAIEBELE
BRIEREHMERAE R - ARE R
EREEEFRER -

AEBENEARBRERENERARESA
BRERARE  BRCBITRAE  #E K
BANEIERERS - ARBEFEFF
WA —IREARLE - RETREE - EFE
BEARARBRERERNAR - RIE
EENER  ARERERRMNERE - BT
R REERNDIARBTHERLERR
BEE #EATEHEBREBERRE-

T
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

34.

AR

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
The net debt to equity ratio at the year end is as
follows:

34. BRAN (%)

RELNBEFREERLRNOT

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\FE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT F&T

Debt (note (a) A& (Hita@) 270,635 324,702
Less: Restricted bank deposits & : AR &IR1T1ER (1,835) (5,517)
Bank and cash balances RITRIB S E R (262,252) (250,606)

Net debt BEF5E 6,548 68,579
Equity (note (b)) e (Mt m) 1,007,955 957,860
Net debt to equity ratio BEFREERESE X 0.6% 7.2%

Notes:

(@) Debt is defined as bank borrowings and lease liabilities (2018:
bank borrowings) as detailed in notes 30 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

The only externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are (i) in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of its shares; and (i) to meet financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group receives reports from major
shareholders and other connected persons on any
changes in shares held by them to ensure the
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year. As at 31 December 2019, 29.64% (2018:
29.64%) of the shares were in public hands. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of
any interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2018 and 2019.

Wit -

(@) BEDNRERRTERRBEEE(CE-N
FRITER) - BEABERES HBHRRM
F£30/%32 °

(b) BaBRAREMBEA RS -

ARER B ME — M INERIE 2 BRI TE B () REEAS
Frz Emif R BB T DR25% 2 A BEH
fEE R (i) BTHIRET BERZ I IERL -
AEEKFERRREMEBEA LKA
AREMBFEENRD ZEMNEBNRS
ANFE R FE RN EBT25%HRH - R = F
—NE+=—A=1+—H 29.64% (—ZF— )\
F 120.64%) ZBRHDHEARARIEE - REEC
EZ-NFER_FT-NF+-A=1+—HL
FE - BEEREMGEERZHBERER -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ge UK M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. RARIMBRRAERRFEER
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) AFATHBRAR
Company
2019 2018
—E-NE AN S
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat F#ET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETE AR IR E 466,940 465,896
Current assets HRENEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIAE ek
other receivables H b pE W SRR 231 202
Bank and cash balances RITRBE S &5 117 140
348 362
Current liabilities REBBEE
Other payables and accruals — Hth B4 FIB K&
EEtEA 20 9
Due to subsidiaries eI B A R 5RI8 135,951 103,502
Financial guarantee contracts BB ERE L AR
liabilities 15,089 24,920
151,060 128,431
Net current liabilities REBEE (150,712) (128,069)
NET ASSETS BEFE 316,228 337,827
Capital and reserves BERRHEE
Share capital % Z< 89,376 89,376
Reserves s 35(b) 226,852 248,451
TOTAL EQUITY A 316,228 337,827
Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 wEEaN B -_FEPH -—+=H
April 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: b WHATEERKREE
Lee Yuen Fat Wong Wing Chuen
T =KE
Director Director
o EF

TR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. RARMBMRARE #HEESE (B)
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) AATIZHEEEE
Share
Share option  Retained
premium reserve profits Total
FRgE
B fp it {E f#E RERA )
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—HA—H 204,650 10 41,089 245,749
Lapse of share options KW R RE = (10) 10 =
Dividend paid B E = = (8,938) (8,938)
Profit for the year F R T - - 11,640 11,640
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—8H 204,650 — 43,801 248,451
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hd—H—H 204,650 - 43,801 248,451
Dividend paid ERE - - (31,282) (31,282)
Profit for the year F R Al - - 9,683 9,683
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=—A=+—8H 204,650 - 22,202 226,852

yA—

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statements of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
Share premium represents premium
arising from the issue of shares at a price
in excess of their par value per share.
Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

(ii) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the
aggregate of (i) the nominal value of the
shares issued by Ka Fung Metal
Manufactory Company Limited on 18
January 2005 in exchange for the
business of Ka Fung Metal Manufactory,
an unincorporated partnership established
in Hong Kong and controlled by Mr. Lee;
and (i) the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange for
the entire shareholdings of Ka Shui
(Holdings) Company Limited.

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE T — A F+-_A=+—ALFE

36. &

(a)

(b)

F&EE

A B HUB AR S B R
AEHRE MR ERGER RS A 3
BHE25 -

fEEZHEEREDN

() MefpiafE
Befn g B0 s iR m R &R
EREREITRD ME LR
B-REFASEHEARZE X
AR RS BIRANE S A
DIRFARBWRR - 1EERE
REEZEDIRZBE  ARQF
ARRENEENABEREKERE
PR ETR

(i) EHEE

B OB IE A T MIEAARA : (i)
RECBHEMBARABN
ZEERF-ATN\BRBEE
CLBEMM (—RFRARDE
AMKINER AT EEE
PRI - AR SRR ) 2 E T
MmETORMEE : MiHAAH)
REBEREREEERARNE
EEAE M BT AR E(E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

36. RESERVES (Continued)

L pen

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (i) the
amount of minority interests in Ka Fung
Metal Manufactory Company Limited and
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory acquired by
the Group; (i) the adjustment of non-
controlling interest arising from further
acquisition of the equity interest up to
79.7% in Topanga Asia and up to 100%
in Wuhu Lenka during the year ended 31
December 2015; and (i) the adjustment
of non-controlling interest arising from the
deemed disposal of Topanga Asia.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(d)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note
4(s) to the consolidated financial
statements.

it (&)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

REZHEREN (&)

EXRfHE
BERREERIAEBERERZES
BESBMAERARREYE
BU TR D SRR R M A A BRRR
(IREZ-ZFE—RF+ = A
—t+—HLEFERE-FPWE
YRR 79.7% N ENHZ S
1009% f% M 2 4 2 FEPE R A 55
AR RiiARIEHES =5
MEBBEEIERER 2 A -

BER
ERFREERRERERINE
B EBRREELNMEERL
EW RERHERBREVH
R B FE4(0) (i) PR & SRR e
B -

RRIREREE

BREREERESEMBER
R FEA(S) P B IR AR 48 L DA B
10 32 B9 SRR M BR 4% O & 5T X
RERNETAKERENR
TEBRENER KA EE
B R F(E -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve comprises the PRC
statutory reserve fund which is non-
distributable.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and
regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation
calculated under PRC accounting rules
and regulations to the statutory reserve
fund, until the accumulated total of the
statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
their registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or applied in
conversion into capital.

Land revaluation reserve

The land revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for
leasehold land in note 4(f) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(m) to
the consolidated financial statements.

ll‘/i\

& B35 R M 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

]
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36. f&fH (
(b)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

REZEERER(

)

&)

EE A

AEREBERBETA 2IKAF E
AERBESD -

FRERENINERECENAE
ERREOIRE - ARARA
Bl B A R BB B Bl g i A
Bl R 16 Bl &5 & & B B 18 & T
10%EBEREZERERS  H
ERATHREESBTED
FMEARBS0% AL AEHA
HEEESTRARERBES
EEEIBAER -

T E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
w e MR R M (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

A

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 19
May 2017, a new share option scheme (“2017
Scheme”) was adopted.

The purpose of the 2017 Scheme is to (i)
motivate the eligible participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit
of the Group; and (i) attract and retain or
otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group. Eligible participants of
the 2017 Scheme include () any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of
such company (the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee
of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate. The 2017 Scheme
became effective on 19 May 2017 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

DR S E 2 7R

(a)

RE B HE st &l
RER-_F—tFRATABETH
ARBRERIBF NG BBHORZES -
MEBEREAE ([ —T—t5tal ) ER
R -

“ELFEENERNBEER
2RELAEENERAEERR
BRME : (i) RaIXLHEE B A~ A
BHREREAEEREXHEREE
HNAERSEEYERERGRE
MEKRER - —T—tt8la &KL
HEERNARERARERFEER
RAKZRA KB R (TBBEA
TDWERES B8 FEH - F
R-BFF HER KB ABAXK
RSB ¢ (i) AN B R
ATWEMES EE EH B
X -EBEF -ftEm KE -8B A
HRARABAEESZEANTMAIE
AXERERETHRNEMEZREE
FERRFEA ¢ (i) A SR B S B A
ITWEMES B8 BF - FXR -
P HER K2 Aa¥A &H
ASABHEZHEANAF - —F
—tEHER Tt FREANBRE
M BRIERITABERIERT - LB AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under
the 2017 Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the
2017 Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 30 days from the date of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences
after meeting certain performance targets or
certain vesting period that may be set by the
directors, and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer
of the share options or the expiry date of the
2017 Scheme, if earlier.

Sa PR RRM (R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HHEZE T —NEFET+ A=+ —HIFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of the offer of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer, when
applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the
holder to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

No share options have been granted under the
2017 Scheme since its adoption.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) on 10 January
2013 (“Adoption Date”) for a period of 10
years. The purpose and objective of the Share
Award Scheme are to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and persons
of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the
continued operation and development of the
Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. The
Company has set up a Share Award Scheme
Trust. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
new awarded shares may be allotted and
issued to the independent trustee under
general mandates granted or to be granted by
the shareholders at general meetings of the
Company from time to time and be held in
trust for relevant participants until such shares
are vested with the relevant participants in
accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.

IR EAEE 2508 ()

(a)

(b)

RE R HEtH &l ()
BERENTEEHESEE  ETE
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FERE R PR U T AE ¢ R (i) AR A F)
PRin A% B BRI E A ©
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R BREtTE - R REEEZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Share Award Scheme (Continued)
Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board of the Company, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing
on the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of
awarded shares which may be granted under
the Share Award Scheme was 44,311,770
(2018: 44,311,770). For the year ended 31
December 2019, no awarded shares were
granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
(2018: Nil).

Sa PR RRM (R
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37. AREEHE 2FE (&)

(b)

B 153 58 Bt Il (48)
EARRESEARERFR MR
R - B 2R AT 815 R ER A B IR
THEMREA R ER

RIER O REETEIR BN KD E
BETSHBAENEKABMARTEHT
IR 5% -

RO R ER—RETEAL
AReRHH RN REEE TREBN
RABHARREHITRANT%

R-ZZE—HE+-_A=+—8 &K
pEBFETERL ZERRND A
44,311,770 BB (=2 — N\ F :
44 311,770 ) - REZZZF
—NF+—A=+—HIFE  BE
B REET & B BB R D (=T
— )\ : &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38. MEREMERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a) EEBXBZHRERE
2019 2018
ZEB-NE —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$ ‘000
FEiT FET
Profit from operations =Py 113,677 139,220
Adjustments for: YEH NI F %
Interest income L EWA (747) (300)
Reversal of impairment losses on & 5 & U B BB &5 18
trade receivables o] - (764)
Impairment losses on B 5 EWGRIB R (E BB
trade receivables 117 132
Bad debt written off ORI 8 491 655
Allowance for inventories FERE 15,868 18,890
Inventories written off FEH S 11,504 —
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWZE  HRERREZ
plant and equipment HE 1R 4,956 486
Property, plant and equipment S TN i
written off 221 238
Impairment losses on property, P - B R ERE
plant and equipment &1 3,326 3,861
Gain on revaluation of land T BE & b 2 Was (313) (265)
Depreciation of property, plant Y% SRR EITE
and equipment . 78,355 82,041
Depreciation on right-of- FREEENE
use assets 10,428 —
Impairment losses on EfNZREREEE
deposit paid - 1,364
Impairment losses on REEE R RIRERE
investments in associates E5i8 - 1,652
Operating profit before movements K&t EE & B AL L
in working capital i A1) 237,883 247,210
Increase in inventories FE&E N (1,295) (19,864)
Increase in right of return assets iR [B] & & 2 & F|1& 0 - (111)
Decrease/(Increase) in restricted BRFIBITELR D,
bank balance (3% ) 3,654 (2,283)
Decrease in trade receivables B 2 U SR IE R 34,204 32,796
(Increase)/Decrease in BREE (EM), "
contract assets (3,235) 7,505
(Increase)/Decrease in TERZRIE e & H At FE UL
prepayments, deposits and B ), m
other receivables (6,790) 24,675
Decrease in trade payables B 5 IS R IE R (51,276) (86,205)
(Decrease)/Increase in deposits Bl HENRIER
received, other payables FEEHE R Ol ), 1
and accruals (11,467) 10,780
Decrease in contract liabilities AHABRD (484) (11,112)
Increase in refund liabilities RFB BN — 241
Cash generated from operations &% FT15IR & 201,194 203,632
Income tax paid ST (30,372) (13,272)
Interest paid on bank borrowings 2158817 & 2 F & (11,128) (13,167)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEEERE (377) =
Net cash generated from KIS FTSIA €558
operating activities 159,317 177,193




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Major non-cash transaction

Included in the additions of property, plant and
equipment was an amount of approximately
HK$516,000 (2018: HK$3,458,000) which was
transferred from deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

e TR R A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

38.

ReaREREBRMEE)

(b)

(c)

FERERXS

AAREYE BBERIZEARD
516,000 £ (=& — \&F
3,458,000/8 ) * THTENEBEY
¥ BEBERZENRSITEA -

MEFSHEENBRHE

TERALAKEREETHMELENE
BEY (BRASIIFRSED) - @
BEBMELANBEDKABERNAN
SESRERERERADESRMER
HRTRE

Impact on
initial Restated
application of  balance at  Addition of
1 January  HKFRS 16 1 January leased  Cash Flows Interest Exchange 31 December
2019 (note 3) 2019  properties (Note) expenses difference 2019
BREREE
M@ &L
F16%2 R-F-1&E k- b 3
—B-rE %8 -B-HZ itk BeR +=8
-H-H (Hi3)  BhIEE  HEWE (m#) HERHX EREE 2 =+-B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Bank borrowings (note 30)  $R{THE R (41#30) 324,702 - 324,702 - (76,784) 11,128 - 259,046
Lease liabilties (note 32)  MERE (Hi#32) - 11,749 11,749 3,829 (4,311) 408 (86) 11,589
Due from associates [ElRBE AR (108) - (108) - 92 - - (16)
Due to associates ERBEARRE 3,257 - 3,257 - (1,947) - () 1,305
327,851 11,749 339,600 3,829 (82,950) 11,536 91) 271,924

TE-NFFER e EHBEEERERDLA

059 —\
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38.

Z 60

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

38. ZFEBRETRERMETE (BE)

(c) METBDELENBFEHR(E)

1 January  Cash Flows Interest Exchange 31 December
2018 (Note) expenses difference 2018
—T-N\F
—2-N\% T=A
—R—A Heng MERX ERER =+-A
(Hizt)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET FHET
Bank borrowings (note 30)  $R171& 5 (H1:£30) 368,278 (56,325) 13,167 418) 324,702
Due from associates JRE B & A Al 0B = (108) - - (108)
Due to associates 1B & A Rl R 617 2,772 - (132) 3,257
368,395 (53,661) 13,167 (650) 327,851

Note: Included in cash flows was interest paid which was
included in cash flows from operating activities.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d)

Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the cash flow statements
for leases comprise the following:

38.

ReaREREBRMEE)

(d) HERSRKELEHE
AARSRERNEERE NS
B

2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&iT FET
Within operating cash flows TEEREREZNA 2,625 7,900
Within investing cash flows EREREMEZN 660 =
Within financing cash flows ERERESMEZN 3,934 -
7,219 7,900

These amounts relate to the following: hESREE T SIEEH
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E=—N\FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Lease rental paid BEfHE 6,559 7,900
Payments for right-of-use assets 1% 4 & & < 3¢ 660 =
7,219 7,900

“E-NFEFR e EHBEIRERERAT 261j




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 39. KREHERE
The Group as lessor AEEEBHAAN
The Group leases its property under operating lease REBZEEHERH L BEYE - HE
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of R—EZENF(ZE-—N\F: —FERLF) -
one to five years (2018: one to five years). The terms HERBR-—MUBITMSBAEEHES
of the leases generally provide for periodic rent FEE 2 e
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future RZE—N\FEF+_A=+—8 T5£ER
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable BEAOREC LB EmMN T7 EHEEE A
operating leases with its tenants faling due as JEMAR R B ERAEEMT :
follows:
2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000
FHET
Within one year —F A 214
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FEERF (BHEEEMF) 393
607

Operating leases relate to factory owned by the
Group leased to a retailer with lease terms of 5
years. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease
period.

yA

BARAEEEENIHEETTERMLR
“HE HEHRRSF ABEABEEHE
HEREBEZYE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 39. REHEEIE (8)
(Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued) AXEEEFBHEAN (E)
At 31 December 2019, minimum lease payments RZE-—NFF+_A=+—H0 Fr5£EE
receivable on leases are as follows: WHEBEERIBLBUOT ¢
2019
—E—-hEFE
HK$’000
FE T
Within one year —F A 112
In the second year F_F 112
In the third year E=4F 112
In the fourth year FENF 65
Total FEE 401
The Group as lessee EEEEBEREAAN
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum R-ZE—N\E+-_A=+—H AEER

4 AL

B HECEHENEN RKKEEE

lease payments of the Group under non-cancellable A=
operating leases are payable as follows: TRIEMEMT -
2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —F A 5,818
In the second to fifth year, inclusive E_FEFRF(RREEEMT) 10,585
16,403
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable KERENFEAEBEARE THAE
by the Group for certain of its office premises, ¥ IR B BIBEERIAEREX
factories, warehouses, staff quarters and office L - ﬂ#’“*%ﬁ I B2 BT
equipment. Leases for office premises, factories, BERRAERENHE(—HREARET

warehouses, staff quarters and office equipment
except one warehouse and certain factory premises
are negotiated, and rentals are fixed, for a term of 2
months to 5 years.

==

TRMERIN EHAmaI L - B2 REE

mEMSMERELEF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T—NWF+-_A=+—HILFE

39.

40.

£ 264

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
warehouses, staff quarters and factories. As at 31
December 2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense disclosed in note 20.
As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding lease
commitments relating to these warehouses, offices
and factories is HK$24,000.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

39.

40.

il

REMEE AR (4

3)

\

FEEERRBEA (R)
AEBEMILAE BETBEEMIKE
HHE R-_FT-—NF+-_A=+—8"
MEHEREMAS REME0 P RENE
HHEEXHBAUNEHREEREAS -1
ZE-NF+ZA=+—H HZZAE
WREMNTRZRHBEEAZE R 24,0008
T o

BAEIE
RIEMETER AEEHE RFEFE N
T~

Commitment in respect of
acquisition of property, plant
and equipment (note)

E (faE)

WIEME - Has R

2019 2018
“F-hF —E-NAF
HK$’000 HK$"000
FET AT
47,321 26,292

Note: The amount represents the unpaid contractual commitment
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment after
netting off with the deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment included in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Hiet - ZFRERBBYE  HERREORNTA DK
o WAMBR BT AL S BB R 3RS
ME BERBFHEOENERSE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ In addition to those related party translations
and balances disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year:

Sa PR RRM (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HlZ T —NFE+_A=+—HILFE

41. BBAIRS

@ BREABHREEMIOMEEN
BB A TR S RESRI  ERAREE
o ERBIHE T ITIU TR S -

2019 2018
—ET-hE —F-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Purchase from an associate mEEERREE 29 -
Purchase of machinery from an [AEf & A 585 B #28
associate - 2,492
Purchase of machinery and m A B 77 A B FE R R
machinery parts from and BRAFIEEMKES a8
maintenance cost to a related T EPF N 415 K AR
company, Chit Shun (B ()
Machinery Limited (note (i) - 6,260

Note:

(i) Mr. Lee has joint control in the related company.
These transactions are made between the
Company’s subsidiaries and the related company
under a master agreement dated 7 December 2015
between the related company and the Company, and
are continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

On 29 March 2018, Mr. Lee disposed the interest in
Chit Shun Machinery Limited and the transactions
with Chit Shun Machinery Limited since then were no
longer classified as related party or continuing
connected transactions.

The above transactions were entered with the
related parties on terms mutually agreed by
individual parties. In the opinion of the directors
of the Group, these related party transactions
were conducted on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group’s business.

(¢) During the year, compensation paid by the
Group to the key management personnel,
which were the directors and chief executive
officer of the Company, was disclosed in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Wit

0} 5T B B RE 77 A R A SRR o it
ER G MARRZHEREREEAR
B-ZE-—RF+-_AtHHBEBIRR
RARRILZ BIpEMAETT - WHEK L
MR ZIFERERS o

RZB-—NF=RA=+NH FE&EH
ERABMREAR AR R EER
BHMBEBHERRATAZXI SR TBEDR
REBLSHERERS -

it 32 515 BARR R U5 1R R & 7 B AR
EMGTETT - AEBEERR &
ERAEE T X 5 TR B — AR SRR
AEBERBEBN—RBEPET -

© FR AEBEENEEZEEEAE (A
RAREERITHAER) NS TR 4R
AR R E16HEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-T— A E+=-_A=+—HIFE

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

P

(@)

On 23 April 2020, the Board of Directors
proposed to declare a final dividend of HK2.0
cents (2018: HK3.5 cents) totaling
approximately HK$17,875,000 (2018:
HK$31,282,000) per ordinary share to its
shareholders, as further disclosed in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The outbreak of novel coronavirus near the end
of 2019 in the PRC and the continuous
spreading all other countries has serious
disruption to the business and economic
activities of the world. A series of precautionary
and control measures have been implementing
across the globe. The subsidiaries in the PRC
has suspended operation in the first few weeks
of February 2020 due the local government’s
measures to contain the virus, and gradually
resumed its operation in mid February. The
epidemic might have serious impact to the
world’s economy and the Group’s business.
The effect has not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements. Given the
dynamic nature of the novel coronavirus, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of its impact on the Group’s financial
position, cash flows and operating results at
the date on which these financial statements
are authorised for issue. The Group will closely

monitor its exposure to the risks and
uncertainties in connection with the new
epidemic.

42.

REHRENRE

—

a)

RZEBE-_ZEFNA-_+=H EFL
BRARESRERIT AR08
(ZZE—NF 3.5 XAEY
17,875,000 T (=& — \&F :
31,282,000 70) 2 K EARE B - Wi
— W RN E M EHRERNE17 -

BO-_F-NFE TEREHFLT
MESRE - BREBENEMAAREK
SEEL  BETEEHERAMEE
AE) - BRI E i — R AR MEEE
H i o BE M ER A EREX T 48 %R
SN FENMBARER-F
“TE_FAEHEREEFELEE AN
— R AESRELE - RIS LS
HWREERAESEXBELIBREY
E-ARFEIRENTLRAMBR
KPR - ERFHETRES RGN
28 ERBETEEZHBRERZ
B BEHARNEEF BN - BER
ERGEXRENTERMAEM Y
TER - AEES T EREmY
R 1B R B N RERE 1




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

43.

44.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1
January 2019 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in
note 3.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 283 April 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z —

43.

44.

,%?A,M%EEMT*I(”;)

—NEFTZA=t+—HLEFE

EbE B F
AEFBER-_ZTE—NF—A—BERALE
RIMBBE T EAREM SRS LS
mﬁ EEBEBHET  TEINHBREELS -

EHHREEMNE —SHBENEIPE
7% -

MESRS PHE|R

AEAMBHRRER_-FT_F EEH t=
HESESHETRER 2

Tl




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LIFERBHR

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-RF ZERF ZZ—tF ZT-N\F =i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FETT FET FET FET FET

RESULTS ¥#i5

Revenue WA 1,539,344 1,742,476 1,738,738 1,852,329 1,554,364
Profit/(Loss) before tax BrEi AR T () (71,756) 106,154 81,993 125,907 101,331
Income tax expense TS (5,410) (46,252) (45,862) (12,505) (14,569)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREH,(EE) (77,166) 59,902 36,131 113,402 86,762
Attributable to: AT AT REMh#ER

— Owners of the Company — ARQAEEHEEZEEA (63,489) 59,243 33,998 113,556 88,705
— Non-controlling interests ~ — JF¥ERk#E S (13,677) 659 2,133 (154) (1,943)

(77,166) 59,902 36,131 113,402 86,762

As at 31 December
R+=-RA=+-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-RF ZE—RF ZT—tF ZT-N\F =y
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZERERE

Total assets BEE 1,791,602 1,865,747 1,768,096 1,719,695 1,635,386
Total liabilities BEE (1,060,102) (1,094,240)  (901,453)  (761,835)  (627,431)
Net assets FEE 731,500 771,507 866,643 957,860 1,007,955

Z 68




KaShor

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

= I B PR 42 AR F BR 24 B

Room A, 29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BRNENEERNE KRR UBE2IEAE

Tel B : (852) 3759 8900
Fax fEH : (852) 2412 1743

Website #3lt : www.kashui.com




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務概要
	股東主要資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會與管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底



